
Agenda Item   Time
ROLL CALL, INTRODUCTIONS, AND TELECONFERENCE ETIQUETTE 9:00 AM

PUBLIC COMMENT Guidelines 9:05 AM

CONSIDERATION TO TAKE AGENDA ITEMS OUT OF ORDER 9:10 AM

CONSENT CALENDAR 9:11AM

1 December 6, 2024 BACWA Executive Board meeting minutes 3-7

2 November  2024 Treasurer's Report 8-16

9:15 AM
3 Approval: FY25 NMS Payment #2, $1.1M 17-18

9:25 AM
4 Discussion: Draft BACWA Communications Plan 19-22
5 Presentation: Civic Edge presentation on social media vignettes 23-32
6 Discussion: PFAS Update  

i. PFAS in the news NYTimes Article 33-49
ii. BAPPG PFAS Spring campaign 50-52
iii. PFAS Regulatory Update 53-66

7 Informational: Collective advocacy for nutrient funding
8 Informational: RFI for Compliance Milestones

10:30 AM

9 Informational: NMS Update Link to Planning Subcommittee Notes 67-71

10 Informational:  EPA Region IX SF Bay Program Office funding update
11 Informational: Quaternary Ammonia Compounds
12 Discussion: Next joint meeting with R2 72

13 Informational: 2025 NPDES Compliance Letter 73-79

11:30 AM

14 Informational: Update on BABC integration into BACWA 
15 Informational: FY26 Budget Schedule 80

16 Discussion: Nutrient surcharge calculations
17 Discussion: Pardee dates 81

18 Discussion: Annual meeting preliminary agenda 82

REPORTS 12:10 AM

19 Committee Reports 83-90

20 Member highlights
21 Executive Director Report 91-92

22 Board Calendar and Action Items 93-94
23 Regulatory Program Manager Report 95
24 Other BACWA Representative Reports

a. RMP Technical Review Committee
Samantha Engelage, Alicia Chakrabarti, 
Blake Brown

b. RMP Steering Committee Karin North; Amanda Roa; Eric Dunlavey
c. Summit Partners Lorien Fono; Jackie Zipkin
d. ASC/SFEI Lorien Fono; Amit Mutsuddy; Lori Schectel

e. Nutrient Governance Steering Committee
Amit Mutsuddy, Eric Dunlavey; 
alternates: Lori Schectel, Jackie Zipkin

e.i  Nutrient Planning Subcommittee Eric Dunlavey
e.ii MERHAB MaTAG Amit Mutsuddy  

f. SWRCB Nutrient SAG Lorien Fono

g. BAIRWMP
Cheryl Munoz; Florence Wedington; 
Jackie Zipkin

h. CASA State Legislative Committee Lori Schectel
i. CASA Regulatory Workgroup Lorien Fono; Mary Cousins

POLICY/STRATEGIC

OPERATIONAL

APPROVALS AND AUTHORIZATIONS

BREAK

Executive Board Meeting
AGENDA

Friday, January 17, 2025 9:00 AM - 12:30 PM (PDT)
SFPUC 

525 Golden Gate Ave., San Francisco, CA 94102

https://bacwa.org/general/bacwa-public-comments-guidelines/
https://www.nytimes.com/2025/01/06/climate/forever-chemicals-pfas-sewage-drinking-water.html?unlocked_article_code=1.oU4.PXa3.h3P8PUFDombU&smid=url-share
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Yvb0wnk1TY_wqk4JRSHnOoHuygXEHA9F


j. RMP Microplastics Liaison Jesse McDermott
k. Bay Area Regional Reliability Project Jackie Zipkin
l. San Francisco Estuary Partnership Lorien Fono; Jackie Zipkin
m. CPSC Policy Education Advisory Committee Colleen Henry
n. California Ocean Protection Council Lorien Fono
o. California Water Quality Monitoring Council Lorien Fono
p. CASA Air Toxics Steering Committee Lorien Fono, Jason Nettleton

25 SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 12:25pm
NEXT MEETING

ADJOURNMENT 12:30 PM
The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for February 21, 2025 at Central  San



 

Executive Board Meeting Minutes 
Friday, December 6, 2024, 9:00 AM - 12:30 PM (PDT) 

EBMUD, 375 11th Street, Oakland, CA 94706 
 

Executive Board Representatives: Amy Chastain (San Francisco Public Utilities Commission); 
Amit Mutsuddy (East Bay Municipal Utility District); Eric Dunlavey (City of San Jose); Jackie Zipkin 
(East Bay Dischargers Authority); Lori Schectel (Central Contra Costa Sanitary District). 
 
Attendees  

Name Agency/Company 
Aaron Winer  West County Wastewater District 
Alicia Chakrabarti  EBMUD 
Amanda Roa   Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District 
Blake Brown  Central San 
Cyrus Farsaei  City of San Mateo 
Daniela Brandao  SFPUC 
Dan Gill  DSRSD 
David Donovan  City of Hayward 
David Richardson  Woodard & Curran 
Jean-Marc Petit  Ironhouse Sanitary District 
Jen Jackson  CA Department of Toxic Substances Control 
Jennie Pang  SFPUC 
Jennifer Dyment  BACWA 
Lorien Fono   BACWA 
Mary Cousins   BACWA 
Mike Falk  HDR 
Robert Knox   City of San Mateo 
Sara Sadreddini  Black & Veatch 

Tim Lewis   Dublin San Ramon Services District 

Tom Hall  EOA 

Jackie called the meeting to order at 9:02am 

Agenda Item  

ROLL CALL, INTRODUCTIONS, AND TELECONFERENCE ETIQUETTE   

PUBLIC COMMENT  None  

CONSIDERATION TO TAKE AGENDA ITEMS OUT OF ORDER   None   

CONSENT CALENDAR   

3



1 October 18, 2024, BACWA Executive Board meeting minutes  

2 November 22, 2024, Special Executive Board Joint meeting with R2  

3 October 2024 Treasurer's Report  

Consent Calendar items 1 thru 3: A motion to approve was made by Eric Dunlavey (City of San 
Jose) and seconded by Lori Schectel (Central Contra Costa Sanitary District). All were in favor. 
None opposed. None abstained. 

APPROVALS AND AUTHORIZATIONS   

4 Approval: FY2024 BACWA Audit and Financial Statement - BACWA ED gave a summary 
of the annual audit.  

Approvals and Authorizations item 4: A motion to approve was made by Amy Chastain (SFPUC) 
and seconded by Amit Mutsuddy (EBMUD). All were in favor. None opposed. None abstained.  

5 Approval: FY2025 Contract with HDR for Tasks 1-5 of Nutrient Permit Support - 
BACWA ED summarized the HDR contract to support implementation of the 2024 nutrient 
watershed permit.  

Approvals and Authorizations item 5: A motion to approve was made by Eric Dunlavey (City of 
San Jose) and seconded by Lori Schectel (Central Contra Costa Sanitary District). All were in favor. 
None opposed. None abstained.  

 

POLICY/STRATEGIC   

6 Presentation: DTSC Safer Consumer Products update - Jen Jackson from the 
California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) provided an update on the agency’s 
Safer Consumer Products program. Link to slides.  Her presentation covered the program’s 
regulatory  framework, including the candidate chemical list, priority products, alternatives 
analysis and regulatory response. Jen summarized each part of the framework and shared 
information about what they are currently working on. Jen summarized the work plan focus areas 
for the next 3 years and they include: beauty products, synthetic turf, paint, cleaning products, 
children’s products and microplastics, motor vehicles, electronics and food contact materials. 
Group discussion and questions followed. There is an opportunity for additional engagement with 
DTSC on PFAS, quaternary ammonium compounds, and other constituents with a down-the-drain 
pathway.  

7 Discussion: Statewide Pesticides engagement  - BACWA RPM shared that the BAPPG 
pesticides committee is setting up training to welcome new members to the group to reduce 
technical barriers to participation. Engagement with summit partners is planned for a future 
meeting in the next few months.  

8 Discussion: Draft BACWA Communications Plan - BACWA ED shared a slide that 
summarizes the difference between BAPPG and BACWA Communications Steering Committee. 

4

https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/12/DTSC-J.-Jackson-Presentation-on-Safer-Consumer-Products-2024-12-05.pdf


The slide is in the packet. BACWA ED shared an outline of the communications plan. The draft plan 
is currently in preparation.   

9 Presentation: Preview of 2024 GAR data - Mike Falk presented preliminary data for the 
next nutrient watershed permit Group Annual Report that will be submitted to the Water Board by 
April 1, 2025. Mike reviewed the draft content of the report, the status and the next steps. Group 
discussion and questions followed.  

Action Item: BACWA ED and RPM to set up a series of meetings to coordinate on compliance 
schedule milestone information needed for the 2024 GAR.  

10 Discussion: Request for BACWA participation in WRF opportunity 5288 - Mike Falk 
summarized a proposed WRF project to expand an existing guidance tool to address greenhouse 
gas emissions, optimization of nutrient removal, and energy efficiency. HDR submitted a grant 
application and the outcome is pending. BACWA has provided in-kind contributions in the past.  

Action item: BACWA ED will follow up with Mike Falk and bring an update to the January meeting.  

BREAK 

11 Discussion: Memo to support extended compliance schedules - BACWA ED shared 
that the Water Board has committed to seeking an amendment to the state’s compliance schedule 
policy. BACWA prepared a memo with an infographic regarding the need for a compliance 
schedule extension due to schedule constraints on nutrient removal projects (see packet). BACWA 
ED said the Water Board created a survey to elicit feedback on what plans and policies the Water 
Board needs to update, and the compliance schedule policy is included in the survey.  

Action item: BACWA to provide template answer for agencies to use to respond to the State Water 
Board survey on state plans and policies.  

12 Discussion: Debrief from R2 Joint meeting, Nov 22  - BACWA ED shared that the minutes 
are in the packet. BACWA ED encouraged agencies to speak up individually and share feedback on 
the science program. Group discussion and questions followed.  

13 Informational: Updated memo justifying Non-competitive EPA grant for nutrient 
management - BACWA ED provided an update and should know more by the end of December. 
We are in a holding pattern to see what happens with the new administration.  

Action item: BACWA ED will provide update in January.  

14 Informational: NMS Update - 11/6 Planning Subcommittee notes -  BACWA ED shared 
that the notes are in the packet. 

15 Informational: Statewide recycled Water production update - BACWA RPM shared 
information on recycled water production for 2023 based on recently compiled data from the State 
Water Board. Recycled water production in the Bay Area was slightly down in 2023, mainly because 
wet weather reduced irrigation demands.  

5



16 Informational: Onsite reuse regulations update -  BACWA RPM shared information 
about draft regulations for onsite nonpotable reuse that the State Water Board plans to release for 
public comment in February 2025.  

OPERATIONAL   

17 Informational: Update on BABC integration into BACWA  - BACWA ED shared a slide 
that summarized a proposed transition schedule to integrate BABC into BACWA. BABC will be 
voting on if they will make this transition in early 2025.  

Action item: BACWA ED will incorporate BABC support when the FY26 BACWA budget is 
developed. 

18 Discussion: Meeting dates for CY 2025 - BACWA ED share that the schedule is in the 
packet. We will keep the August meeting, then decide later this year if we can drop it. 

Action item: BACWA AED will send calendar invites.  

19 Informational: FY26 Budget Schedule  - BACWA ED shared that summary is 
in the packet and BACWA AED summarized the schedule.  

20 Discussion: Annual meeting planning kickoff - BACWA ED said the BACWA Annual 
Meeting will be Friday May 2nd at the David Brower Center, in Berkeley. The group discussed topics 
and possible presenters. There was support for presentations on pollution prevention, climate 
change (including new BCDC guidance on sea level rise), and emergency response planning / 
mutual aid.  

REPORTS   

21 Committee Reports  - Committee reports are in the packet. Committee leaders were 
invited to the annual holiday lunch held immediately after the Executive Board meeting, and 
several were in attendance.  

22 Member highlights – Members shared agency updates, including the need to respond to the 
recent region-wide tsunami warning. 

23 Executive Director Report - in the packet 

24 Board Calendar and Action Items - in the packet 

25 Regulatory Program Manager Report  - in the packet 

26 Other BACWA Representative Reports  

 a. RMP Technical Review Committee Samantha Engelage, Alicia Chakrabarti, Blake Brown 

 b. RMP Steering Committee Karin North; Amanda Roa; Eric Dunlavey 

 c. Summit Partners Lorien Fono; Jackie Zipkin 

 d. ASC/SFEI Lorien Fono; Amit Mutsuddy; Lori Schectel 

6



 e. Nutrient Governance Steering Committee Amit Mutsuddy, Eric Dunlavey; alternates: 
Lori Schectel, Jackie Zipkin 

 e.i  Nutrient Planning Subcommittee Eric Dunlavey 

 e.ii MERHAB MaTAG Amit Mutsuddy   

 f. SWRCB Nutrient SAG Lorien Fono 

 g. BAIRWMP Cheryl Munoz; Florence Wedington; Jackie Zipkin 

 h. CASA State Legislative Committee Lori Schectel 

 i. CASA Regulatory Workgroup Lorien Fono; Mary Cousins 

 j. RMP Microplastics Liaison Jesse McDermott 

 k. Bay Area Regional Reliability Project Jackie Zipkin 

 l. San Francisco Estuary Partnership Lorien Fono; Jackie Zipkin 

 m. CPSC Policy Education Advisory Committee Colleen Henry 

 n. California Ocean Protection Council Lorien Fono 

 o. California Water Quality Monitoring Council Lorien Fono 

 p. CASA Air Toxics Steering Committee Lorien Fono, Jason Nettleton 

27 SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

NEXT MEETING   

The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for January 17, 2025 at SFPUC   

ADJOURNMENT  

7



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District  •  East Bay Dischargers Authority  •  City of San Jose 
East Bay Municipal Utility District  •  City & County of San Francisco  
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies • PO Box 24055, MS702 • Oakland, CA  94623 

December 17, 2024 

MEMO TO: Bay Area Clean Water Agencies Executive Board 

MEMO FROM: Phoebe Grow, Treasurer, East Bay Municipal Utility District 

SUBJECT: Fifth Month FY 2024 Treasurer’s Report 

As required by section eight of the Joint Powers Agreement establishing the Bay Area Clean 
Water Agencies (BACWA) and California Government Code Sections 6500 et seq., attached is 
the BACWA Treasurer’s Report for the period covering July 1, 2024 through November 30, 

2024 (Five months of Fiscal Year 2025). This report covers expenditures, cash receipts, and cash 
transfers for the following BACWA funds:   

• Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA),
• BACWA Legal Reserve Fund (Legal Rsrv),
• Water Quality Attainment Strategy (WQA CBC),
• Bay Area Biosolids Coalition (BABC),
• Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC),
• BACC Legal Reserve Fund (BACC Legal Rsrv),
• Water/Wastewater Operator Training (WOT),

8



1

Houck, Matt

From: Grow, Phoebe
Sent: Monday, January 6, 2025 10:05 AM
To: Houck, Matt
Subject: RE: November 2024 Treasurer's Report

Approved! Thanks for following up.  
 
Happy New Year!  
 
-Phoebe 
 
Phoebe Grow, P.E. (she/her) | Principal Management Analyst | 510.287.0205 | phoebe.grow@ebmud.com  

 

From: Houck, Matt <matt.houck@ebmud.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 6, 2025 9:49 AM 
To: Grow, Phoebe <phoebe.grow@ebmud.com> 
Subject: FW: November 2024 Treasurer's Report 
 
Hi Phoebe, 
 
Hope you had a nice holiday! I just wanted to follow up on this? 
 
Thanks, 
 
Matt Houck 
Accountant III 
East Bay Municipal Utility District 
375 11TH St, MS 402, Oakland, CA 94607 
P 510-287-0238 
 
From: Houck, Matt  
Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2024 8:41 AM 
To: Grow, Phoebe <phoebe.grow@ebmud.com> 
Subject: November 2024 Treasurer's Report 
 
Hi Phoebe, 
 
Please approve BACWA – November 2024 Treasurer’s Report for distribution. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Happy Holidays!! 
 

9

Matt Houck
Highlight



MONTHLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY REPORT 

 November 2024 

 
 
Fund Balances 
In FY25 BACWA has three operating funds (BACWA, Legal, and CBC) and three pass‐through funds for 
which BACWA provides only contract administration services (WOT, BABC & BACC). As of October 
2021, revenues are recognized when billed, not when payments are received. 

 
BACWA Fund: This fund provides resources for BACWA staff, its committees, and other administrative 
needs. The ending fund balance on November 30, 2024, was $748,780 which is significantly higher 
than the target reserve of $384,651 which is intended to cover 3 months of normal operating 
expenses based on the BACWA FY25 budget. $538,171 is encumbered to meet ongoing operating 
line‐item expenses for BAPPG Committee Support, Legal services, IT services, Board meeting 
expenses, accounting services and BACWA staff support, which leaves $210,609 unobligated.  
  

 
CBC Fund: This fund provides the resources for completing special investigations as well as meeting 
regulatory requirements. The ending fund balance on November 30, 2024, was $3,233,493 which is 
higher than the target reserve of $1,000,000. $102,742 of the ending fund balance is encumbered to 
meet line‐item expenses for completion of the Group Annual Report and Nutrient Watershed Permit 
contracts. This leaves an actual unencumbered reserve balance of $2,130,750 (i.e., actual fund 
balance of $3,130,750 less target reserves) as of November 30, 2024. As directed by the BACWA 
Executive Board, the CBC fund has diminished over time due to BACWA’s ongoing funding of the NMS 
program to comply with the Nutrient Watershed Permit.  
 
Legal Fund: This fund provides for needed legal services. The ending balance was $300,000 which is at 
the target reserve of $300,000. 

 
 

Budget to Actual 
The BACWA Annual Budget includes all expected revenues as well as budgeted expenses. Transfers 
are made from the BACWA Fund and/or the CBC Fund to balance the Annual Budget if expenses 
exceed revenues and vice versa. It is therefore important to achieve the anticipated revenues and not 
exceed the budgeted expenses on an annual basis to maintain the BACWA and CBC Fund balances at 
the levels projected in the 5 Year Plan.  
 
Revenues as of November 30, 2024 (42% of the FY) are at 97.4% 
 
Expenses as of November 30, 2024 (42% of the FY) are at 38.4% 
 
 

10



FY 2025
BACWA BUDGET to ACTUAL

BACWA FY25 BUDGET Line Item Description FY 2025 Budget 
Actual 

November 
2024

 Actual % 
of Budget 
November 

2024

Variance  NOTES

REVENUES & FUNDING
Dues Principals' Contributions $553,929 $553,930 100% $1 FY25: 3% increase 5 @ $110,786

Associate & Affiliate Contributions $195,780 $195,780 100% $0 FY25: 3% increase. 12 Assoc: $9142 47 Affiliate: $1831; UC Berkeley $500
Fees Clean Bay Collaborative $675,000 $675,000 100% $0 Same as FY23. Prin: $450,000; Assoc/Affil: $225,000

Nutrient Surcharge $1,600,000 $1,600,000 100% $0 See Nutrient Surcharge Spreadsheet
Voluntary Nutrient Contributions $0 0% $0

Other Receipts AIR Non-Member $7,582 $7,582 100% $0 3% increase (Santa Rosa)
BAPPG Non-Members $4,264 $4,264 100% $0 3% increase (Sta Rosa, Sac Reg'l, Vacaville) $1,421/each

 Other $0 $0
Fund Transfer Special Program Admin Fees (WOT) $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000

Special Program Admin Fees (BACC) $39,522 $0 0% -$39,522 400 hours of AED support $98.80/hr
Special Program Admin Fees (BABC) $6,000 $0 0% -$6,000 ED, AED and RPM support

Air Toxics CASA Passthrough $600,000 $528,900 88% -$71,100 New in FY25
Interest Income LAIF $80,000 $99,125 124% $19,125 BACWA, Legal, & CBC Funds invested in LAIF

Total Revenue $3,763,077 $3,664,581 97.38% -$98,496

BACWA FY25 BUDGET Line Item Description FY 2025 Budget 
Actual 

November 
2024

 Actual % 
of Budget 
November 

2024

Variance  NOTES

EXPENSES
Labor

Executive Director $224,230 $74,743 33% -$149,487  (incl 2.6% CPI SF Bay Metro Area Dec 2023)
Assistant Executive Director $94,417 $32,328 34% -$62,089  (incl 2.6% CPI SF Bay Metro Area Dec 2023); $78.68/hour; Reflects 1200 hours
BACC Administrator $39,522 $12,318 31% -$27,204 400 hrs AED support at $98.80 per hr
Regulatory Program Manager $156,136 $54,934 35% -$101,202  (2.6% CPI SF Bay Metro Area Dec 2023); $115.65/hour, Reflects 1350 hours
Total $514,304 $174,322 34% -$339,982

Administration
EBMUD Financial Services $43,297 $10,718 25% -$32,579 FY25 no change
Auditing Services $5,672 $0 0% -$5,672 Finanical Auditors through EBMUD; per auditor rate schedule
Administrative Expenses $4,059 $99 2% -$3,960 50% less than FY24
Insurance $10,753 $8,457 79% -$2,296 15% increase from FY24 (10-15% est. increase per Alliant)
Total $63,781 $19,273 30% -$44,508

Meetings
EB Meetings $3,500 $1,318 38% -$2,182 27% increase from FY24
Annual Meeting $14,369 $1,900 13% -$12,469 No change from FY24
Pardee $6,801 $2,159 32% -$4,643 No change from FY24
Misc. Meetings $10,000 $3,575 36% -$6,425 33% increase from FY24 to accommodate conferences
Total $34,670 $8,952 26% -$25,718

Communication
Website Hosting $743 $0 0% -$743 2% increase from FY24, Go Daddy website hosting and domain registration
File Storage $812 $350 43% -$462 2% increase from FY24, box.net
Website Development/Maintenance $1,624 $180 11% -$1,444 2% increase from FY24

11



FY 2025
BACWA BUDGET to ACTUAL

EXPENSES
IT Support $2,814 $0 0% -$2,814 2% increase from FY24
BACWA Value of Wastewater Communication $40,000 $9,741 24% -$30,259 New line item in FY24, no change from FY24
Other Commun $1,894 $0 0% -$1,894 2% increase from FY23; MS Exchange, Survey Monkey, PollEv, Zoom, Netfile 

Total $47,887 $10,271 21% -$37,616

Legal
Regulatory Support $50,000 $67,342 135% $17,342 Increase from FY24, new contract with Meyers Nave - received invoices from FY24 late
Executive Board Support $2,403 $128 5% -$2,275 2% increase from FY24
Total $52,403 $67,469 129% $15,066

Committees
AIR $76,000 $22,522 30% -$53,478 $75k consulting support,  $1k misc expenses. Carollo Engineers
BAPPG $170,560 $58,039 34% -$112,521 Includes CPSC @ $5,000, OWOW @ $10,000, NSAC @ $10,000 and Pest. Reg Spt. @ $71,500
Assest Management Committee $500 $0 0% No change from FY24
Biosolids Committee $500 $0 0% -$500 $500 in FY25
Collections System $15,500 $50,000 323% $34,500 SSS WDR Support - Budgeted in FY24 but invoice came late
O&M Committee $1,500 $413 28% -$1,087 Requested $1000 increase from FY24 for Annual Meeting lunch
Laboratory Committee $500 $1,219 244% $719 FY24 TNI invoice paid in FY25.
Permits Committee $500 $0 0% -$500 No change from FY24
Pretreatment $500 $0 0% -$500 No change from FY24
Recycled Water Committee $500 $0 0% -$500 Requested default budget amount for FY25
Misc Committee Support $45,000 $0 0% -$45,000 No change from FY24
Manager's Roundtable $1,000 $0 0% -$1,000 No change from FY24
Total $312,560 $132,193 42% -$180,367

Collaboratives
Collaboratives
State of the Estuary (SFEP-biennial) $0 $0 0% $0 Bienniel in Even Fiscal Years
Arleen Navarret Award $2,500 $0 0% -$2,500 Next Award will be disbursed in FY27
BayCAN $5,000 $0 0% -$5,000
Bay Area One Water Network $0 $0 0% $0 No change from FY24
Bruce Wolf Scholarship $4,000 $0 0% -$4,000 FY22, FY23, FY24, FY25 FY26
Passthrough for CASA for air toxics $500,000 $0 100% -$500,000 New line item in FY24
Misc $1,500 $4,000 267% $2,500  NBWA, SFEI Coastal Climate Resilience Scholarship donation

Total $513,000 $4,000 1% -$509,000

Other
Unbudgeted Items
Other $0 $0 0% $0

$0 $0 0% $0

Tech Support
Technical Support
Nutrients   

Watershed Permit NMS Contribution $2,200,000 $1,100,000 50% -$1,100,000 Advance funding for 2nd Watershed Permit Sciece Studies; Final $ TBD
NMS Voluntary Contributions
Additional work under permit $100,000 $10,000 10% -$90,000 Includes HDR PO for $225k spread out over FY20-24.
Regional Study on Nature Based Solutions $50,744 SFEI FY24 invoice paid in FY25.
Nutrient Workshop(s) $0 $0 0% $0 Pilot Studies/Plant Review/Innovative Technologies; Might change
NMS Reviewer $50,000 $1,400 0% -$48,600 No change from FY24, M. Connor Contract
Regional Nutrient Special Study $100,000 $0 0% -$100,000 New item in FY25

General Tech Support $100,000 $0 0% -$100,000 AB617 emissions factors, PFAS, other nutrient support
CEC Investigations $10,000 $0 0% -$10,000 PFAS Study Phase 3
Risk Reduction $12,500 $0 0% -$12,500 Will plan new risk reduction tasks for current Hg/PCB Watershed Permit
Total $2,572,500 $1,162,144 45% -$1,410,356

12



FY 2025
BACWA BUDGET to ACTUAL

EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES $4,111,105 $1,578,624 38.40% -$2,532,480

PROJECTED EXPENSE DEVIATION FROM BUDGET

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS -$348,028 $2,085,957

TRANSFERS FROM RESERVES $348,028 $0 aligns with strategy of drawing down reserves to lessen impact of Nutrient Surcharge

NET INCOME AFTER TRANSFERS $0 $0

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET $1,538,605

OPERATING RESERVE $384,651 $0

13



DEPTID DESCRIPTION
FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING FUND 
BALANCE

TOTAL BILLED 
REVENUE TO-

DATE

TOTAL 
DISBURSEMENTS 

TO-DATE

MONTH-ENDING 
FUND BALANCE

OUTSTANDING 
ENCUMBRANCES

MONTH-END 
UNOBLIGATED 
FUND BALANCE

600 BACWA 332,398                 820,754                 404,372                 748,780                   538,171                 210,609                 Top Chart: Reflects CASH on the Books Includes Encumbrances
604 LEGAL RSRV 300,000                 -                          -                          300,000                   -                          300,000                 Bottom Chart: Reflects CASH in the Bank Includes Payables (bills received but not paid)
605 CBC 2,038,831              2,328,408              1,133,746              3,233,493               102,742                 3,130,751              Allocations: Priority for non-liquid investments

SUBTOTAL 1 2,671,229             3,149,162             1,538,118             4,282,273               640,913                 3,641,360                                 
602 BABC 240,179                 177,000                 48,207                    368,972                   71,818                   297,154                 
606 BACC 35,351                   2,434                     42,318                   (4,533)                      27,696                   (32,229)                  
607 BACC LEGAL RSRV 90,000                   30,000                   -                         120,000                   -                         120,000                 
610 WOT 259,201                 -                         -                         259,201                   -                         259,201                 
612 CASA Air Toxics (41,840)                  528,900                 -                          487,060                   -                          487,060                 

SUBTOTAL 2 582,891                 738,334                 90,525                   1,230,700               99,514                   1,131,186             
GRAND TOTAL 3,254,120              3,887,496              1,628,643              5,512,973               740,427                 4,772,546              

DEPTID DESCRIPTION
FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING FUND 
BALANCE

TOTAL BILLED 
REVENUE TO-

DATE

TOTAL 
DISBURSEMENTS 

TO-DATE

MONTH-ENDING 
FUND BALANCE

RECONCILIATION 
TO FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS A/R

RECONCILIATION 
TO FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS A/P

MONTH-END 
RECONCILED 

FUND BALANCE

UNINVESTED 
CASH BALANCES

LAIF 
INVESTMENTS 

AMOUNTS

LAIF 
INVESTMENTS 
PERCENTAGE

ALTERNATIVE 
INVESTMENTS 

AMOUNTS

ALTERNATIVE 
INVESTMENTS 

IDENTIFIERS

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT 
INSTRUCTIONS AND NOTES

600 BACWA 332,398                 820,754                 404,372                 748,780                   (199,245)                23,851                    573,386               -                       573,386               23% -                      priority # 3 for allocation
604 LEGAL RSRV 300,000                 -                          -                          300,000                   -                          -                          300,000               -                       300,000               12% -                      priority # 1 for allocation
605 CBC 2,038,831              2,328,408              1,133,746              3,233,493               (235,059)                -                          2,998,434            1,545,647            1,452,787            59% -                      priority # 4 for allocation

SUBTOTAL 1 2,671,229              3,149,162              1,538,118              4,282,273               (434,304)                23,851                    3,871,820            1,545,647            2,326,173            95% -                      

602 BABC 240,179                 177,000                 48,207                    368,972                   (46,900)                  -                          322,072               322,072               -                       0% -                      pass-through funds, no allocation
606 BACC 35,351                    2,434                      42,318                    (4,533)                      -                          -                          (4,533)                  (4,533)                  -                       0% -                      
607 BACC LEGAL RSRV 90,000                    30,000                    -                          120,000                   -                          -                          120,000               -                       120,000               5% -                      priority # 2 for allocation
610 WOT 259,201                 -                          -                          259,201                   -                          -                          259,201               259,201               -                       0% -                      pass-through funds, no allocation
612 CASA Air Toxics (41,840)                  528,900                 -                          487,060                   (165,360)                -                          321,700               321,700               -                       0% -                      pass-through funds, no allocation

SUBTOTAL 2 582,891                 738,334                 90,525                    1,230,700               (212,260)                -                          1,018,440            898,440               120,000               5% -                      
GRAND TOTAL 3,254,120              3,887,496              1,628,643              5,512,973               (646,564)                23,851                    4,890,260            2,444,087            2,446,173            100%

-                          -                       -                       -                       
To be used to cover Reconciliation to Financial Statements ($0) 

Reconciliation to Trial Balance
Per Report above: STB           14930 2,446,173             
General 3,149,162             STB           15050 2,444,087             
WOT, BABC, & BACC 738,334                4,890,260             -                      
PROP -                            STB            16300 646,564                
   subtotal 3,887,496             STB            21350 (23,851)                 

5,512,973             -                      

Trial Balance Revenue Accounts
40100 Interest (101,560)               
40101 Mem Contrib (1,942,472)            
40102 Transfer (30,000)                 
40103 Assoc Contrib (188,897)               
40104 Other (1,624,567)            
47310 State Grant -                        
47320 Grant Retention -                        

  subtotal (3,887,496)            
  Difference -                            

BACWA FUND BALANCES - DATA PROVIDED BY ACCOUNTING DEPT.

BACWA INVESTMENTS BALANCES - DATA PROVIDED BY TREASURY DEPT.

BACWA Fund Report as of November 30, 2024

14



Cost Center Code Cost Center Description Program Segment Description
Program 
Segment 

Value
 Amended Budget  Current Period  FY24 - Year to Date  Unobligated 

BABC - AED and RPM Support 6200                            (6,000.00)                                          -                                            -                                6,000.00 
BACC - AED Support 6199                          (39,522.00)                                          -                                            -                             39,522.00 
BDO Affil/CS/Assoc Dues 6104                                          -                                            -                            (40,782.00)                          (40,782.00)
BDO Affiliate/Associate Dues 6103                                          -                                            -                            (47,553.00)                          (47,553.00)
BDO Assoc.&Affiliate Contr 6102                        (195,780.00)                                          -                          (100,562.00)                           95,218.00 
BDO Fund Transfers 6141                            (1,000.00)                                          -                                            -                                1,000.00 
BDO Member Contributions 6101                        (553,929.00)                                          -                          (553,930.00)                                    (1.00)
BDO Non-Member Contr AIR 6136                            (7,582.00)                                          -                              (1,421.00)                              6,161.00 
BDO Non-Member Contr BAPPG 6135                            (4,264.00)                                          -                            (10,424.00)                            (6,160.00)
BDO Other Receipts 6105                                          -                                            -                                            -                                            -   
BDO Other Receipts (Misc) 6140                                          -                                            -                              (2,732.00)                            (2,732.00)
BDO- Interest Income from LAIF 6142                          (80,000.00)                          (13,134.32)                          (63,350.18)                           16,649.82 
BDO-Alternative Investment Inc 6143                                          -                                            -                                            -                                            -   

600 Total                       (888,077.00)                          (13,134.32)                       (820,754.18)                           67,322.82 
BDO Fund Transfers 6141                                          -                                            -                                            -                                            -   
BDO Member Contributions 6101                                          -                                            -                          (177,000.00)                        (177,000.00)

602 Total                                          -                                            -                         (177,000.00)                       (177,000.00)
BDO Fund Transfers 6141                                          -                                            -                                            -                                            -   
BDO Member Contributions 6101                        (675,000.00)                                          -                          (682,642.00)                            (7,642.00)
BDO Other Receipts 6105                    (1,600,000.00)                                          -                      (1,609,990.00)                            (9,990.00)
BDO- Interest Income from LAIF 6142                                          -                                            -                            (35,775.62)                          (35,775.62)

605 Total                    (2,275,000.00)                                          -                      (2,328,407.62)                          (53,407.62)
BDO Member Contributions 6101                                          -                                            -                                            -                                            -   
BDO- Interest Income from LAIF 6142                                          -                                            -                              (2,433.95)                            (2,433.95)

606 Total                                          -                                            -                              (2,433.95)                            (2,433.95)
607 BACC Legal RSRV BDO Fund Transfers 6141                                          -                                            -                            (30,000.00)                          (30,000.00)
607 Total                                          -                                            -                            (30,000.00)                          (30,000.00)
612 CASA Air Toxics BDO Member Contributions 6101                        (600,000.00)                                          -                          (528,900.00)                           71,100.00 
612 Total                       (600,000.00)                                          -                         (528,900.00)                           71,100.00 
Grand Total                    (3,763,077.00)                          (13,134.32)                    (3,887,495.75)                       (124,418.75)

606 Bay Area Chemical 
Consortium

605 Clean Bay Collaborative

BACWA Revenue Report as of November 30, 2024

600 Bay Area Clean Water 
Agencies

602 Bay Area Biosolids Coalition

15



BACWA Treasurer's Report Expenses and Encumbrances
Period Covering July 1, 2024 through November 30, 2024

Cost Center Code Program Segment Description Program Segment Value  Amended Budget 
 Obligated Fiscal Year to 

Date 
 Unobligated 

AIR-Air Issues&Regulation Grp 6153                            76,000.00                            75,562.45                                 437.55 
AS-Assistant Executive Directo 6175                            94,417.00                            94,417.00                                          -   
AS-Audit Services 6180                              5,672.00                                          -                                5,672.00 
AS-BACWA Admin Expense 6173                              4,059.00                                   99.21                              3,959.79 
AS-EBMUD Financial Services 6176                            43,297.00                            43,297.00                                          -   
AS-Executive Director 6174                         224,230.00                         224,230.00                                          -   
AS-Insurance 6177                            10,753.00                              8,465.67                              2,287.33 
AS-Regulatory Program Manager 6179                         156,136.00                         156,136.00                                          -   
Administrative Support 6178                                          -                                            -                                            -   
BACWA Value of Wastewater 
Communication

6211                            40,000.00                            23,037.98                            16,962.02 

BC-BAPPG 6152                         170,560.00                         156,110.18                            14,449.82 
BC-Collections System 6144                            15,500.00                            50,000.00                          (34,500.00)
BC-Laboratory Committee 6149                                 500.00                              1,218.75                                (718.75)
BC-Manager's Roundtable 6154                              1,000.00                                          -                                1,000.00 
BC-Miscellaneous Committee Sup 6150                            45,000.00                            10,695.00                            34,305.00 
BC-Permit Committee 6145                                 500.00                                          -                                   500.00 
BC-Pretreatment Committee 6151                                 500.00                                          -                                   500.00 
BC-Water Recycling Committee 6146                                 500.00                                          -                                   500.00 
CAR-BACWA File Storage 6165                              1,623.00                                          -                                1,623.00 
CAR-BACWA IT Software 6167                              1,894.00                                 350.29                              1,543.71 
CAR-BACWA IT Support 6166                              2,814.00                                          -                                2,814.00 
CAR-BACWA Website Dev/Maint 6163                                 743.00                                 179.64                                 563.36 
CAR-BACWA Website Hosting 6164                                 812.00                                          -                                   812.00 
CAS-Arleen Navaret Award 6160                              2,500.00                                          -                                2,500.00 
CAS-BayCAN 6204                              5,000.00                                          -                                5,000.00 
CAS-Misc Collaborative Sup 6162                              1,500.00                              4,000.00                            (2,500.00)
CAS-PSSEP 6157                                          -                                            -   
CAS-Stanford ERC 6159                                          -                                            -                                            -   
GBS-Meeting Support-Annual 6170                            14,369.00                              1,900.00                            12,469.00 
GBS-Meeting Support-Exec Bd 6169                              3,500.00                              1,318.12                              2,181.88 
GBS-Meeting Support-Misc 6172                            10,000.00                              3,575.20                              6,424.80 
GBS-Meeting Support-Pardee 6171                              6,801.00                              2,158.51                              4,642.49 
LS-Executive Board Support 6156                              2,403.00                                 127.50                              2,275.50 
LS-Regulatory Support 6155                            50,000.00                            85,052.00                          (35,052.00)
O&M Committee 6148                              1,500.00                                 412.80                              1,087.20 
WQA-CE-Nature Based Solutions 6196                                          -                                            -                                            -   
Write-Off Doubtful Accounts 6208                                          -                                   200.00                                (200.00)

600 Total                         994,083.00                         942,543.30                            51,539.70 
AS-Assistant Executive Directo 6175                            39,522.00                                          -                              39,522.00 
AS-Regulatory Program Manager 6179                                          -                                            -                                            -   
Academia Research & Development 6203                                          -                                            -                                            -   
Administrative Support 6178                                          -                                            -                                            -   
BDO Contract Expenses 6186                                          -                                            -                                            -   
Collateral Development 6197                                          -                                            -                                            -   
Program Manager Expense 6202                                          -                           120,024.89                        (120,024.89)
Technology Research & Development 6206                                          -                                            -                                            -   

602 Total                            39,522.00                         120,024.89                          (80,502.89)
Recycled Water Evaluation 6198                         100,000.00                                          -                           100,000.00 
WQA - CEC Investigations 6201                            10,000.00                                          -                              10,000.00 
WQA-CE Addl Work Under Permit 6191                         100,000.00                            39,450.00                            60,550.00 
WQA-CE Risk Reduction 6190                            12,500.00                                          -                              12,500.00 
WQA-CE Voluntary Nutr Contrib 6193                                          -                                            -                                            -   
WQA-CE-Nature Based Solutions 6196                                          -                              47,037.63                          (47,037.63)
WQA-CE-Nutrient WS Permit Comm 6188                      2,200,000.00                      1,100,000.00                      1,100,000.00 
WQA-CE-Technical Support 6181                         100,000.00                                          -                           100,000.00 
WQA-NMSReviewer 6205                            50,000.00                            50,000.00                                          -   

605 Total                      2,572,500.00                      1,236,487.63                      1,336,012.37 
AS-BACWA Admin Expense 6173                                          -                                            -                                            -   
Administrative Support 6178                                          -                              40,013.70                          (40,013.70)
BDO Fund Transfers 6141                                          -                              30,000.00                          (30,000.00)
GBS-Meeting Support-Misc 6172                                          -                                            -                                            -   

606 Total                                          -                              70,013.70                          (70,013.70)
Administrative Support 6178                                          -                                            -                                            -   
BC-BAPPG 6152                                          -                                            -                                            -   
BDO Contract Expenses 6186                                          -                                            -   
Bruce Wolf Scholarship 6210                              4,000.00                                          -                                4,000.00 

610 Total                              4,000.00                                          -                                4,000.00 
612 Passthrough to CASA for air toxics 6212                         500,000.00                                          -                           500,000.00 
612 Total                         500,000.00                                          -                           500,000.00 
Grand Total                      4,110,105.00                      2,369,069.52                      1,741,035.48 

600

602

605

606

610

16



BACWA EXECUTIVE BOARD ACTION REQUEST 

AGENDA NO.: 3      

MEETING DATE:   January 17, 2025 

TITLE: Request for BACWA 3rd Watershed Permit funding commitment - second installment of 
$1,100,000 

☐ RECEIPT ☐ DISCUSSION ☐ RESOLUTION ☒ APPROVAL

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize second installment of payment in the amount of $1,100,000 to San Francisco Estuary Institute 
(SFEI) to comply with the provisions of the 3rd Watershed Permit for FY25. 

SUMMARY 
The Watershed Permit for Nutrients from Municipal Wastewater Dischargers to San Francisco Bay, 
NPDES Permit No. CA 0038873 adopted July 10, 2024, requires the commitment of $2,200,000 per 
year from POTW Dischargers as a collective effort to fund needed scientific studies as part of the 
implementation of the Regional Water Quality Control Board’s Nutrient Management Strategy. The 
commitment is on a permit year basis and began October 1, 2024. BACWA’s role in meeting this 
commitment is to collect the needed funds from its membership and provide those funds for the 
undertaking of the scientific studies. The identification of the studies to be undertaken is through a 
stakeholder governance Steering Committee on which BACWA holds two seats. Several studies are 
ongoing as a result of approvals of programs and projects by the Steering Committee. 

The current requested authorization of $1,100,000 to SFEI will meet second half the obligation for the 
first year of the Discharger’s annual obligation under the five-year Watershed Permit per the above 
schedule. The purpose of delivering the payment in two installments was to ensure continuity in the 
Science Program in FY23. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
This and other payments to fund the scientific studies are collected from the BACWA membership through 
a Nutrient Surcharge that is included on the annual due’s invoice sent to the BACWA members, 
as well as a drawdown of BACWA reserves, as authorized by BACWA’s Executive Board. This payment 
was included in BACWA’s FY25 Budget, approved on April 19, 2024. 

ALTERNATIVES 
1. No alternatives are considered for this item, as the payment is a permit requirement.

Attachments: SFEI Invoice. 

Approved:  __________________________ Date: January 17, 2025 
       Jackie Zipkin, Chair, 
       BACWA Executive Board 

17



Invoice

Bay Area Clean Water Agency
PO Box 24055, MS702
Oakland, CA  94623

1092.25
December 10, 2024 
Project No: 
Invoice No: 1092252

San Francisco Estuary Institute
4911 Central Ave.

Richmond, CA 94804
EIN 94-2951373

1092.25 SF Bay Nutrient Strategy Support FY2025Project
Attn:Lorien Fono

Professional Services from July 01, 2024 to June 30, 2025

Contact Meredith Lofthouse at 510-746-7357 or contracts@sfei.org for questions.

$1,100,000.00

$1,100,000.00

Fee

Total this Invoice 

18



 
 

1 
 

BACWA Communications Plan 

January 2025 

DRAFT 

Background 
The Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA) is a joint powers agency formed by the five largest 

wastewater treatment agencies in the San Francisco Bay Area. Our members include the many 

municipalities and special districts that provide sanitary sewer services to more than 7 million people. As 

identified in our strategic plan, BACWA’s mission is to provide an effective regional voice for clean water 

agencies’ stewardship of the San Francisco Bay’s ecological, community, and economic resources. Prior 

to 2022, that voice was largely directed toward regulators and other professional partners within the 

clean water field, such as scientific institutions and NGOs. The only form of direct public outreach in 

which BACWA has historically engaged pertained to pollution prevention, and was conducted via the 

Bay Area Pollution Prevention Group (BAPPG), a committee of BACWA. 

In 2022, a harmful algal bloom in the San Francisco Bay brought unexpected media attention to the 

region’s clean water community. Following this event, the BACWA Executive Board gave direction to 

BACWA staff to launch a communication initiative by which we can collectively convey messaging to the 

public about the value of wastewater. BACWA issued an RFP, and after a competitive solicitation, 

brought on a consultant team in 2023 to assist BACWA’s public messaging efforts. The consultant team 

has assisted BACWA in conducting media outreach with respect to nutrients, developing materials 

regarding the link between harmful algal blooms and nutrients, and refreshing Baywise.org, BACWA’s 

public-facing website, including the addition of content on the value of clean water infrastructure.  

Statement of Purpose 
BACWA’s public outreach messaging contains the following major themes: 

● Basic information about wastewater treatment - In the Bay Area, wastewater travels through a 

collection system, is cleaned at a wastewater treatment plant, then flows to a local waterway 

(creek, river, bay, or ocean), or is recycled  

● Environmental stewardship - We provide a reliable service to our communities that protects 

public health and the environment  

● Centrality of clean water in a circular economy - Besides conveying and treating wastewater, we 

perform other services such as creating renewable energy, protecting air quality, responsibly 

managing carbon to mitigate climate change, and protecting water resources in the 

communities in which we operate  

● Science-based decision making  - We are scientific experts. Examples:   

o We have been funding and are partners in a regional science program aimed at 

understanding impacts of nutrients in San Francisco Bay  

19

https://bacwa.org/about/strategic_plan/
https://baywise.org/


 
 

2 
 

o We have been funding and are partners in long-term efforts to monitor water quality in 

San Francisco Bay  

o We are using this science to actively plan and implement new projects to protect the 

Bay  

o We participate in innovative projects to monitor COVID and other infectious diseases in 

wastewater   

o We are proactive in addressing source control for compounds of emerging concern such 

as microplastics and PFAS  

● Resilience - We are resilient in the face of multiple regional challenges. We understand the 

multiple hazards posed by climate change and are working to adapt to them 

● Employment.  Working in the wastewater sector can be a valuable and rewarding career. 

Scientists, engineers, operators, maintenance staff and other professionals perform technical 

work that is essential for public health and safety. 

BACWA Committees Responsible for Communication  
Public outreach responsibilities are broadly split between BAPPG, which has conducted public outreach 

on pollution prevention for many years, and BACWA’s new Communications Steering Committee, as 

described below.  

Table 1 below provides a summary of the differences between the two groups. 

Bay Area Pollution Prevention Group   
The Bay Area Pollution Prevention Group (BAPPG) is a long-standing committee whose task is regional 

coordination on pollution prevention. BAPPG meets bi-monthly and is led by a Steering Committee that 

meets monthly to craft meeting agendas and guide consultant teams working on pesticides, public 

outreach, and professional outreach. This work helps fulfill members’ NPDES permit requirements to 

perform pollution prevention for specific pollutants, which smaller agencies may not have the resources 

to carry out individually. BAPPG originated and runs the public-facing website Baywise.org as a landing 

site for its pollution prevention messaging. 

BAPPG participants come from diverse backgrounds: pollution prevention, pretreatment, public 

education, outreach. This diversity of expertise ensures that messaging both reflects the needs of 

wastewater treatment practitioners, and is crafted with the expertise of public affairs and 

communications professionals. BAPPG members also include Regional Water Board staff as well as staff 

from agencies outside of SF Bay Region 2 whose interests align with BAPPG’s work. 

All BAPPG members are welcome at all BAPPG events, including the steering committee. The BACWA 

Executive Board approves BAPPG’s annual budget and is kept apprised of BAPPG activities, but does not 

approve individual outreach campaigns. 

Communications Steering Committee  
The Communications Steering Committee was formed as an ad-hoc group to provide feedback and 

direct work by a communications consultant on efforts pertaining to the value of wastewater. Since 

2023, it has met on an as-needed basis, and has been led by BACWA’s Executive Director. One of the 

20



 
 

3 
 

goals of this Communication Plan is to formalize the Communications Steering Committee as part of 

ongoing BACWA operations. 

Moving forward, the Communications Steering Committee will meet a minimum of two times per year: 

● One meeting in the summer to review work from the previous fiscal year and give the 

communications consultant team direction at the beginning of the fiscal year.  

● One meeting in the winter to scope out the work for the next fiscal year and request budget 

from the BACWA Executive Board. 

For the present, BACWA’s Executive Director will continue to lead the Communications Steering 

Committee, and the Board may provide general direction on communications activities via the Executive 

Director. Members of the BACWA Executive Board who are interested in giving detailed feedback on 

messaging products are welcome to participate in the Communications Steering Committee. 

The Communications Steering Committee is differentiated from BAPPG in that its work does not fulfill an 

NPDES permit requirement and does not include Regional Water Board staff. Although work related to 

pollution prevention will be deferred to BAAPG, it is anticipated that there may be some overlap in the 

purview of the two groups, for example with respect to PFAS messaging. In such cases, the two groups 

will coordinate to ensure the work being performed is not duplicative nor conflicting.  

The Communications Steering Committee will take the lead in developing content for the Baywise.org 

website that is not directly related to pollution prevention, such as the value of wastewater 

infrastructure, nutrients, climate resilience, career opportunities, and other topics as they arise.  

Like BAPPG, all BACWA members are welcome to participate. The Communications Steering Committee 

will benefit from a combination of wastewater practitioners and agency communications professionals. 

Table 1. Summary of differences between BAPPG and Communication Steering Committee 

 BAPPG Communication Steering Committee 

Purview Regulatory, professional, and public 
outreach on Pollution Prevention 

Develops Value of Wastewater 
messaging and other topics outside of 
pollution prevention 

Committee Status Regular BACWA Committee For now, a special ad hoc group but 
may become Committee in the future 

Leadership Chair/Vice Chair and BAPPG 
Steering Committee 

BACWA Executive Director 

Membership BACWA members, R2 staff, POTW 
members outside Bay Area 

BACWA members 

Participation Wastewater practitioners and 
communications professionals 

Wastewater practitioners and 
communications professionals 

Regulatory Role Fulfills NPDES requirement on 
behalf of members 

Does not directly fulfil an NPDES 
requirement 

Board Executive 
Board Oversight 

Board approves budget request 
and is kept apprised of committee 
activities 

Board approves budget request and 
provides general feedback on 
communications direction via the 
Executive Director 

21



 
 

4 
 

Future evolution of BACWA Communications  
As the value of wastewater messaging and the work of the Communications Steering Committee is a 

new initiative for BACWA it is anticipated that this Communication Plan will be updated as needed to 

reflect lessons learned. In the future, as the program matures, the BACWA Board may consider 

incorporating the Communication Steering Committee as a formal BACWA committee with a rotating 

chair and vice chair who will lead communication efforts moving forward, and deemphasizing the 

leadership role of BACWA staff. 

22



 MEMO 
 To:  BACWA 
 From:  Civic Edge Consulting 
 Date:  Dec 2024 

 RE  Social Media Posts for Clean Water Agencies 

 Algal Bloom / Nutrients Social Media Posts 
 The following social media posts are intended to support BACWA member agencies in 
 sharing algal bloom and nutrient messaging with their followers. 

 The graphics are designed for “carouselˮ posts meaning users will swipe through to see 
 multiple images. Each post is designed to stand alone but could be posted as a series 
 over the course of a week or two. 

 Graphic  Post 

 Intro / Overview 

 Do you know what happens when you flush? 🚽🚰🚿 

 When you flush a toilet, wash dishes, or take a 
 shower, that water flows through sewers to a 
 wastewater treatment facility like ours where it is 
 cleaned before being discharged into the Bay. 

 [our org] is one of over 40 clean water agencies 
 across the Bay Area operating 16,000 miles of sewers 
 that collect and clean billions of gallons of water per 
 year! 

 Check out baywise.org to learn more about how clean 
 water agencies in the Bay Area are on the front lines 

23



 Graphic  Post 

 of environmental stewardship of the San Francisco 
 Bay. 

 PDF  Why it Matters 

 Clean water infrastructure including sewage pipes, 
 pumps, wastewater treatment facilities, and all the 
 people who work to support these systems is the 
 foundation of the modern city we know today. Without 
 this essential service, raw sewage from all of our 
 homes and businesses would flow into our waterways 
 and the Bay, polluting this vital natural resource and 
 resulting in unlivable conditions for all of us. 

 Org name] and more than 40 other Bay Area Clean 
 Water Agencies are on the front lines of keeping our 
 communities safe and the San Francisco Bay clean 
 and healthy. 

 Learn more about how clean water infrastructure 
 works in the Bay Area and how you can do your part 
 to keep the Bay healthy at baywise.org 

 2 
24

https://www.sfei.org/sites/default/files/biblio_files/The%20Pulse%20of%20the%20Bay%202022_50%20Years%20after%20the%20Clean%20Water%20Act_highres%20101322.pdf


 Graphic  Post 

 OR 

 3 
25



 Graphic  Post 

 Nutrients in the Bay 

 Nutrients are elements, like phosphorus and nitrogen, 
 in a body of water. In large quantities they can cause 
 excessive algal growth which depletes oxygen in the 
 water and can cause harm to aquatic organisms. 

 Nutrients end up in our Bay Area waterways from 
 stormwater and industry, runoff from agriculture, and 
 from wastewater from the millions of households 
 around the Bay Area. Even though wastewater 
 treatment facilities meet robust, science-based 
 standards for treatment, discharged wastewater still 
 contains some amount of nutrients – mainly from 
 human urine. 

 Approximately 2/3 of the nutrients that are added to 
 the San Francisco Bay come from wastewater created 
 by the community – people living and working around 
 the Bay. The other 1/3 comes from the Sacramento 
 River Delta and stormwater runoff. 

 Historically “normalˮ levels of nitrogen in treated 
 wastewater may now be too much for the Bayʼs 
 ecosystem leading to algal blooms. Bay Area Clean 
 Water Agencies are taking action to address this. 

 Learn more at baywise.org 

 4 
26



 Graphic  Post 

 Climate Change/Nutrients 

 Changes in our climate have widespread effects in 
 ways you may have not considered. The San 
 Francisco Bayʼs resilience to nutrients is being 
 stressed by the changing climate which resulted in 
 harmful algal bloom events in 2022 and 2023. 

 Scientists donʼt know exactly what starts an algal 
 bloom, but once initiated, they are fed by an 
 abundance of nutrients. Naturally occurring nitrogen 
 in treated wastewater provides “foodˮ for the algal 
 species sometimes leading to levels of growth not 
 previously seen. 

 Historically “normalˮ levels of nitrogen in treated 
 wastewater may now be too much for the Bayʼs 
 ecosystem. Bay Area Clean Water Agencies are 
 collaborating regionally on nutrient reduction methods 
 to make the Bay more resilient. 

 Learn more at baywise.org. 

 5 
27



 Graphic  Post 

 What Weʼre Doing #1 

 Did you know that [org name] is one of the Bay Area 
 wastewater treatment facilities that have enhanced 
 nutrient removal? This means weʼve invested in 
 upgrades to our facilities that remove nutrients at 
 higher levels to enhance the quality of water 
 discharged to the San Francisco Bay. 

 Enter one sentence on specifics of what agency is 
 doing related to nutrient reduction] 

 Where possible, our agency is pursuing innovative 
 technologies that can have benefits like lower costs, 
 reducing the footprint for treatment, reducing 
 greenhouse gas emissions, or improving water quality 
 for recycled water. 

 Learn more at baywise.org. 

 What Weʼre Doing #2 

 6 
28



 Graphic  Post 

 For more than a decade, Bay Area Clean Water 
 Agencies, including [org name] have been investing in 
 scientific research to better understand the impacts of 
 nutrients to the Bay while also developing planning 
 tools to support reducing nutrients discharged to the 
 Bay. 

 Org name] and more than 40 other Bay Area Clean 
 Water Agencies are collaborating regionally on 
 nutrient reduction methods to make the Bay more 
 resilient. Additional investments are necessary to 
 remove nutrients in a way that minimizes cost and 
 maximizes benefits to the community. 

 Learn more at baywise.org. 

 7 
29



 MEMO 
 To:  BACWA 
 From:  Civic Edge Consulting 
 Date:  November 2024 
 RE  BACWA Sponsorship Opportunities 

 Sponsorships Opportunities 

 Sponsoring events could be an effective way for BACWA to raise public awareness of the 
 agency's mission and establish positive associations with relevant causes or activities. 
 Sponsorship would likely include signage, speaking opportunities, tabling, etc. Below are 
 options for strategic sponsorships that align with BACWAʼs mission. 

 Environmental and Sustainability Festivals 
 ●  San Francisco Bay Day  - October 2025  annual event  that celebrates the Bay, with 

 educational activities, volunteer events, and family-friendly fun. 
 ●  Earth Day Events: San Francisco, Oakland, Berkeley, San Jose, Marin - April 

 2025  attract individuals passionate about sustainability,  making them a great 
 venue to showcase work in water conservation, pollution prevention, and Bay 
 health. 

 Bay Recreation Events 
 Sponsoring recreation events will expand public awareness of BACWA beyond 
 environmentalists and drive home the importance of clean water infrastructure to the 
 health and usage of the Bay. 

 ●  Escape from Alcatraz - May 31, 2025 
 ●  San Francisco Bay Paddle Race - Winter 2025 

30

https://bayday.org/


 Technology and Innovation Events 
 ●  San Francisco Bay Area Science Festival  - Fall 2025  multi-day event celebrating 

 science, technology, and innovation through exhibits, lectures, hands-on 
 workshops, and family-friendly events. The festival often includes segments on 
 sustainability, water conservation, and climate change. Access to schools, 
 educators, families, and science enthusiasts, while also educating the public on 
 the importance of wastewater treatment and environmental protection. 

 Climate Change and Resilience Conferences 
 ●  National Adaptation Forum NAF – West Coast Event:  National Adaptation Forum 

 brings together professionals working on climate change adaptation to share 
 strategies and solutions for building resilience to climate impacts. While it is a 
 national event, regional events often focus on climate impacts specific to places 
 like the Bay Area. 

 ●  State of the Estuary Conference - 
 ●  North Bay Watershed Association Meeting - 

 Youth and Educational Events 

 ●  Science and Sustainability Fairs  : Sponsoring science  fairs, STEM programs, or 
 sustainability-themed events in local schools (such as those in San Francisco 
 Unified School District or Berkeley Unified) 

 ●  Exploratorium  or the  California Academy of Sciences  partnership. 

 Charity Events and Fundraisers 
 Supporting nonprofits who advocate for Bay health communicates BACWA is a partner 
 not an adversary to this mission. 

 ●  Save the Bay events 
 ●  SF Baykeeper events 

 Cultural Events Focused on Environmental Awareness 
 ●  San Francisco Green Film Festival:  often feature documentaries  and shorts about 

 environmental issues, including the Bay and water. 

 2 
31

https://www.bayareasciencefestival.org/


 Public Transportation Signage Campaign 

 ●  BART, SMART Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit), or Caltrain educational 
 campaign :  riff on “what happens after you flush contentˮ and expose millions of 
 Bay Area residents to the importance of clean water infrastructure. 

 3 
32



Trending: French bistro closing | Pickleball drama | Fire tracker | Weather forecast | Best steak restaurants | Benio� interview | New 2025 l

BAY AREA // HEALTH

By Hannah Norman

Dec 10, 2024

‘More widespread’: Toxic ‘forever chemicals’ now found in rural
California drinking water

SALE! 6 Months for 99¢ Sign in

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 1/11
33

https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=C6m-bfYFYZ8mYDqnY6tkP6ZCqmAGFtsuxe8TA35-ZE7_hHhABILvjhyRgyfb4hoCAoBmgAZ6r3sw9yAEC4AIAqAMByAMIqgSMA0_Qau0Nj-H8va9wT2lv2E5_kWZetIpgcdajWX0mUlVKWiPzX7d1wLrOYtC7Hxpnb7-mnIkqhClLzWDPdQw5taZeOWMc5aiwM7fyRKfF2zVsDMl0JnUCmPj-haNdjaIHl6dF6xCCn7wWZqTxpJRiuBErG_tzh0ctE0VInQQK4wOEcGy9exgpY_Y58jNtQKnX_s-52ptdlXoAyw72Qlgtkb7unkRrMScax-1LrKLAiBJzZrpFbeb78B2rDUOFOXpuRFIRtDXAjtA3NVMAFL0NXy2xRw0pNftzzVLj49kabiYTDNnLq2h9I1j2r34RLHVkbpGXscjpGnZ5M-wEOyky0FbRljilIgc2opbKP9-7JVK76RarX80D7eGzCkZyuEzPMvyfX3DPK84Duz07nkRk1Cck-25ZlhZk-EOXWlqMMqi8UlQa95I4caSAUMRMmlYfo9JI6kExI0YWPzfaXh2pcZicplmAag5-HovHiH1XgAA5KM-5H9lkMXAPoALucNImi02zSFB9pkQiqmfZzsAE5b6W19gE4AQBiAXDmsGQT6AGAoAHnuOurBioB9XJG6gH2baxAqgHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH8OAbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeaBqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB8qpsQKoB-ulsQKoB-qxsQKoB5m1sQKoB763sQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCsIgGEQARgdMgKKAjoQm9CAgICABIDAgICAoIiAAki9_cE6WJ3n4u7jnYoDsQmr84QdBkkzxoAKA5gLAcgLAdoMEQoLEMDrt57Xu4iy8AESAgEDqg0CVVPIDQHiDRMIrJ7j7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoT6g0TCOqD5O7jnYoDFSmsOgUdaYgKE9gTDNAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgBuhcCOAGyGAkSAuJOGAIiAQDQGAHoGAE&ae=1&ase=2&gclid=EAIaIQobChMIicvk7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoTEAEYASAAEgK_SPD_BwE&num=1&cid=CAQSTQCa7L7d6_KmP2MhJrXG4CiMRJ3tWeDiiYEfZXIY_W9s1NaFkLyslfQUCr0HDuejtme3aRMvbED7xyauvokwgqswdw-m0kqVfDKKLaJZGAE&sig=AOD64_0eGxXfHJPL6S5l2vewNOLQYI75eA&client=ca-pub-1301581561755234&rf=5&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&uap=UACH(platform)&uapv=UACH(platformVersion)&uaa=UACH(architecture)&uam=UACH(model)&uafv=UACH(uaFullVersion)&uab=UACH(bitness)&uaw=UACH(wow64)&uafvl=UACH(fullVersionList)&nb=2&adurl=https://www2.enrichyourfood.com/cid/7013w000002Dc9kAAC%3Futm_content%3Dsite_source_%7Bsourceid%7D_placement_www.sfchronicle.com%26utm_term%3Dad_id_714705019117_adset_id_161244094309_campaign_id_21241023811_%26subid1%3DEAIaIQobChMIicvk7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoTEAEYASAAEgK_SPD_BwE%26subid2%3Dd%26subid3%3D%7Bwbraid%7D%26subid4%3D%7Bgbraid%7D%26gad_source%3D5%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIicvk7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoTEAEYASAAEgK_SPD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=C6m-bfYFYZ8mYDqnY6tkP6ZCqmAGFtsuxe8TA35-ZE7_hHhABILvjhyRgyfb4hoCAoBmgAZ6r3sw9yAEC4AIAqAMByAMIqgSMA0_Qau0Nj-H8va9wT2lv2E5_kWZetIpgcdajWX0mUlVKWiPzX7d1wLrOYtC7Hxpnb7-mnIkqhClLzWDPdQw5taZeOWMc5aiwM7fyRKfF2zVsDMl0JnUCmPj-haNdjaIHl6dF6xCCn7wWZqTxpJRiuBErG_tzh0ctE0VInQQK4wOEcGy9exgpY_Y58jNtQKnX_s-52ptdlXoAyw72Qlgtkb7unkRrMScax-1LrKLAiBJzZrpFbeb78B2rDUOFOXpuRFIRtDXAjtA3NVMAFL0NXy2xRw0pNftzzVLj49kabiYTDNnLq2h9I1j2r34RLHVkbpGXscjpGnZ5M-wEOyky0FbRljilIgc2opbKP9-7JVK76RarX80D7eGzCkZyuEzPMvyfX3DPK84Duz07nkRk1Cck-25ZlhZk-EOXWlqMMqi8UlQa95I4caSAUMRMmlYfo9JI6kExI0YWPzfaXh2pcZicplmAag5-HovHiH1XgAA5KM-5H9lkMXAPoALucNImi02zSFB9pkQiqmfZzsAE5b6W19gE4AQBiAXDmsGQT6AGAoAHnuOurBioB9XJG6gH2baxAqgHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH8OAbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeaBqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB8qpsQKoB-ulsQKoB-qxsQKoB5m1sQKoB763sQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCsIgGEQARgdMgKKAjoQm9CAgICABIDAgICAoIiAAki9_cE6WJ3n4u7jnYoDsQmr84QdBkkzxoAKA5gLAcgLAdoMEQoLEMDrt57Xu4iy8AESAgEDqg0CVVPIDQHiDRMIrJ7j7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoT6g0TCOqD5O7jnYoDFSmsOgUdaYgKE9gTDNAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgBuhcCOAGyGAkSAuJOGAIiAQDQGAHoGAE&ae=1&ase=2&gclid=EAIaIQobChMIicvk7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoTEAEYASAAEgK_SPD_BwE&num=1&cid=CAQSTQCa7L7d6_KmP2MhJrXG4CiMRJ3tWeDiiYEfZXIY_W9s1NaFkLyslfQUCr0HDuejtme3aRMvbED7xyauvokwgqswdw-m0kqVfDKKLaJZGAE&sig=AOD64_0eGxXfHJPL6S5l2vewNOLQYI75eA&client=ca-pub-1301581561755234&rf=5&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&uap=UACH(platform)&uapv=UACH(platformVersion)&uaa=UACH(architecture)&uam=UACH(model)&uafv=UACH(uaFullVersion)&uab=UACH(bitness)&uaw=UACH(wow64)&uafvl=UACH(fullVersionList)&nb=2&adurl=https://www2.enrichyourfood.com/cid/7013w000002Dc9kAAC%3Futm_content%3Dsite_source_%7Bsourceid%7D_placement_www.sfchronicle.com%26utm_term%3Dad_id_714705019117_adset_id_161244094309_campaign_id_21241023811_%26subid1%3DEAIaIQobChMIicvk7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoTEAEYASAAEgK_SPD_BwE%26subid2%3Dd%26subid3%3D%7Bwbraid%7D%26subid4%3D%7Bgbraid%7D%26gad_source%3D5%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIicvk7uOdigMVKaw6BR1piAoTEAEYASAAEgK_SPD_BwE
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?source=display&reasons=AbDGNSG3iqg1FQMJMQUR1jG8rkvxCFwNBLdqZA5BXp9xwgYqhaDPRSIQ9pe1fBwm0K7BHTEpoOkEvi_tpSUUhIztjDHTiVDuedbN9TFsfHQk39A-IRRbn5IckWDQospjV3VriYXEXhsqTr8JmDvDifIhCPy_HOlsl2pvnhI5XupLYi9v_JN6kqHPu78c-Bn0_QgF2YGhdvL8vYVSFTLCriccX3Rn1aBBx5UHXWp9rvb5Sl1laPlw0lGBTGn5NH14xOV9cMZtWUzIacGDuzcNHX8ZrSZ8wtzIz7kieb7U6EbKJUZjXMLzETIcY1G7AS_RmMf5YK8hvqF5F5hWyVigwYkEwFV3ZoIZ20EqDFmHGpmfbX0tHhr9ouPWkgMIV4nXmwVxjlNJsQvIMF9MhOWNcbMDGmBvFdfiRlUC4Bifh5xpB5lYYpWDJIA4TGgFpq_1qKS09_F58nnG7rK750Kpb5DJjxXrCGPOQc_THeqChp4my_vUJ8FKu1xMNkYOX1ZUD-q07UM-t5MIYLLRCHLWaP4Iq-JwNU_P63ySoTmVKqt9cbAsT18sVg27hobndOjFSKSO_Bdie4KfkYDjzogUkcbIk9hGFusrYfsghVIlRd2qoJ-X8_JViZOSnVr0IFywuVIK7WKYxtzYLukOO76S3ocrJSSz6hi8yGEYIhcgfgGIFNjcjQSEzaGUNkHTm0EXa1dKojn2-wLlgelM9Ea2XO5wm0zN2JhWWz2qSDvyJDprQW_dkEx2uKidOdQiX4yqQcfgG5CPcrR4Pl1AG9CU7k5BMS9-3n7qWKm1-VLIF6QwS4ErFG63c97EmCnKHCdJbrJufO8yWO1XqGVVKkGxzJ0Hy5ry8V9b7J-if57XQ3TctYL6dnXYeBwwHO8F54KCrytCfMJXGGd_1c2nOtHH7A2JbO7W3Hn1-vBtQnPZLKSA5NVVJhw70zfK3kXbFfcxWcoB66uysjWlD493BHOVk7GOkb1mQlGwVm5RDAn2mw0SuAlTjO6wfSU0VblcOA4VJC9cUrtsYJM12qCjJcAs0f8l28e9hlqsx6-MDMCzdI5lFUgGJmDK4x0GekZ3QubZa8gavEQ_H0lnf3hUUsQ15gTYxfP7pUhVCwAbq5hMAhEZfUhg4RnhnsoQ2aTq-ZAFdJirqpCIM6lbICDxTojS68C_qpfVMYi7clz0VC3aLfp-7qHSFD74iufdeAv5CTwLbgn3kTzbx__Xe-sCGIfzN-Dgni734QWM-ANXa8x5xQ15Yt1aoBviBCWmr509QN7fHnlmVoIdfIN0lntlk95RZHutk6bvdO8Ioa4KzrOuRdtZhO25Q8MeXmp9jPtVk8AfGiVAe-jUpI9jCk4To7lkPG1_baHf2rm6p7P5NJZ7IAQyZzlwH5O2C2KRVGKwoKH0WmrzIKCFZ-3lL--E8vmP_5kcZjfDc8hG-JXm2fC2_lH9VwYDHg3YK4_gjwrRwkZaS_TkOXZ4xpHX4zPTJfc4hbzTjkNhe5b3ErHjiKb4E90qkJYd16TzqcTY1PqiliR3z5uf5Qme1qA6EOergtOZgxHZI45VcVRqSdYetuKQqOx5Fe0RaNaOr6LKbbdpulPx8q6zA8bhSX8UUiL7MOYrdUTj-R0UQQtf4OEzkIApJ-UOGIbX0Xfah9loe9fQ2zMq1p6V5LH0n4ynJmPD1fS75J22jelvZYl-TGe5n9dMQUm6WdbO9ZdK_e5KahgAqGfQzYNDjzK_mUCNM1OSReFkTm_h6L5mrqETbDxyJP0iwTnTDbpwRyzWWmBpX3XY8ocBWiQV472RRfAaE8gMsu9kwMqIxys575QKOyWQipsntmKdNt6wTqQLzLUAleXw4Ke8uELX7r5qZ3hGHeE5nkbfhOuYnHWw57WEWURDz4c5qN3gexmsjHg7heMfewI4F28dHuov0HOi5zHahU4QP6-fUjzmYq1MOEz2DEfBBwbd8S_tr1OY4dWeyiTsUgZtFoRfrd33fvirkdUhfOVAf5-BWVg2OWx3UHDwAlUSivPznQyJ78d3ugCD8ELexCNnY_bPKNhn2j7nXChLtNWGpseD5sT5Sy6atDUGuqKpVK0I4tOLzV6hRjJqpfg6du-5-eiGwHNebGrm16vEzkP-mEvh72Eht8hIydIimN4mRql6YLa_BMz3dRuU22-ptJT1ENTuJOQBLRCm2RmCvySX-NEhb4hzphZDEV_fAuq_N5GWOJ-uu1avh56qfTvAT5MIRwQtdgICwaUNbxgxGu151XTLA2lFCVqqFp_mWoPJUG7f-7VpMcTDvHfvrCsWysMZ18o8QVyC-NiYfEEPOleoeY_sirtiK_2uCdik1IwSx-l_daaG_VdiNp-sR83DDIXpv1HrXTCc&opi=122715837
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?source=display&reasons=AbDGNSG3iqg1FQMJMQUR1jG8rkvxCFwNBLdqZA5BXp9xwgYqhaDPRSIQ9pe1fBwm0K7BHTEpoOkEvi_tpSUUhIztjDHTiVDuedbN9TFsfHQk39A-IRRbn5IckWDQospjV3VriYXEXhsqTr8JmDvDifIhCPy_HOlsl2pvnhI5XupLYi9v_JN6kqHPu78c-Bn0_QgF2YGhdvL8vYVSFTLCriccX3Rn1aBBx5UHXWp9rvb5Sl1laPlw0lGBTGn5NH14xOV9cMZtWUzIacGDuzcNHX8ZrSZ8wtzIz7kieb7U6EbKJUZjXMLzETIcY1G7AS_RmMf5YK8hvqF5F5hWyVigwYkEwFV3ZoIZ20EqDFmHGpmfbX0tHhr9ouPWkgMIV4nXmwVxjlNJsQvIMF9MhOWNcbMDGmBvFdfiRlUC4Bifh5xpB5lYYpWDJIA4TGgFpq_1qKS09_F58nnG7rK750Kpb5DJjxXrCGPOQc_THeqChp4my_vUJ8FKu1xMNkYOX1ZUD-q07UM-t5MIYLLRCHLWaP4Iq-JwNU_P63ySoTmVKqt9cbAsT18sVg27hobndOjFSKSO_Bdie4KfkYDjzogUkcbIk9hGFusrYfsghVIlRd2qoJ-X8_JViZOSnVr0IFywuVIK7WKYxtzYLukOO76S3ocrJSSz6hi8yGEYIhcgfgGIFNjcjQSEzaGUNkHTm0EXa1dKojn2-wLlgelM9Ea2XO5wm0zN2JhWWz2qSDvyJDprQW_dkEx2uKidOdQiX4yqQcfgG5CPcrR4Pl1AG9CU7k5BMS9-3n7qWKm1-VLIF6QwS4ErFG63c97EmCnKHCdJbrJufO8yWO1XqGVVKkGxzJ0Hy5ry8V9b7J-if57XQ3TctYL6dnXYeBwwHO8F54KCrytCfMJXGGd_1c2nOtHH7A2JbO7W3Hn1-vBtQnPZLKSA5NVVJhw70zfK3kXbFfcxWcoB66uysjWlD493BHOVk7GOkb1mQlGwVm5RDAn2mw0SuAlTjO6wfSU0VblcOA4VJC9cUrtsYJM12qCjJcAs0f8l28e9hlqsx6-MDMCzdI5lFUgGJmDK4x0GekZ3QubZa8gavEQ_H0lnf3hUUsQ15gTYxfP7pUhVCwAbq5hMAhEZfUhg4RnhnsoQ2aTq-ZAFdJirqpCIM6lbICDxTojS68C_qpfVMYi7clz0VC3aLfp-7qHSFD74iufdeAv5CTwLbgn3kTzbx__Xe-sCGIfzN-Dgni734QWM-ANXa8x5xQ15Yt1aoBviBCWmr509QN7fHnlmVoIdfIN0lntlk95RZHutk6bvdO8Ioa4KzrOuRdtZhO25Q8MeXmp9jPtVk8AfGiVAe-jUpI9jCk4To7lkPG1_baHf2rm6p7P5NJZ7IAQyZzlwH5O2C2KRVGKwoKH0WmrzIKCFZ-3lL--E8vmP_5kcZjfDc8hG-JXm2fC2_lH9VwYDHg3YK4_gjwrRwkZaS_TkOXZ4xpHX4zPTJfc4hbzTjkNhe5b3ErHjiKb4E90qkJYd16TzqcTY1PqiliR3z5uf5Qme1qA6EOergtOZgxHZI45VcVRqSdYetuKQqOx5Fe0RaNaOr6LKbbdpulPx8q6zA8bhSX8UUiL7MOYrdUTj-R0UQQtf4OEzkIApJ-UOGIbX0Xfah9loe9fQ2zMq1p6V5LH0n4ynJmPD1fS75J22jelvZYl-TGe5n9dMQUm6WdbO9ZdK_e5KahgAqGfQzYNDjzK_mUCNM1OSReFkTm_h6L5mrqETbDxyJP0iwTnTDbpwRyzWWmBpX3XY8ocBWiQV472RRfAaE8gMsu9kwMqIxys575QKOyWQipsntmKdNt6wTqQLzLUAleXw4Ke8uELX7r5qZ3hGHeE5nkbfhOuYnHWw57WEWURDz4c5qN3gexmsjHg7heMfewI4F28dHuov0HOi5zHahU4QP6-fUjzmYq1MOEz2DEfBBwbd8S_tr1OY4dWeyiTsUgZtFoRfrd33fvirkdUhfOVAf5-BWVg2OWx3UHDwAlUSivPznQyJ78d3ugCD8ELexCNnY_bPKNhn2j7nXChLtNWGpseD5sT5Sy6atDUGuqKpVK0I4tOLzV6hRjJqpfg6du-5-eiGwHNebGrm16vEzkP-mEvh72Eht8hIydIimN4mRql6YLa_BMz3dRuU22-ptJT1ENTuJOQBLRCm2RmCvySX-NEhb4hzphZDEV_fAuq_N5GWOJ-uu1avh56qfTvAT5MIRwQtdgICwaUNbxgxGu151XTLA2lFCVqqFp_mWoPJUG7f-7VpMcTDvHfvrCsWysMZ18o8QVyC-NiYfEEPOleoeY_sirtiK_2uCdik1IwSx-l_daaG_VdiNp-sR83DDIXpv1HrXTCc&opi=122715837
https://www.sfchronicle.com/food/restaurants/article/mathilde-french-bistro-closing-19969962.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/sf/article/sf-pickleball-noise-lawsuit-19969970.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/projects/california-fire-map/
https://www.sfchronicle.com/weather-forecast/article/bay-area-temperatures-cold-frost-19969351.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/projects/best-steak-restaurants-sf-bay-area/
https://www.sfchronicle.com/sf/article/salesforce-marc-benioff-trump-19953758.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/california/article/new-workplace-laws-2025-19961910.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/
https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=137086563877087&link=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfchronicle.com%2Fhealth%2Farticle%2Fpfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3Dfacebook.com%26utm_medium%3Dreferral&name=%E2%80%98More%20widespread%E2%80%99%3A%20Toxic%20%E2%80%98forever%20chemicals%E2%80%99%20now%20found%20in%20rural%20California%20drinking%20water&description=Researchers%20have%20found%20toxic%20%E2%80%9Cforever%20chemicals%E2%80%9D%20in%20drinking%20water%20wells%20dotting...&picture=https%3A%2F%2Fs.hdnux.com%2Fphotos%2F01%2F46%2F26%2F74%2F26832667%2F8%2FrawImage.jpg&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfchronicle.com%2Fhealth%2Farticle%2Fpfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3DUTMSOURCE%26utm_medium%3DUTMMEDIUM
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfchronicle.com%2Fhealth%2Farticle%2Fpfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3Dt.co%26utm_medium%3Dreferral&text=%E2%80%98More%20widespread%E2%80%99%3A%20Toxic%20%E2%80%98forever%20chemicals%E2%80%99%20now%20found%20in%20rural%20California%20drinking%20water&via=sfchronicle
mailto:?subject=Your%20friend%20has%20shared%20a%20San%20Francisco%20Chronicle%20link%20with%20you%3A&body=%E2%80%98More%20widespread%E2%80%99%3A%20Toxic%20%E2%80%98forever%20chemicals%E2%80%99%20now%20found%20in%20rural%20California%20drinking%20water%0A%0Ahttps%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfchronicle.com%2Fhealth%2Farticle%2Fpfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php%3Futm_campaign%3DCMS%2520Sharing%2520Tools%2520(Premium)%26utm_source%3Dshare-by-email%26utm_medium%3Demail%0A%0AResearchers%20have%20found%20toxic%20%E2%80%9Cforever%20chemicals%E2%80%9D%20in%20drinking%20water%20wells%20dotting...%0A%0AThis%20message%20was%20sent%20via%20San%20Francisco%20Chronicle
https://www.sfchronicle.com/
https://www.sfchronicle.com/signup?bcvid=00e09fb5-7d71-4fa3-ad7b-af827044ac03&bcpurpose=Subscribe


‘More widespread’: Toxic ‘forever chemicals’ now found in rural California drinking water
0:00 / 11:19 1x

 Everlit

Juana Valle never imagined she’d be scared to drink water from her tap or eat fresh eggs and walnuts when she

bought her 5-acre farm in San Juan Bautista, Calif., three years ago. Escaping city life and growing her own

food was a dream come true for the 52-year-old.

Then Valle began to suspect water from her well was making her sick.

SALE! 6 Months for 99¢

ACT NOW

“Even if everything is organic, it doesn’t matter if the water underground is not clean,” Valle said.

ADVERTISEMENT
Article continues below this ad

This year, researchers found worrisome levels of chemicals called PFAS in her well water. Exposure to PFAS, a

group of thousands of compounds, has been linked to health problems including cancer, decreased response

to vaccines, and low birth weight, according to a federally funded report by the National Academies of

Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. Valle worries that eating food from her farm and drinking the water,

found also to contain arsenic, are to blame for health issues she’s experienced recently.

The researchers suspect the toxic chemicals could have made their way into Valle’s water through nearby

agricultural operations, which may have used PFAS-laced fertilizers made from dried sludge from wastewater

treatment plants, or pesticides found to contain the compounds.

Researchers have found toxic PFAS “forever chemicals” in drinking water wells dotting California’s rural farming regions, far from known contamination
sources. Juana Valle’s well in San Juan Bautista, Calif. has shown potentially hazardous levels of the toxic chemicals.
Hannah Norman/KFF Health News

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 2/11
34

https://everlit.audio/
https://everlit.audio/
https://subscription.sfchronicle.com/checkout/1979/4012?siteID=SFC&origin=inline&variant=endofyear_2024&returnUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfchronicle.com%2Fhealth%2Farticle%2Fpfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php&bcvid=21db6df0-51aa-4e4c-83b2-abe3fcbc12aa&bcpurpose=Promo
https://mountain.com/relevantads
https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/
https://www.nationalacademies.org/our-work/guidance-on-pfas-testing-and-health-outcomes


The chemicals have unexpectedly turned up in well water in rural farmland far from known contamination

sites, like industrial areas, airports, and military bases. Agricultural communities already face the dangers of

heavy metals and nitrates contaminating their tap water. Now researchers worry that PFAS could further harm

farmworkers and communities of color disproportionately. They have called for more testing.

“It seems like it’s an even more widespread problem than we realized,” said Clare Pace, a researcher at the

University of California-Berkeley who is examining possible exposure from PFAS-contaminated pesticides.

ADVERTISEMENT
Article continues below this ad

Not long after she moved to her farm in San Juan Bautista, Juana Valle started feeling sick. Medical tests revealed her blood had high levels of heavy metals,
especially arsenic, she says. She plans to get herself tested for PFAS soon, too.
Hannah Norman/KFF Health News

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 3/11
35

https://kffhealthnews.org/news/article/california-climate-bond-ballot-proposition-water/
https://pubs.acs.org/doi/10.1021/acsestwater.3c00845


Stubborn Sludge

Concerns are mounting nationwide about PFAS contamination transferred through the common practice of

spreading solid waste from sewage treatment across farm �elds. O�cials in Maine outlawed spreading

“biosolids,” as some sewage byproducts are called, on farms and other land in 2022. A study published in

August found higher levels of PFAS in the blood of people in Maine who drank water from wells next to farms

where biosolids were spread.

Contamination in sewage mostly comes from industrial discharges. But household sludge also contains PFAS

because the chemicals are prevalent in personal care products and other commonly used items, said Sarah

Alexander, executive director of the Maine Organic Farmers and Gardeners Association.

“We found that farms that were spread with sludge in the ’80s are still contaminated today,” Alexander said.

The �rst PFAS, or per�uoroalkyl and poly�uoroalkyl substances, were invented in the 1940s to prevent stains

and sticking in household products. Today, PFAS chemicals are used in anything from cookware to cosmetics

to some types of �re�ghting foam — ending up in land�lls and wastewater treatment plants. Known as

“forever chemicals” because they don’t break down in the environment, PFAS are so toxic that in water they

are measured in parts per trillion, equivalent to one drop in 20 Olympic-size swimming pools. The chemicals

accumulate in the human body.

More For You

Should people test for exposure to ‘forever chemicals’? CDC o�ers doctors new guidance

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 4/11
36

https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cfm15e4FYZ5rHLfPM998PqNLMqQLbhIqEfPmWkrPTE-e7wbjBCRABILvjhyRgyfb4hoCAoBmgAcisqIIpyAECqQINVcYq1KexPuACAKgDAcgDCKoEgwNP0Nr8ajD9GpfvHaYVC3IfTbLhhUVWUDNQpeVZQ-QEnQqDB0Zdhbl5P2vCI-Ta5H_iLekEpvqghgBcNnB7AcGRZconcD2TvtH8dhPIgCsFExJjNCoOdojns6suprJOZncT8Zi80Fi6sBynYiw3hEVINFa-nhLamymvn5OhbwHHU7vFgncswiB7dVfaA0PRFWXmzXMGkFRCDixjSAx8nhQsIP0Xf_jpbePdVItGn7N273QyiI9Op1BzTHeYxvgN_Z4F7UDzD7rTYMnwdE2qwf7XMgwDcwZ8872jvf6OSPw2bi_qjhVXjmV6btf_H3oRuURnNp-qIE2YoZh4oLt2qnfNvc3PU-EFMVxMSdzRuxowJ0qzh0K_CmXKEIAWnxXOao9I-sT56vU4iWDPEZOlgYFIaNpEYl3f9PonE4r-dGOrjBBEhqbmOBDIktObVoaS4YQHaD86BOWZKFAkcDz-eKM9yHuzVMMUj2Z6NSoM8SHn7NlO0EI2_AErWTsvMDMIFXwPY23ABJDFr9mZBeAEAYgFuN74-VGgBgKAB8jk-OEDqAfVyRuoB9m2sQKoB6a-G6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB_DgG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAeDrbECqAfgvbECqAf_nrECqAffn7ECqAfKqbECqAfrpbECqAfqsbECqAeZtbECqAe-t7ECqAf4wrECqAf7wrEC2AcB0ggrCIBhEAEYHTICigI6EJvQgICAgASAwICAgKCIgAJIvf3BOljY3Yfu452KA7EJeyAH-cap1_yACgOYCwHICwHaDBAKChDw3tjMt4jFj0USAgEDqg0CVVPIDQHiDRMI35CI7uOdigMVc-b9BR0oKTMl6g0TCOvoiO7jnYoDFXPm_QUdKCkzJdgTDdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgBuhcCOAGyGAkSArFpGAIiAQDQGAE&ae=1&ase=2&gclid=EAIaIQobChMI2vCJ7uOdigMVc-b9BR0oKTMlEAEYASAAEgJGUvD_BwE&num=1&cid=CAQSTQCa7L7d1OEhWRk2w_fPIRZFAvGVG4z4ZLO4AbTLT1vkgQ9gV5wW6HMejN4VduS9-fx078LTy8elHDq95PwB89IraixVocOT_Z04eeIRGAE&sig=AOD64_39dxxfHgj_lXGQ_VbJFzt1-OxKdQ&client=ca-pub-1301581561755234&rf=5&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&uap=UACH(platform)&uapv=UACH(platformVersion)&uaa=UACH(architecture)&uam=UACH(model)&uafv=UACH(uaFullVersion)&uab=UACH(bitness)&uaw=UACH(wow64)&uafvl=UACH(fullVersionList)&nb=2&adurl=https://wisey-adhd.com/adhd-quiz%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dgdn%26utm_campaign%3D21999005496%26utm_term%3D178697003664%26utm_content%3D724903055708%26gad_source%3D5%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI2vCJ7uOdigMVc-b9BR0oKTMlEAEYASAAEgJGUvD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=Cfm15e4FYZ5rHLfPM998PqNLMqQLbhIqEfPmWkrPTE-e7wbjBCRABILvjhyRgyfb4hoCAoBmgAcisqIIpyAECqQINVcYq1KexPuACAKgDAcgDCKoEgwNP0Nr8ajD9GpfvHaYVC3IfTbLhhUVWUDNQpeVZQ-QEnQqDB0Zdhbl5P2vCI-Ta5H_iLekEpvqghgBcNnB7AcGRZconcD2TvtH8dhPIgCsFExJjNCoOdojns6suprJOZncT8Zi80Fi6sBynYiw3hEVINFa-nhLamymvn5OhbwHHU7vFgncswiB7dVfaA0PRFWXmzXMGkFRCDixjSAx8nhQsIP0Xf_jpbePdVItGn7N273QyiI9Op1BzTHeYxvgN_Z4F7UDzD7rTYMnwdE2qwf7XMgwDcwZ8872jvf6OSPw2bi_qjhVXjmV6btf_H3oRuURnNp-qIE2YoZh4oLt2qnfNvc3PU-EFMVxMSdzRuxowJ0qzh0K_CmXKEIAWnxXOao9I-sT56vU4iWDPEZOlgYFIaNpEYl3f9PonE4r-dGOrjBBEhqbmOBDIktObVoaS4YQHaD86BOWZKFAkcDz-eKM9yHuzVMMUj2Z6NSoM8SHn7NlO0EI2_AErWTsvMDMIFXwPY23ABJDFr9mZBeAEAYgFuN74-VGgBgKAB8jk-OEDqAfVyRuoB9m2sQKoB6a-G6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB_DgG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAeDrbECqAfgvbECqAf_nrECqAffn7ECqAfKqbECqAfrpbECqAfqsbECqAeZtbECqAe-t7ECqAf4wrECqAf7wrEC2AcB0ggrCIBhEAEYHTICigI6EJvQgICAgASAwICAgKCIgAJIvf3BOljY3Yfu452KA7EJeyAH-cap1_yACgOYCwHICwHaDBAKChDw3tjMt4jFj0USAgEDqg0CVVPIDQHiDRMI35CI7uOdigMVc-b9BR0oKTMl6g0TCOvoiO7jnYoDFXPm_QUdKCkzJdgTDdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgBuhcCOAGyGAkSArFpGAIiAQDQGAE&ae=1&ase=2&gclid=EAIaIQobChMI2vCJ7uOdigMVc-b9BR0oKTMlEAEYASAAEgJGUvD_BwE&num=1&cid=CAQSTQCa7L7d1OEhWRk2w_fPIRZFAvGVG4z4ZLO4AbTLT1vkgQ9gV5wW6HMejN4VduS9-fx078LTy8elHDq95PwB89IraixVocOT_Z04eeIRGAE&sig=AOD64_39dxxfHgj_lXGQ_VbJFzt1-OxKdQ&client=ca-pub-1301581561755234&rf=5&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&uap=UACH(platform)&uapv=UACH(platformVersion)&uaa=UACH(architecture)&uam=UACH(model)&uafv=UACH(uaFullVersion)&uab=UACH(bitness)&uaw=UACH(wow64)&uafvl=UACH(fullVersionList)&nb=2&adurl=https://wisey-adhd.com/adhd-quiz%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dgdn%26utm_campaign%3D21999005496%26utm_term%3D178697003664%26utm_content%3D724903055708%26gad_source%3D5%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI2vCJ7uOdigMVc-b9BR0oKTMlEAEYASAAEgJGUvD_BwE
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?source=display&reasons=AbDGNSGM1fDu4DudDq6VXJrd57pt9dwDIknELlfSbs9dxjciZuuRqUgRsPBPLqQs8bNEJAC2-Rs-69EUur1yBARKYKVEco-7wN-IMchtvEb6yF-D2YjJ_xCuXaCLLkkosDEaPG_X0EWJtfIYuKwWYGzFweAbqlCI28nuhQFfHhP9_h25WkYcl5MTpy60sFgDGwV6P7zqMvMd9uGveLVsDbPi_cF4fg35WBYWJsOqTYpHhlkpduhEamfGKXyDhLX7OKsKHIN-Ej6KS315Kn4Q1pos-jTcyF6nG4Aoi-X9j2H57pC-SDTt687JwRuPF4qkwL63P6Men-CoH-jbjzbPX631wZnSoDECb8GKplT6ETmMWCLHKxBKi5v8u9xP9sZ72RKoDVhDxthp-AAVoHEG5qzVpfgq__cCw8dPj_gl3rN7BbTNiV-5NeAYcfmBqSV5njEg6ys3-t36d0Bsoe2aHUrpeJ1l9CaX6VAj0wm1ymizC8yolzoODe7FrnUCZNmqDGJlG5R3q0Scuoemo5riu3Wb8OJP1L1gSHyeHswbdF4neupA4ilXJYJ1ofkNOC6pxM9WXio9ewJnL1sdYwYL47kDHugOxDzaNKcrWjjci1gNX-l1m1LKBrjsODFEOz4JNwp7UUcPKx6ZRxVaVmgnJ7XEgoGS5eGGjoI6W68LEG-JDhGwzzFn8mCm5opF7b7E5oE6IkCisTGH1eB_why-CMa6if00WdqAvtxNwq7ryXrQBcDTeTpaw95OXuNigPUU9MLhTyQm4xaph16nVJXQC-IWLl0u3cDsuI3-n2RKqoKQL59peTskdLrlE_UPJpY28r_AfJ7UUWTmRpJo536Ft3h3orLC4ymXcHMCo_jlef1FyRq-OjF8ZOflueoKN7VmApqGBnwA5RSXLC6rEeC7gJL0q4hD0n92jXcRjns4p_JsMWNtYBXOjA0-g64vx_dXw8v6gsifoePRobN1zwo8ENHGXraSQ5n3-2WNAmoNAVcbi8-13-1XErkMxcefNS9G76KuqHxr5U_ke5NeCHvu_SgCCMZymAn5W65FiCP-EBQMSbsouY1bJJ14w-NYINMSGuO4mX_CcZGpJ6dy3m-29mmDIhx3TbOe-rvkS4WKIrCnGN5eG9Fx-8DbnKjp_0vuF6rloTJmUz7zGdn9HfWWMQzZRDa3rA5XfgYn-CB1SykqdjlUZ0f3L68-CkRZGNFPEF6b6GtJApEVtO98HMXSIgmUUMJdaGnlg9GFFwyS4OpvWAzMEMkQ3IzbqRIIaKcHjvUl68RCRddxpdcILsSKrPCuAzCg0PkECTX5YPiFGeIpDHL5ZX54LSzxNGLrsPt5JzNkaKIgjr5JrC-sezlFRKjnDIGQq9NoB5PkI8EOdWgGFRtkQ0HgyzbV5uXKZUF7JB9KNGR9RzmXneB_5kwe2i29gW8-jYQPiB6cKpa0iXphDP_kq4_iP_in-MEGaR8CTVaiV5LrChrqaJAwXSGMU9cAyLUWB_cuf7GrGDTRPA9y6vCwBGur8F1x-U-06pTDV-bimunOwo7m_yB5SmINRqCBW6VuYKXgSq1hOaPBcEDzDYKLuNlGbBCDG9tWIETlXriMIIbufr5MtiLdgQ02PRn5VF5HtlOc0-x_hkdQrMGv_ncyQnBdNCXlmVKkZQpFbejLQA2rAszberqyIGxKOshohm3d2_9beGeo7Cgvs7Dfxn_gK0uWrWG4SoU3Y7-GdAHkP--YQ6DA1heFofiojv6BDHoQSs7gfg5Y_y_uLLTpZwvJBuAi1bLZFdSgVuZYRPngaMTu-DzZol7Q17QdyZuWFULelqj4KDnM2FlqXtK6TLiTiVtoM47YFB9Qgh3RhwefHW4QljZ3I0bMhiBpbP-SeMEpdJ7ev_Dzc445Sx1yMRhd5dAJ6DwxyNljEWJjoWFlTXIaMQ1XeRbOxg_aqjH-pcot7O9U5TNjGHjKIIk-ZzwAvrneB79aIPonF5W3SO1qmUAWmoI2eYufNDpSmdeE8qzrUEAeX3FQISIOBqhH0f2HANj-oJKORJxPrJQedjDcs_Zy74a-sBWyKRSjLImk1egNrkKI_rJpJJbSBD6GqSsaEtUWgVsk0qX-2BKo7teMZkoUSvU-9XTwwiR_TOuVLydqo03e8dEBnEj6moLR5oV0mXbqW_Vr95mcuBW4lCl6ynkloSJelXsKzvtfv3KrPZaVAb21dvIpPdCR1VJnKoalJMQyLFouDRZqVJkkMZ0aQ8mgOlVYXXE3WtPjWVsTMnfBDVYYLRDbkXpGHg7PXXdETyLRozHPoDrkFpHQ5SLMG8-Rejz2DF7YqZccFpftwXOEddBOU0xPibrlfBePTfR74QVdDwFqf_FmEAv81NLRIPrUxQ&opi=122715837
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?source=display&reasons=AbDGNSGM1fDu4DudDq6VXJrd57pt9dwDIknELlfSbs9dxjciZuuRqUgRsPBPLqQs8bNEJAC2-Rs-69EUur1yBARKYKVEco-7wN-IMchtvEb6yF-D2YjJ_xCuXaCLLkkosDEaPG_X0EWJtfIYuKwWYGzFweAbqlCI28nuhQFfHhP9_h25WkYcl5MTpy60sFgDGwV6P7zqMvMd9uGveLVsDbPi_cF4fg35WBYWJsOqTYpHhlkpduhEamfGKXyDhLX7OKsKHIN-Ej6KS315Kn4Q1pos-jTcyF6nG4Aoi-X9j2H57pC-SDTt687JwRuPF4qkwL63P6Men-CoH-jbjzbPX631wZnSoDECb8GKplT6ETmMWCLHKxBKi5v8u9xP9sZ72RKoDVhDxthp-AAVoHEG5qzVpfgq__cCw8dPj_gl3rN7BbTNiV-5NeAYcfmBqSV5njEg6ys3-t36d0Bsoe2aHUrpeJ1l9CaX6VAj0wm1ymizC8yolzoODe7FrnUCZNmqDGJlG5R3q0Scuoemo5riu3Wb8OJP1L1gSHyeHswbdF4neupA4ilXJYJ1ofkNOC6pxM9WXio9ewJnL1sdYwYL47kDHugOxDzaNKcrWjjci1gNX-l1m1LKBrjsODFEOz4JNwp7UUcPKx6ZRxVaVmgnJ7XEgoGS5eGGjoI6W68LEG-JDhGwzzFn8mCm5opF7b7E5oE6IkCisTGH1eB_why-CMa6if00WdqAvtxNwq7ryXrQBcDTeTpaw95OXuNigPUU9MLhTyQm4xaph16nVJXQC-IWLl0u3cDsuI3-n2RKqoKQL59peTskdLrlE_UPJpY28r_AfJ7UUWTmRpJo536Ft3h3orLC4ymXcHMCo_jlef1FyRq-OjF8ZOflueoKN7VmApqGBnwA5RSXLC6rEeC7gJL0q4hD0n92jXcRjns4p_JsMWNtYBXOjA0-g64vx_dXw8v6gsifoePRobN1zwo8ENHGXraSQ5n3-2WNAmoNAVcbi8-13-1XErkMxcefNS9G76KuqHxr5U_ke5NeCHvu_SgCCMZymAn5W65FiCP-EBQMSbsouY1bJJ14w-NYINMSGuO4mX_CcZGpJ6dy3m-29mmDIhx3TbOe-rvkS4WKIrCnGN5eG9Fx-8DbnKjp_0vuF6rloTJmUz7zGdn9HfWWMQzZRDa3rA5XfgYn-CB1SykqdjlUZ0f3L68-CkRZGNFPEF6b6GtJApEVtO98HMXSIgmUUMJdaGnlg9GFFwyS4OpvWAzMEMkQ3IzbqRIIaKcHjvUl68RCRddxpdcILsSKrPCuAzCg0PkECTX5YPiFGeIpDHL5ZX54LSzxNGLrsPt5JzNkaKIgjr5JrC-sezlFRKjnDIGQq9NoB5PkI8EOdWgGFRtkQ0HgyzbV5uXKZUF7JB9KNGR9RzmXneB_5kwe2i29gW8-jYQPiB6cKpa0iXphDP_kq4_iP_in-MEGaR8CTVaiV5LrChrqaJAwXSGMU9cAyLUWB_cuf7GrGDTRPA9y6vCwBGur8F1x-U-06pTDV-bimunOwo7m_yB5SmINRqCBW6VuYKXgSq1hOaPBcEDzDYKLuNlGbBCDG9tWIETlXriMIIbufr5MtiLdgQ02PRn5VF5HtlOc0-x_hkdQrMGv_ncyQnBdNCXlmVKkZQpFbejLQA2rAszberqyIGxKOshohm3d2_9beGeo7Cgvs7Dfxn_gK0uWrWG4SoU3Y7-GdAHkP--YQ6DA1heFofiojv6BDHoQSs7gfg5Y_y_uLLTpZwvJBuAi1bLZFdSgVuZYRPngaMTu-DzZol7Q17QdyZuWFULelqj4KDnM2FlqXtK6TLiTiVtoM47YFB9Qgh3RhwefHW4QljZ3I0bMhiBpbP-SeMEpdJ7ev_Dzc445Sx1yMRhd5dAJ6DwxyNljEWJjoWFlTXIaMQ1XeRbOxg_aqjH-pcot7O9U5TNjGHjKIIk-ZzwAvrneB79aIPonF5W3SO1qmUAWmoI2eYufNDpSmdeE8qzrUEAeX3FQISIOBqhH0f2HANj-oJKORJxPrJQedjDcs_Zy74a-sBWyKRSjLImk1egNrkKI_rJpJJbSBD6GqSsaEtUWgVsk0qX-2BKo7teMZkoUSvU-9XTwwiR_TOuVLydqo03e8dEBnEj6moLR5oV0mXbqW_Vr95mcuBW4lCl6ynkloSJelXsKzvtfv3KrPZaVAb21dvIpPdCR1VJnKoalJMQyLFouDRZqVJkkMZ0aQ8mgOlVYXXE3WtPjWVsTMnfBDVYYLRDbkXpGHg7PXXdETyLRozHPoDrkFpHQ5SLMG8-Rejz2DF7YqZccFpftwXOEddBOU0xPibrlfBePTfR74QVdDwFqf_FmEAv81NLRIPrUxQ&opi=122715837
https://www.biocycle.net/connections-biosolids-ban-pfas/
https://www.biocycle.net/connections-biosolids-ban-pfas/
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0160412024004367
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0160412024004367
https://www.michigan.gov/-/media/Project/Websites/PFAS-Response/Images/PPT-Swimming-Pool.pdf?rev=5104c6f80cc74cf79fcb5e2add3c9088
https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-cdc-18635680.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-cdc-18635680.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-cdc-18635680.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-cdc-18635680.php


San Francisco proposes strongest-in-the-nation ban on ‘forever chemicals’ in �re�ghter clothing

On Valle’s farm, her well water has PFAS concentrations eight times as high as the safety threshold the

Environmental Protection Agency set this year for the PFAS chemical referred to as PFOS. It’s unclear

whether the new drinking water standards, which are in a �ve-year implementation phase, will be enforced by

the incoming Trump administration.

Valle’s well is one of 20 sites tested in California’s San Joaquin Valley and Central Coast regions — 10 private

domestic wells and 10 public water systems — in the �rst round of preliminary sampling by UC-Berkeley

researchers and the Community Water Center, a clean-water nonpro�t. They’re planning community

meetings to discuss the �ndings with residents when the results are �nalized. Valle’s results showed 96 parts

per trillion of total PFAS in her water, including 32 ppt of PFOS — both considered potentially hazardous

amounts.

Hailey Shingler, who was part of the team that conducted the water sampling, said the sites’ proximity to

farmland suggests agricultural operations could be a contamination source, or that the chemicals have

become ubiquitous in the environment.

The EPA requires public water systems serving at least 3,300 people to test for 29 types of PFAS. But private

wells are unregulated and particularly vulnerable to contamination from groundwater because they tend to be

shallower and construction quality varies, Shingler said.

A Strain on the Water Supply

California already faces a drinking water crisis that disproportionately hits farmworkers and communities of

color. More than 825,000 people spanning almost 400 water systems across the state don’t have access to clean

or reliable drinking water because of contamination from nitrates, heavy metals, and pesticides.

California’s Central Valley is one of the nation’s biggest agricultural producers. State data shows the EPA found

PFAS contamination above the new safety threshold in public drinking water supplies in some cities

there: Fresno, Lathrop, Manteca, and others.

Not long after she moved, Valle started feeling sick. Joints in her legs hurt, and there was a burning sensation.

Medical tests revealed her blood had high levels of heavy metals, especially arsenic, she said. She plans to get

herself tested for PFAS soon, too.

“So I stopped eating [or drinking] anything from the farm,” Valle said, “and a week later my numbers went

down.”

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 5/11
37

https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/forever-chemicals-firefighters-19368197.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/forever-chemicals-firefighters-19368197.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/forever-chemicals-firefighters-19368197.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/forever-chemicals-firefighters-19368197.php
https://www.epa.gov/sdwa/and-polyfluoroalkyl-substances-pfas
https://www.sfchronicle.com/ucberkeley/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/pfas.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/saferdashboard.html
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/pfas_map
https://www.ewg.org/interactive-maps/pfas_contamination/map/


After that, she got a water �lter installed for her house, but the system doesn’t remove PFAS, so she and her

family continue to drink bottled water, she said.

In recent years, the pesticide industry has increased its use of PFAS for both active and “inert” ingredients,

said David Andrews, a senior scientist of the Environmental Working Group, who analyzed pesticide

ingredient registrations submitted to the EPA over the past decade as part of a recently published study.

“PFAS not only endanger agricultural workers and communities,” Andrews said, “but also jeopardize

downstream water sources, where pesticide runo� can contaminate drinking supplies.”

California’s most concentrated pesticide use is along the Central Coast, where Valle lives, and in the Central

Valley, said Pace, whose research found that possible PFAS contamination from pesticides disproportionately

a�ects communities of color.

“Our results indicate racial and ethnic disparities in potential PFAS threats to community water systems, thus

raising environmental justice concerns,” the paper states.

Juana Valle had a water �lter installed for her house, but the system doesn’t remove PFAS, so she and her family continue to drink bottled water, she says.
Hannah Norman/KFF Health News

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 6/11
38

https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/10.1289/ehp13954
https://pubs.acs.org/doi/10.1021/acsestwater.3c00845
https://pubs.acs.org/doi/10.1021/acsestwater.3c00845


Spotty Solutions

Some treatment plants and public water systems have installed �ltration systems to catch PFAS, but that can

cost millions or even billions of dollars. California Gov. Gavin Newsom, a Democrat, signed laws restricting

PFAS in textiles, food packaging, and cosmetics, a move the wastewater treatment industry hopes will address

the problem at the source.

Yet the state, like the EPA, does not regulate PFAS in the solid waste generated by sewage treatment plants,

though it does require monitoring.

In the past, biosolids were routinely sent to land�lls alongside being spread on land. But in 2016, California

lawmakers passed a regulation that requested operators to lower their organic waste disposal by 75% by 2025

to reduce methane emissions. That squeeze pushed facilities to repurpose more of their wastewater treatment

byproducts as fertilizer, compost, and soil topper on farm �elds, forests, and other sites.

Greg Kester, director of renewable resource programs at the California Association of Sanitation Agencies, said

there are bene�ts to using biosolids as fertilizer, including improved soil health, increased crop yields,

reduced irrigation needs, and carbon sequestration. “We have to look at the risk of not applying [it on

farmland] as well,” he said.

Almost two-thirds of the 776,000 dry metric tons of biosolids California used or disposed of last year was

spread this way, most of it hauled from wealthy, populated regions like Los Angeles County and the Bay Area

to the Central Valley or out of state.

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 7/11
39

https://www.ocregister.com/2024/04/28/new-epa-rules-on-forever-chemicals-in-tap-water-pose-1-8-billion-challenge-for-oc/
https://www.sfchronicle.com/gavinnewsom/
https://calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/slcp/


When asked if California would consider banning biosolids from agricultural use, Wendy Linck, a senior

engineering geologist at California’s State Water Resources Control Board, said: “I don’t think that is in the

future.”

Average PFAS concentrations found in California’s sampling of biosolids for PFAS collected by wastewater

treatment plants are relatively low compared with more industrialized states like Maine, said Rashi Gupta,

wastewater practice director at consulting �rm Carollo Engineers.

Still, according to monitoring done in 2020 and 2022, San Francisco’s two wastewater treatment facilities

produced biosolid samples with total PFAS levels of more than 150 parts per billion.

Starting in 2019, the water board began testing wells — and �nding high levels of PFAS — near known sites of

contamination, like airports, land�lls, and industry.

The agency is now testing roughly 4,000 wells statewide, including those far from known contamination

sources — free of charge in disadvantaged communities, according to Dan Newton, assistant deputy director

at the state water board’s division of drinking water. The e�ort will take about two years.

Juana Valle’s 5-acre farm in San Juan Bautista has a walnut orchard, towering persimmon trees, and roaming chickens.
Hannah Norman/KFF Health News

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 8/11
40

https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/pfas_map?__cf_chl_tk=2zFKugRmnmvQ3spIRwHvyLzXUGpLDXIgFxkjIegmW6k-1731010624-1.0.1.1-JK9m3rscPNQnlTeIuoh2hKUwpLpOPLwg_hjB8DdbvyM
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/pfas_map?__cf_chl_tk=2zFKugRmnmvQ3spIRwHvyLzXUGpLDXIgFxkjIegmW6k-1731010624-1.0.1.1-JK9m3rscPNQnlTeIuoh2hKUwpLpOPLwg_hjB8DdbvyM
https://www.maine.gov/dep/spills/topics/pfas/maine-pfas.html
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?cmd=MWEDFResults&global_id=NPD100051513&assigned_name=SEP%2DBIO
https://www.latimes.com/politics/story/2019-10-14/california-finds-widespread-contamination-of-chemicals


Dec 10, 2024

Hannah Norman

Solano County — home to large pastures about an hour northeast of San Francisco — tested soil where

biosolids had been applied to its �elds, most of which came from the Bay Area. In preliminary results,

consultants found PFAS at every location, including places where biosolids had historically not been applied.

In recent years, landowners expressed reservations about the county’s biosolids program, and in 2024 no

farms participated in the practice, said Trey Strickland, manager of the environmental health services

division.

“It was probably a ‘not in my backyard’ kind of thing,” Strickland said. “Spread the poop somewhere else, away

from us.”

Los Angeles County, meanwhile, hauls much of its biosolids to Kern County or out of state. Green Acres, a farm

near Bakers�eld and owned by the city of Los Angeles, has applied as much as 80,000 dry tons of biosolids

annually, fertilizing crops for animal feed like corn and wheat. Concerned about the environmental and health

implications, for more than a decade Kern County fought the practice until the legal battle ended in 2017. At

the time, Dean Florez, a former state senator, told the Los Angeles Times that “it’s been a David and Goliath

battle from Day One.”

“We probably won’t know the e�ects of this for many years,” he added. “We do know one thing: If it was

healthy and OK, L.A. would do it in L.A. County.”

Hannah Norman is a video producer and visual reporter for KFF Health News, a national newsroom that

produces in-depth journalism about health issues and is one of the core operating programs at KFF.

More For You

12/10/24, 10:05 AM “Forever chemicals” found to taint rural California drinking water

https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/pfas-forever-chemicals-water-california-19969776.php 9/11
41

https://www.lacitysan.org/san/sandocview?docname=cnt009533
https://www.lacitysan.org/san/sandocview?docname=cnt009533
https://www.latimes.com/local/lanow/la-me-ln-kern-county-waste-settlement-20170824-story.html
https://kffhealthnews.org/about-us/
https://www.kff.org/about-us/


CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION of SANITATION AGENCIES 
 
    925 L Street, Suite 200  • Sacramento, CA 95814 • TEL: (916) 446-0388 • www.CASAweb.org 
 

To:  Demian Bulwa, demian.bulwa@sfchronicle.com;   
Andy Reinhardt, Andy.Reinhardt@sfchronicle.com;  
Hannah Norman, hannahn@kff.org 

 

From:  Greg Kester, Director of Renewable Resources – California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies (CASA), gkester@casaweb.org 

The California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) writes in response to the December 
10, 2024 article in San Francisco Chronicle that examined the ubiquitous nature of per and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in our environment. CASA represents the public wastewater 
treatment sector in California and our members provide the essential public health service of 
treating residential, commercial and industrial wastewater to protect the State of California’s 
waters. CASA has been exceptionally active on all facets of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances 
(PFAS) for many years. 

CASA has worked collaboratively with Non-Governmental Organizations (NGO’s), the California 
Legislature, and regulators since becoming aware of issues that PFAS pose, most notably 
through efforts to eliminate PFAS in a number of consumer products and other applications that 
exacerbate their presence in the environment.  It is vital to note that drinking water and 
wastewater treatment facilities are involuntary receivers of PFAS ,and our members neither 
produce nor use PFAS as part the treatment process. We believe that the most effective and 
efficient approach to reducing the presence of PFAS in our environment is through source 
control. 

Given the importance of safely recycling our biosolids, we offer a clarification on the article 
referenced above.  We understand from discussions with our members, USEPA Region IX 
officials, and the Regional Water Board that biosolids have never been applied near the home 
highlighted in the article.  Furthermore, to our knowledge, biosolids have only recently been 
applied in San Benito County, and even then, not near the site in question. Given the absence 
of biosolids application in the area, we believe the characterization of the sources suggested in 
the article deserves closer review. 

Moreover, pursuant to investigations conducted by the State Water Board and others, typical 
biosolids in California have been shown to contain minimal levels of PFAS.  Indeed, regulators 
believe PFAS from biosolids are an insignificant route of exposure, as the article’s quotes from 
SWRCB officials illustrated. It should also be noted that recycling biosolids for land application is 
a critical program that helps mitigate climate change and improves soil health by sequestering 
carbon, avoiding the use of fossil fuel intense inorganic fertilizer, increasing crop yields, 
reducing the need to irrigate, and improving soil tilth. In contrast, as noted in the article, 
pesticides may be a significant route of introduction of PFAS to agricultural land. 

If the Chronicle is interested in learning more about the wastewater treatment process or 
effective biosolids management practices, CASA would be happy to offer a tour of a wastewater 
treatment facility to illustrate the complex engineering at work to clean our water and manage 
our biosolids. Thank you for your consideration of these clarifications, and do not hesitate to 
reach out for background or specific information as it may be helpful in any future publications.  

  

42

http://www.casaweb.org/
mailto:demian.bulwa@sfchronicle.com
mailto:Andy.Reinhardt@sfchronicle.com
mailto:hannahn@kff.org
https://casaweb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/12/PFAS-2024-CASA.pdf
https://casaweb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/9-23-24-National-Communications-Guidance_PFAS-and-BIOSOLIDS-Management-with-images_final-pages-1-22.pdf
https://casaweb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/9-23-24-National-Communications-Guidance_PFAS-and-BIOSOLIDS-Management-with-images_final-pages-1-22.pdf


������������	
������������������������������������������������������������������
��� !"# $# %��#&' �()!#*#+,-..#/�"#01234#563178#9:;<=<#>?@ABC:DEFGHG#IJKLMNE#FOPEOQOR#SNGLTJURT#GV#WJXOT#GV#ROMJROTYGZR#RGML[OUST#SG#FOWGFS#SNET#JFSEMZO\]LKZETNOR#̂OM\#_̀a#_b_c dWRJSOR#eJU\#_a#_b_fgh#ijklm#nooop#qrsihtsqtq#jt#uvp#twi#rwixsrjlq#ysjhtp#xjzi#j#qtjktlshy#zsqr{|ikm}#~syw#li|ilq#{�#����p#twi#|skt�jllm#shziqtk�rts�li��{ki|ik#rwixsrjlq�#�qiz#sh#h{hqtsr�#�jhqp#qtjsh�kiqsqtjht#rjk�itq#jhz#xjhm#{twik#�k{z�rtq#�iki#t�khshy#��#sh#twi#hjts{h�qqi�jyi��wi#kiqijkrwikq#�iki#r{hrikhiz�#�wi#zjtj#q�yyiqtiz#twjt#twi#t{�sr#rwixsrjlqp#xjzi#�m#uvp#�iki#�jqt#�ir{xshy#��s��st{�q#shtwi#ih|sk{hxiht�#�wi#r{x�jhm�q#kiqijkrw#wjz#jlkijzm#lsh�iz#i��{q�ki#t{#�sktw#zi�irtqp#rjhrik#jhz#x{ki��wjt#qi�jyi#�jq#�ishy#�qiz#jq#�iktsls�ik#{h#�jkxljhz#hjts{h�szip#j#�kjrtsri#ihr{�kjyiz#�m#twi#�h|sk{hxihtjl#�k{tirts{h�yihrm�#�wi#�kiqihri#{�#����#sh#twi#qi�jyi#xijht#tw{qi#rwixsrjlq#�iki#�ishy#�h�sttshylm#q�kijz#{h#�silzq#jrk{qq#twi#r{�htkm�uv#zszh�t#���lsqw#twi#kiqijkrwp#��t#twi#r{x�jhm#zsz#qwjki#stq#�shzshyq#�stw#twi#������#jt#j#noou#xiitshyp#jrr{kzshy#t{#uvz{r�xihtq#ki|si�iz#�m#twi#�wi#�i�#�{k�#�sxiq�#�wi#kiqijkrw#jhz#twi#�������q#�h{�lizyi#{�#st#wjq#h{t#�iih#�ki|s{�qlmki�{ktiz��{zjmp#twi#������#r{htsh�iq#t{#�k{x{ti#qi�jyi#ql�zyi#jq#�iktsls�ik#jhz#z{iqh�t#ki��ski#tiqtshy#�{k#����p#ziq�sti#twi#�jrt#twjt�wsqtli��l{�ikqp#jrjzixsrqp#qtjti#{��srsjlq#jhz#twi#jyihrm�q#shtikhjl#qt�zsiq#{|ik#twi#mijkq#wj|i#jlq{#kjsqiz#r{htjxshjts{hr{hrikhq���wiqi#jki#wsywlm#r{x�li�#xs�t�kiq#{�#rwixsrjlqp�#qjsz#�j|sz#�i�sqp#j#�{kxik#������#xsrk{�s{l{ysqt#�w{#sh#twi#ljti#���oq#sqq�izijklm#�jkhshyq#{�#twi#ksq�q#sh#q�kijzshy#ql�zyi#{h#�jkxljhz�#�wi#q{sl#��ir{xiq#iqqihtsjllm#�ikxjhihtlm#r{htjxshjtizp�#wi#qjszsh#j#kiriht#shtik|si�#�k{x#wsq#w{xi#sh#�i{kysj��wi#r{hrikhq#kjsqiz#�m#�k�#�i�sq#jhz#{twikq#�iht#�hwiiziz#jt#twi#tsxi��wi#r{�htkm#sq#qtjktshy#t{#�j�i#��#t{#twi#r{hqi��ihriq�#����p#�wsrw#qtjhzq#�{k#�ik�#jhz#�{lm�l�{k{jl�ml#q��qtjhriqp#wjq#�iihzitirtiz#sh#qi�jyi#ql�zyip#{h#ljhz#tkijtiz#�stw#ql�zyi#�iktsls�ik#jrk{qq#twi#r{�htkmp#jhz#sh#xsl�#jhz#rk{�q#�k{z�riz#{hr{htjxshjtiz#q{sl�#�hlm#{hi#qtjtip#vjship#wjq#qtjktiz#t{#qmqtixjtsrjllm#tiqt#stq#�jkxq#�{k#�����#vjshi#wjq#jlq{#�jhhiz#twi#�qi#{�ql�zyi#{h#stq#�silzq�

���#��� ¡¢#£¤¥�¦ �§#̈�©��̈¡�#ª̈£«#¬#¦ #®̄ ¬̄#̈�°��±¦ �#¥��¥#©�²���#©±³§��́#¥��#̈�²#«�¥�̈¦�±#ª£̈#¥��#ª�̈¥¦±¦µ�̈́#¡�̈̈¦�§#¥£¶¦¡#·ª£̈�°�̈¡��«¦¡�±©̧¹

43



��������	�
��������������������������
����

����������	������
������� !!"#�$! �%&'�(')*! "�%�+'#,����
����������-.�
�����/����/��
�	����
�����/��������
/�����	��/��/��������������	�
��/�������������������������	/
����/�������������/��������0
����/���
��1/���������/���
��/��-.0
���
����/������/���/������
��
�2�������������
�����������/��������3444
������/����/����/�������
�-.���
�
�������/�������
�������5
����6�6�/�6����	������������������/�����
7������
���������������2������
��1/����2�����
������8���
�2��9�:���������������������������/��������343;�����
����1/������������������
2��������������<��
���
�����/�
��������������������������/��-.���
����/��,��
������������������
���������/������5������=�
��/�����
���
�����
������
���������9�:������/�������������
7������/������	�
�	�8����	��/��/���������
���5������������
������/��
�2��������
��/�������/�����22�������������������
���
7�������5
�22���������
����2�������/�����
�22���79��������������������/�
�����������������
���������������

��������/��������������
����
�,��>8��/����?�2������������
��
�����������������������������
�����/�
��2��������������
���������/����	��8������	�������
������/���
����
�	����
�������������=�����/�
������
��1/���������@���:/�	��
����/��2����������������������
�����������
�������������=������

��/��
�����51/���������/���	��
�����
2
�����A��

�	�
��������/�������
�7�.���:/�	�
�����������������5B����������������������������
��8���������	�����
����
��
�������2��������/�
���
�2�7
44



��������	�
����������������
���
�����������������������	���������
����������	�
�������	������������������
���
��
���
�	�
���
����	�����������������	���������
�	�
�����	���	�������������������
��	����������������������� ����	��
��
�����
�������������!
�������������
����������"����	���
������������
����������	�����
��������#����$%$&���������������
��������������	���	
����
��	���������������
�����
����������������	
�����	����
����������
������	������������'����	����	������()�����
���	���	�����
����������*����
�	��
������
��
�����������	����������������������������������
�������
�����������������������
�	�����������
��
��
�
�����������	�������������	
������

�����
�����
�����	���$%%%����
����
�������	�������	����
�����()����	�����
��	��������
�������������+����������������
��
����	
��������	�����,����	��
����
��
���
�����������
�	���,�������
������
���	������������
��	����������������������
,���������������	�
�����	�����������������,���
����������������
���	���������	�����
���	������!
������	�������
�������
���������
��
�����	
�����	�������	����������������-�
�
����	�����,�� ��	
�����,����
��
��������
��������
����������
�������������,��������������,�����	�
����������������,���
�	�����������������������	�������	����
�	�����
�����	
������������
����������
�����������������
��
����	����������	
�����	.��
������������
���������"���	�*��������
�������������������,���
��
���������������������
������
��
��
�����������
���������,���	�
���������
��	�����
�,#������	/���0��1����
����,���	��
�	����
������	�����2��
������
��+����	���3���	�
�	���
�
���4���5�	����!��
�
�
���������������

���
������
����	�������������	�
������������	������
���
�	��
���������
�������	
�6�	
�,��� ���789:;<�=8<:>9?;;9�@89�A?>�B>C�D89E�AFG>H
45



����������	�
���������������������������������������������������� �!�����"���"�������"��#����"��#�������$%!&�'�����������������"��������������"�(���)��*����"����"��������"����(��*����������������"������"���������'����+,,-����������"����. $ ! ���������(����������/��"� ������(�����"������"������"��#���*�������$%!&�����������"����������(������0���"������������#����"�������������������������"���(�(������� �1���"���������#�����2�"�$%!&��������������������������������� ���������3444����"�0���������������������"��������#��������# �5����������#�����$%!&���������������6���2�������#����������"�����������7���������������0������"��#�8��*����"0����� 0���"�$����&� �9����0�%�� 0���������"����(�����#����#����������������������#�����"#� !�:�����������#�"�����������������;����"�<�1���������������$%!&���������������(������0���������������������������#�����=>��������������;�������������� �������(�����"���������"���#��������������������"�����������"����$%!&)������"����(���"����#������# �!�"������������������"���#����$%!&�����"��������������"�(��2�#��#���"������(��"���� 1����������*���0�?����>�����0��������������������������������*��*�"��������������0����"����(��������������"#��6���������������������������(����������������#������������7�������������#���;��(��"���� ������"������"0������*��0�����$%!&���������#�����#����2���"����������������������������(����� �61��������"��#��(���������"#�0���"����������������#��������"�0�����#���@�"����������07�A� �>���������" �6%����������������������������#����"�����0�#����2������(��(�� �1�;������"���� 71��&�(�������344�0�������������������������. $ ! ����"�������������(���;�����"��������"#������������������"�������������0�����"��#���������������������"� �!�������"�������������#0����. $ ! ���:�����"�6�""�����������2#����"���������������((�����#�������������#�"���07���������"����� &���#�����"#���������������(���"��������������������������������������� �1�;��"������������2�����@������������0���"�. $ ! "������������(���� �����������/�����"��������������������3���������"����������������"����B C�������������������������"����34+- !�"���������������������������*���������"�(������������������#�����"#������������D4��������������0������������������������E & �#��������������" 61�����������������"������#��������(���������������������������*����;��������������������(����������0��������������"�"������������"������"���07����"�A� �>�����0����������������������)��������#�������� �6F��������������������������(�����������2��"�������#���(������0�GH����#��0�����"�����"�����������=;7

46



���������	�
������	�������	���������	��	���������	�����	������������� !���"��#�$%!�&�����'()*+,�-)*./.01�2.3445456���7	���������������8�����������	����	�9::;����������������8���������	�<�=�>���	�?����@	�	?�����?	�����	AB�C	�����B�?���������D�E�
�������8����FB?������������	����	���������B���G�H�	���	��B��	?��������	����������	��8	���B?8	�H�	�<�=�>������	���B��8��8����	������B�	���B?8	�����	�����I	����B����	��8����?�B�	?�����	�����	�����I	���	����?�������	���B�
����	�������JB�
����6���7	����C����	?��B������������	�	����
��?	���?�G��	��8	�������F	�G��������	?�����	������	�����
�����B?��8�=K>L
�������?	������@	�G�?��8	��B���	�����I	���	�����	��	?���?�	M���	?��	��8	���C�	����	���@	���8��	?�����	��	����?�?	������	����?���B�?��	����F	?������B?8	���	������	?C�	�	����8��������?��8��������	�����������	�	��	��NH�	������	��������	���B���?@	��	�	��	������������B����������C�	M���?�B�C�	?������	��M�B�	�����	���������B���?�������	����C���B�����������@���B����	������G
O��	����?������	���	�������	�	�����C��C�	?���	�P	��	�������6��	��	�P���������?�=�	@	�����������B	�8B�?	���	��C���	����8����F	������?���8�C���	��	?��	��8	���B?8	�H�	�<�=�>��	������	?�����Q������R;;��
47



�����������	
������	����	�����������������
�������	����	����	����	���������������	����	����������		��	�������������������������������	�����������������������������������������	��	��
����	�������	�	������
�������� ����	����������������������
���������!""#�	��������	������	����������������	������	�������	����$%������	���	����	�	�������������������	&��������'����������(	���������������	�������������	
�)���*	�+�,���$�����	�����	�������������������	�������+��	������	������	�����'����������(��
����	����		+��������������	��+�	�������	������	�������	��
����	��-��!"".������� �����	����	��	���������
���
�����	��
���������������������������	������	
�����������������������%����� ��������������	��	���	����
�	��%�	�����
���������	������������	����
����������� (�����������������������	�������/%��������������������	���������
�������������������	���������������������������������������������+��������������������,	����0��	����������������,����	����������������������������������
����������������������!"""�����������������		+������������������������������	�+�	��� ����	���������������������������������������
������	�����������1������	�����$-�������������������������	��������	����������	�+�����	���� ����	�����	����'������2��������������	�����	������	����	�������,	�	���	���		��	��3�����

������������+�������2���������1��3�����	���	
�������	�� (����	��
����	����������456�789:;8�<=8�4>;�?;@�A=8B�456;CD�����	�������������	�
��������	��	������������������	�	����������� ����E������	��F�����������	����������	�	���������������	���
���������������������������	������������������������	�����	������	�������������������	�������	�������������	������������������	������ ���1����������	���������������	���$����+�����	���	�������G����
����������������
����������
48



���������	
��������	�
�	�����	�����	�
�	����	
�������	������	�
�	������������
���	��	������	�����	�����	��������	������	��	����	��	���� �	�������!���	��	���	����	������	������	��	����������	�
�	� ��������������	"#	$���������	�
��	���	����������	����������	��	�����	�	"%&'	��$���	��	�
�	��������	���$�����	�������	�
�	� ����	�������� 	��	$��$����	�� �����	����������	����� 	��	
��	��������	�����	���	���������	��	�
�	���������	$�� ���	����	�����	������� ���������(
�	)����	��������������	
��	����	��	*����	$�����
	�	���+	����������	��	����	��	���������	��	�
�	���	��	"%",�	(
��	*����	��	������	���$	��*���	������ 	������	��	����	��	��*� �	���� �	����	��	�������!���(
���	��	����
��	���������	�-$����	����	.����	�
�	/����	0����	����	*����*����	���������	$�����	
���	�	�� ��	���
�����	��	���������	$��������	����	�����	����������	����	+��*�	��	�
�	/����	0����	���	�$�����������	$�� ����	$�������� 	�
�������	��������
�� 	��*� �	��	�
�	�����	$�������	�
�	$���	�*�	������	�*�	������	1	)����� ����	2�/��	���	/��
����	3��	1	
���	�������	����������	��	�����	�$	�
�	��������	�
������	��	*����*����	���������	$������	��	���	���������	�	��-����	$�������	�������	��	���$	���� 	����	���������(
���	�������	����	�����	�	�����	�������������	 ���$	����	�
�	�������	���������	��	��	�
�	����	$�������	��	�������	�
���	�*�$���������	���
��	�
��	������� 	*����*����	���������	$�����	��+�	�����������	��-��	���$�� 	 �������	����	4����	5�����	����������	��	�
�	����
���	�������������	6�*	/������	*
��
	�����	�
�	��*������(
�	2�������	�����������	��	/����	0����	� �������	*
��
	��$�������	*����*����	���������	$������	����	����	�
��	&�7%%	����������������	
��	$�����������	$�� ����	��	$�����	�
�� 
	���	�����������	���	�����	8(
�	 ���$	����	����	�������
	�
�*��	�
��	�
��
�������	*���	����� 	����	
����
���	*�����	�������� 	
����	*�����	���	9���	����������:����	4����!�	�
�	 ���$��	�
���	�-��������	����	����	���������	*���	*����� 	���	�
�	������	��	���	����������	(
��	*��������� �
��	���������	$������	�������	��	
���	�
�	��������	$��������	���$��������	
�	�����	���	�
���	�
������	���$�����	*���	�*�����	�����	$��������	��� ���	���	+�$�	��	;�����	
�	�����	��
��	�
���	$��������	
���	��	$���<=>?@?	ABCDEF=	GHIJKL	MHNNOPQHR	SRT	PUJ	JRIQKHRVJRP	WHK	XUJ	XQVJLY	ZUJ	USL	[JJR	S	\HOKRSNQLP	WHK	VHKJ	PUSR	]̂	_JSKL	QR	XH̀_H	SRT	aJb	cHK̀Y	dHKJ	S[HOP	eQKH̀H	XS[OGUQf	IJKLQHR	HW	PUQL	SKPQGNJ	SMMJSKL	QR	MKQRP	HR	g	ZJGPQHR	fg	hSiJ	j	HW	PUJ	aJb	cHK̀	JTQPQHR	bQPU	PUJ	UJSTNQRJk	lJLMQPJ	mQL̀Lg	nYhYfY	oSG̀L	XHpQG	qJKPQNQrJK

49



��������	
�������	�����������
�������������
���������������������
�����������
�	����� ���� !��������
���"
	�����#������������$��%&��������������	����'
������()�%���*��	��������##�	
��()�%���*��	���'
���������##�	
��()�����
�
#��+������ ��"
##��#�� �	������"�#�� 
�����������	�����"
���"���
	�+��,-������"
��+.���&�� 
������������������/�0�������������&�����1��������	�������2��	���������3�����/��� ���#��#�����#4�#�����	������5����6����������/�� ��������� ��	��	�����	��
��##����������	��� �����	��
�����/�	
�4(����	/���
�	��	(�"�	����� ��
#����
�	��	�������	
��+��
����	����789���(��������	��������*����� ������	����� ����������������# �
	���(������������4"���(�������	�(��#�	���(�����
	��������
��(��� ���� ����4��
��+������ ���� ���'	����#���#�"#���� ������
������
�	��	��� �"
 ������ �
��	�����*
������	(�����
���	����
�4�����:����*�������
��#�+�������������	������ ����� 
������	������������� �+�.��	��������	�'
�������������� �(�	"���5����#������	���
����
 �;��.�<��� �����#������	������#����	��;��.�<6���*������������ �
��	����=�+���#
����
�������  
	
���##������� ��	���������������� ��
�����	�
����� ��	�(���	��������	���������������� �����	
����	�������� �
���������	��
���
��	���=���� �
����	� ������������ �
�������������� �+��1�������������	�'
��	������#���� �"
# #
��+����#��������������	�������� ������
�	� ����#	����
�4�(�����	���=+�+�>�*
������	�#����	��	
�������������?@AB�CDEFGHIJK�LJMNHOJ���� ��PGIKQRO��+��STUV�WXY�ZW[�U\]W�̂W_̀]aẀ]\��2��	�"�	���
��	��������������	�
���#�"�#�*�#���������(���
���
#������������+�������#������������������
�����
# 
���(����
������(��� ����
#
	
���#
4���
����	�(��
����	�	
���(��
#
	���������(���� �#�� �
##�+���������������������
��"��	�"�	���
��	����������������	
##���
����	� 
� (���	��#
4�#��������������	�
#�	�(����"���(��� �"���
�������
���+��2��	�"�	��������
��� ����	���� �������
�	�� ���������
������"��+��������	����"��	�"�	����"��������#��"���(��
���(�����#������� ��	�����	�
�
���	�������
��#�+�����"�	���	������	����	������"������	����� �	��*�#��	��"��	�"�	���	���	���	��#��	�+��bcddefg�gdehgiefg�gejkflmlno�jhfflg��deilpe�qrst�udli�vhwgevhgedx�����������#	(�	���	� �"��	�"�	��� 
������� �	��#���#�"�	��"�����#
4�����������
����������	�
���#�"�#�*�#����������5��yHIz�{|{}��6+����������"��	�"�	��������
�������"��4
���	���	����	�����
	����� � �*�#�����#�	
����	��	���  �����	�
�������
������	��
���	�	�����������������	��#+������'���#�(������
�����������	
�
��	
���
����
��	
�
���	� 
���	��
 ��	
������
 ��	
�#��� �
� ��	�
�#�����������������	���������������	
���"
	��	����BGI�@~GI�HN�Q��G���J�HQIGF��GOJ~��RGFHO���QIO~QF��QG~K��(���G��A~JG��FJGI��7�
50



����������	
���������������	���������
��������	
�����	������������������	� ��	
��
��!�����"��#	���������$��%&'�()*�+&,�-./0�01.2.*3�4567�4&//,38&*9��:���;<=��><=�?�@@�>�AB������A;C�>�@DE�F�G��<�CH�B����IJKL�C<EED�A<��A=��<�H�;<B��IJKL�@H<;��><�=D;�H�CH<�D>�=$�M�EA@<H�A����=��EH���G�N������IJKL�@H<;�=�B�H�E�CH<�D>��>���O<HA�=�ND���IJKL��H��=�AEE�@<D���A����<D=���=�<@�<���H�CH<�D>�=�������H���<��=DNP�>���<�����>DHH����CH<�D>���N��=�EAQ��@<<��C�>Q�OA�O��<AE���C�C�H�C�A��=��D�<;<NAE�=�=C<H�=��RDAC;�����E�>�H<�A>=�C����>�H��CH<�D>�=�����>E���A�O�CH<�D>�=$��S<D�>�����EC�CH�B����IJKL�C<EED�A<�T����	��
��"������
����������	����������	����U����<��VCH�==��G<DH�=DCC<H��@<H�H�;<BA�O�IJKL�@H<;�><�=D;�H�CH<�D>�=�=<E��A��M�EA@<H�A�$��WXYZ[�[\]̂Z_̀�aZbb�c\�d_efĝ̂\h�g[�̂Zb\[�_̀�̂Y\�a\c[Ẑ\i��j&kl.38(k��K=�<@�m��D�HG�n�opoq������:<VA>?JH���M<=;��A>=�K>��<@��opop�r���s�tuvt��w����������IJKL?JH���x��D�G�K>��<@��opoo�r���s�tuuy��w�N����A�����A<��EEG�������IJKL�@<H��><=;��A>=�=<E��A��M�EA@<H�A�$� �z.{38/.k��K=�<@�m��D�HG�n�opoq������M�EA@<H�A��L�@�H�ME<���=������:�V�AE�=�K>��<@�opoo�r���s�y|yu��w��N��=�A�����A<��EEG�������IJKL��@<H�;<=��>E<��A�O�����<���H����V�AE�=�=<E��A��M�EA@<H�A�$� �},2.*8/.�41&~,(3k��K=�<@�mDEG�n�opo���A�����A<��EEG�������IJKL��A=��<���EE<F���A��PDB��AE���CH<�D>�=�=<E��A���M�EA@<H�A��=D>���=��AO���>��AH=�=�H<EE�H=�����>�H��=���=�r=�����s�v�t������5&&~�4)(�)�8*���:���M�EA@<H�A��L�@�H�J<<���I�>Q�OA�O�����M<<QF�H��K>���r���s�yt����w�N����������=�E��<@��C�C�H?N�=���@<<��C�>Q�OA�O��><���A�A�O�IJKL�>��;A>�E=��N�OA��A�O�A��opo�$� ��.*k31,)/�41&~,(3k��L��H�A�O�A��opo����s�t�y���CH<�ANA�=�����=�E��<@�;��=�HD�E��CH<�D>�=�><���A�A�O�IJKL�A���M�EA@<H�A�$� �j)10.3k�)*~��,�k�����opon�����M�EA@<H�A�����C�H�;����<@�:<VA>��LDN=���>�=�M<��H<E����<C����H�ODE��A<�=�@<H��� ����	�
��������	���������$��z.{38/.�)*~��.)3-.1��z1.)3l.*3k�����opoo�����M�EA@<H�A�����C�H�;����<@�:<VA>��LDN=���>�=�M<��H<E���<C�����H�ODE��A<�=�@<H��� ����	���������	�������
������������������"��
�����	����	����������$� ��-)3�k��.{39��IJKL�;�G�=�AEE�N��@<D���A��;��G��<���H�CH<�D>�=�=<E��A��M�EA@<H�A���A�>ED�A�O�@<<��C�>Q�OA�O��<AE����C�C�H�C�A��=��D�<;<NAE�=�=C<H�=���RDAC;�����E�>�H<�A>=�C���>�H���CH<�D>�=�����>E���A�O�CH<�D>�=$���A���G<DH�=DCC<H��F��>���F<HQ���<�O����<VA>�IJKL�><;C<D��=��H�;<B���@H<;����=��CH<�D>�=���<<T���,+�4567�51..�41&~,(3k�����G�;��D@�>�DH�H=��H���<F�<@@�HA�O�IJKL?@H���CH<�D>�=������E��H���AB�=$�K=���><�=D;�H�G<D��>����B<A��D=A�O�CH<�D>�=������><���A��IJKL�=D>���=����������A��P�>Q��=���M�<<=��CH<�D>�=�������H��@H���<@�IJKL����BG�;���E=�I�M�����C����E���$��o�
51



��������������	
�������
����������������������������
��������

��������������������������������
����������
������������������
������������������
�����������
��������������������������	
�����������������������	���������� �������������������������������������
��
	���
���������
������������������������
����������������������������
�������!���
���
���������������"� ����

����������������
����#���$�����
�����������
�����������������$��������������
�
�������
������#�������#����"%�&��������'����������������
��� �����������������������(
���
��������������������������)
�"�*������"�* ���

+���
,���,�������������������)������
���-�
��������������������
�����

������
���������������	��� ������������������������./01234/0��5678�9:;<=>?��#�������������
��������
�@�

�����
��
�"����,�A�������
#������
�����
	�
����
����������"� ����

��������#��������������
����#�����
������
��
��#��������
#�������������
�#��������
���%�
��B;CD=E;F:;<>?�GE=HD;I�J=EKL�������
�����
	�
����
���������"� ����

��������#��������������������������,�������
���
���������
�
���
���������9:;<:=�ME=�B;CD=E;F:;<>?�N:>?<O����@��
�),������
�����
��
#��&P��
��
��
	�����
������	������
�����������������#����
�#�����#����#������
����������
���
�
�
�,��,��

�Q�
52



6.iii. PFAS Regulatory Update
for

BACWA Executive Board
January 17, 2024

53



USEPA Actions Related to PFAS 
November 2024 – January 2025
Highlight of Actions Relevant to the Municipal Wastewater Sector

1. Strategic Roadmap  
In November, USEPA released a new progress update on their PFAS Strategic Roadmap
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-11/epas-pfas-strategic-roadmap-2024_508.pdf

2. Draft Human Health Water Quality Criteria
https://www.epa.gov/wqc/human-health-water-quality-criteria-pfas

• Released in December. Public comments due February 24, 2025. 
• Includes criteria for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS 
• Recommended criteria for human health protection based on fish 

consumption and water consumption
• “Organism Only” criteria could apply to SF Bay if adopted by California

54

https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-11/epas-pfas-strategic-roadmap-2024_508.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/wqc/human-health-water-quality-criteria-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-12/draft-hhc-pfas-tech-fact-sheet.pdf


USEPA Actions Related to PFAS 
2. Draft Human Health Water Quality Criteria (continued)

• For comparison, drinking water MCLs are 4 ppt
• Proposed PFBS criteria are 100x higher than observed concentrations

0.0001
0.001

0.01
0.1

1
10

100

Bay Area
Wastewater

Effluent

Detection
Limits for

Wastewater
Effluent

SF Bay Data Detection
Limits for Bay

Water

Rainwater
(Midwest)Co

nc
en

tr
at

io
n 

(n
g/

L o
r p

pt
)

PFOS
USEPA Draft Human Health Water Quality 

Criteria - December 2024
Organism Only (SF Bay) Water + Organisms (Inland)

0.0001
0.001

0.01
0.1

1
10

100

Bay Area
Wastewater

Effluent

Detection
Limits for

Wastewater
Effluent

SF Bay Data Detection
Limits for Bay

Water

Rainwater
(Midwest)Co

nc
en

tr
at

io
n 

(n
g/

L 
or

 p
pt

)

PFOA
USEPA Draft Human Health Water Quality 

Criteria - December 2024
Organism Only (SF Bay) Water + Organisms (Inland)

Draft criteria for PFOA and PFOS are 
more than 100x below observed 
concentrations and detection limits.  

55



3. Draft Risk Assessment for PFOA and PFOS in Biosolids
      Released on Tuesday, January 14th 
      Risk Assessment and FAQs at: 

https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/draft-sewage-sludge-risk-assessment-perfluorooctanoic-acid-pfoa-and-perfluorooctane

This is NOT a proposed regulation or threshold. 

Risk Pathways from Land Application and Surface Disposal:  Drinking milk, drinking water, eating fish, eating beef and eggs. 

“Based on the modeling in the draft sewage sludge risk assessment, the EPA finds that there may be human health risks 
exceeding the EPA’s acceptable thresholds for some modeled scenarios when land-applying sewage sludge that contains 1 
part per billion (ppb) of PFOA or PFOS. The EPA also finds that there may be human health risks associated with drinking 
contaminated groundwater sourced near a surface disposal site when sewage sludge containing 1 ppb of PFOA or sewage 
sludge containing 4 to 5 ppb of PFOS is disposed in an unlined or clay-lined surface disposal unit.”

 

USEPA Actions Related to PFAS 

56

https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/draft-sewage-sludge-risk-assessment-perfluorooctanoic-acid-pfoa-and-perfluorooctane


4.  Nationwide Study of PFAS in influent and sewage sludge  
• Extremely likely that all facilities with flow capacity > 10 MGD will need to fill out a detailed USEPA 

survey with information about your service area, facility, and industrial users
• Possibly your agency will need to sample influent, effluent, domestic sewage, and up to 10 Industrial 

Users later in 2025, followed by sludge sampling in 2026

Track it here: https://www.epa.gov/eg/potw-influent-pfas-study

USEPA Actions Related to PFAS 
Coming Soon – This Week?

57

https://www.epa.gov/eg/potw-influent-pfas-study


5.  Methods Update Rule
• Proposed Methods Update Rule will promulgate two recently finalized PFAS methods as Clean Water Act 

Methods: 
• EPA Method 1633A (40 specific PFAS compounds) 
• EPA Method 1621 (Adsorbable Organic Fluorine, an imprecise but less expensive way of assessing 

total PFAS)
• Comments Due: TBD
• Track it here: https://www.epa.gov/cwa-methods/methods-update-rules

6.  Effluent Guidelines for Industrial Dischargers
• Proposed pretreatment program rules under development for categories of industrial users:

• PFAS manufacturers
• Metal finishers (rules expected in 2026)
• Landfills (rules expected in 2027)

Comments due Jan 17th. 
More info at:  https://www.epa.gov/eg/preliminary-effluent-guidelines-program-plan

USEPA Actions Related to PFAS 

58

https://www.epa.gov/cwa-methods/methods-update-rules
https://www.epa.gov/eg/preliminary-effluent-guidelines-program-plan


Page 1 of 3 
 

Draft National Recommended Human Health Ambient Water Quality 
Criteria for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS  

December 2024 

As part of the Environmental Protection Agency’s efforts to safeguard human health from exposure to 
per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), the agency has published draft national recommended 
human health criteria for three PFAS – perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), perfluorooctane sulfonic acid 
(PFOS), and perfluorobutane sulfonic acid (PFBS) – for a 60-day public comment period. These draft 
Clean Water Act (CWA) recommended criteria reflect the latest scientific knowledge regarding the 
human health effects, exposure information, and bioaccumulation potential. Once final, the human 
health criteria will provide national recommendations to states and Tribes authorized to establish their 
own water quality standards under the Clean Water Act. National recommended human health 
ambient water quality criteria are not regulations, nor do they impose legally binding requirements. 

Background 
To help states and Tribes protect people from harmful health effects from exposure to pollutants in surface 
waters, the EPA periodically publishes national human health criteria recommendations under CWA Section 
304(a). The national recommended human health criteria provide information for states and authorized Tribes 
to consider when developing their own water quality standards.  
 
On October 18, 2021, EPA Administrator Regan announced the agency’s PFAS Strategic Roadmap, laying out a 
whole-of-agency approach to addressing PFAS. This included the EPA’s efforts to develop PFAS recommended 
human health criteria (HHC), starting with PFOA and PFOS. The EPA has released draft recommended human 
health criteria for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS and will accept public comments on these criteria documents for 60 
days upon announcement in the Federal Register. Following the comment period, the EPA will review the public 
comments and revise the criteria accordingly. The EPA will then release final criteria recommendations and 
responses to public comments.  

What are national recommended human health water quality criteria? 
People can be exposed to pollutants, such as PFAS, when drinking water and eating fish and shellfish from 
polluted water bodies. Under CWA Section 304(a), the EPA develops, and from time to time, updates, 
recommended water quality criteria for the protection of human health. States and authorized Tribes can 
consider the EPA’s recommended criteria when setting water quality standards for their lakes, rivers, and other 
inland and nearshore water bodies to protect public health. 
 
The EPA’s CWA Section 304(a) HHC documents provide scientific information on the human health effects of the 
pollutants as well as the national recommended levels of pollutants in water (criteria), which, if not exceeded, 
are expected to protect against adverse effects to human health. For each contaminant, the agency has derived 
two HHC values: (1) the “water + organism” HHC and (2) the “organism only” HHC. The EPA develops national 
recommended human health criteria using a mathematical equation that includes a final toxicity factor, 
exposure factors (for body weight, fish consumption, and drinking water intake), bioaccumulation factors, and a 
relative source contribution which accounts for exposure from other potential sources (i.e., air, soils, marine fish 

 
TECHNICAL FACT SHEET 

59

https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-strategic-roadmap-epas-commitments-action-2021-2024
https://www.epa.gov/wqs-tech


Page 2 of 3 
 

consumption). The equations for deriving water + organism, or organism only criteria, as well as equations for 
cancer and non-cancer-based HHC, can be found in the EPA’s 2000 Methodology (EPA, 2000) document and in 
each HHC document.  

What are the draft National Recommended Ambient Water Quality Criteria for the 
Protection of Human Health for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS? 
The draft criteria (Table 1) summarize the ambient concentrations for PFOA, PFOS, or PFBS in surface water, 
which, if not exceeded will protect the general population from adverse health effects due to ingesting water, 
fish, and shellfish from inland and nearshore water bodies. The EPA provides recommendations for “water + 
organism” and “organism only” criteria for states and authorized Tribes to consider when adopting human 
health criteria into their water quality standards. Under the CWA, states and authorized Tribes designate the 
uses of their water bodies and adopt criteria into their water quality standards to support those uses. 
 
For PFOA and PFOS, the EPA developed draft recommended HHC based on the final non-cancer toxicity values 
(RfD) and cancer slope factors (CSF), as both chemicals are Likely to be Carcinogenic to Humans, based on the 
final human health toxicity assessments (EPA, 2024a, b). For PFOA, the EPA is recommending HHC based on the 
values derived using cancer inputs because they are lower than the noncancer-based HHC and thus, protect 
against both adverse noncancer and cancer health effects. For PFOS, the EPA is recommending the noncancer 
HHC because they are lower and thus, protective of both adverse noncancer and cancer health effects. For PFBS, 
the draft recommended human health criteria are based only on non-cancer health effects because the PFBS 
toxicity assessment determined that there is Inadequate Information to Assess Carcinogenic Potential for PFBS 
and no CSF was developed. 
 
Under the EPA’s recently finalized Method 1633 used for analysis of these three PFAS in aqueous samples, the 
limit of quantification (LOQ) representing the observed LOQs in the multi-laboratory validation study, range 
from 1 to 4 ng/L. The pooled Method Detection Limits (MDLs) are 0.54 ng/L (PFOA), 0.63 ng/L (PFOS), and 0.37 
ng/L (PFBS). The pooled MDL values are derived from the multi-laboratory validation study using MDL data from 
eight laboratories and represent the sensitivity that should be achievable in a well-prepared laboratory but may 
not represent the actual MDL used for data reporting or data quality assessments (EPA, 2024c). The MDLs and 
ranges presented here are provided for comparison of analytical concentrations and draft recommended HHC. 

Table 1. Draft Human Health Criteria (HHC) for Three PFAS. 

PFAS  Water + Organism HHC 
(ng/L; ppt)1 

Organism Only HHC  
(ng/L; ppt)1 

PFOA 0.0009 0.0036 
PFOS 0.06 0.07 
PFBS 400 500 

1 Values are provided in ng/L units to aid in comparison to method detection limit (MDL).  

Consideration of PFAS mixtures for HHC 
The available scientific information shows that mixtures of PFAS can result in dose additive health effects, 
meaning that the combined effect of the component chemicals in a mixture is equal to the sum of the individual 
doses or concentrations, scaled for potency. Therefore, specific approaches based on dose-additivity are 
available and could be used to the develop a PFAS mixture HHC. In these draft recommended criteria, the EPA 
provides an illustrative example for states or Tribes interested in developing a water quality standard for a 
mixture of two or more PFAS for which human health criteria have been developed using the hazard index (HI) 

60

https://www.epa.gov/wqc/human-health-water-quality-criteria-and-methods-toxics#methodology
https://www.epa.gov/sdwa/additional-supporting-materials-final-pfas-npdwr
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-12/method-1633a-december-5-2024-508-compliant.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-12/method-1633a-december-5-2024-508-compliant.pdf


Page 3 of 3 
 

approach. The HI approach is further described in the final Framework for Estimating Noncancer Health Risks 
Associated with Mixtures of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS).  

Where can I find more information? 
View the draft human health criteria documents for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS, and other related information on the 
EPA’s website at: https://www.epa.gov/wqc/human-health-water-quality-criteria-pfas 
For more information on water quality criteria, visit: https://www.epa.gov/wqc 
For more information on PFAS, visit: https://www.epa.gov/pfas 
 
References 
EPA. 2000. Methodology for Deriving Ambient Water Quality Criteria for the Protection of Human Health (2000). 

EPA 822-B-00-004. Available on the internet at: https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2018-
10/documents/methodology-wqc-protection-hh-2000.pdf. 
 

EPA. 2024a. Final Human Health Toxicity Assessment for Perfluorooctanoic Acid (PFOA) and Related Salts. EPA 
815R24006. Office of Water, Washington, DC. Available on the internet at: 
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-05/final-human-health-toxicity-assessment-
pfoa.pdf. 
 

EPA. 2024b. Final Human Health Toxicity Assessment for Perfluorooctane Sulfonic Acid (PFOS) and Related Salts. 
EPA 815R24007. Office of Water, Washington, DC. Available on the internet at: 
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-05/final-human-health-toxicity-assessment-
pfos.pdf. 
 

EPA. 2024c. Method 1633. Analysis of Per-and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) in Aqueous, Solid, Biosolids, 
and Tissue Samples by LC-MS/MS. EPA 821-R-24-001. Office of Water, Washington, DC. 
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-12/method-1633a-december-5-2024-508-
compliant.pdf. 

61

https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-04/final-pfas-mix-framework-3.25.24_final-508.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-04/final-pfas-mix-framework-3.25.24_final-508.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/wqc/human-health-water-quality-criteria-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/wqc
https://www.epa.gov/pfas
https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2018-10/documents/methodology-wqc-protection-hh-2000.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2018-10/documents/methodology-wqc-protection-hh-2000.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-05/final-human-health-toxicity-assessment-pfoa.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-05/final-human-health-toxicity-assessment-pfoa.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-05/final-human-health-toxicity-assessment-pfos.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-05/final-human-health-toxicity-assessment-pfos.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-12/method-1633a-december-5-2024-508-compliant.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-12/method-1633a-december-5-2024-508-compliant.pdf


Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
 

Draft Sewage Sludge Risk Assessment for PFOA and PFOS 
January 2025 

 
On January 14, 2025, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) released its Draft Sewage Sludge 
Risk Assessment for Perfluorooctanoic Acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctane Sulfonic Acid (PFOS). The draft 
risk assessment indicates that in some scenarios, the EPA’s acceptable risk thresholds may be exceeded 
when sewage sludge containing PFOA and PFOS is land applied for beneficial reuse or surface disposed. 
The draft risk assessment focuses on people living on or near impacted farms or those that rely 
primarily on their products. The findings presented in the draft risk assessment are preliminary. The 
EPA expects to publish a final risk assessment after reviewing public comments and revising the draft 
risk assessment accordingly. Once finalized, the risk assessment will provide information on risk from 
use or disposal of sewage sludge and will inform the EPA’s potential future regulatory actions under 
the Clean Water Act (CWA). The EPA is committed to partnering with states, Tribes, territories, and 
wastewater treatment plants (WWTPs) to reduce risks from PFOA and PFOS that may occur through 
the management of sewage sludge, including the land application of sewage sludge.   
 
What are sewage sludge and biosolids? 
When sewage from households and businesses is sent to a WWTP, the liquids are separated from the solids, 
producing a nutrient-rich product known as “sewage sludge.” The EPA typically uses the term “biosolids” to 
refer to treated sewage sludge that is intended to be applied to land as a soil conditioner or fertilizer. 
Sometimes biosolids are distributed to farms. While some states, Tribes, or counties may have additional rules 
around the use of biosolids, federal rules currently allow biosolids to be applied to pastures, feed crops, and 
crops for direct human consumption. Biosolids can also be applied to forests, tree farms, golf courses, turf 
farms, and other types of land. In other cases, biosolids are bagged and sold at stores to the general public and 
are often used on lawns or in home gardens. Not all WWTPs create biosolids for land application; some 
incinerate sewage sludge and others send it to a landfill. Biosolids are different from manure or industrial sludge 
(like pulp from a paper mill), which are also sometimes used as a soil amendment. The EPA does not regulate 
the land application of manure or industrial sludges in the same manner it does for biosolids. 
 
What are PFOA and PFOS? 
PFOA and PFOS are two chemicals in a large class of synthetic chemicals called per- and polyfluoroalkyl 
substances (PFAS). PFOA and PFOS have been widely studied, and they were once high production volume 
chemicals within the PFAS chemical class. PFAS have been manufactured and used by a broad range of industries 
since the 1940s, and there are estimated to be thousands of PFAS present in the global marketplace that are 
used in many consumer, commercial, and industrial products. PFOA and PFOS tend to persist in the environment 
for long periods of time and have been linked to a variety of adverse human health effects.1  
 
PFAS manufacturers voluntarily phased out domestic manufacturing of PFOA and PFOS and the EPA restricted 
their use by Significant New Use Rules (SNURs) issued under the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA).2 Though 

 
1 see the EPA’s Final Toxicity Assessment for PFOA and Final Toxicity Assessment for PFOS 
2 see the EPA’s Risk Management for PFAS under TSCA 

 
FACT SHEET 

62

https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-explained
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-explained
https://www.epa.gov/sdwa/human-health-toxicity-assessment-perfluorooctanoic-acid-pfoa
https://www.epa.gov/sdwa/human-health-toxicity-assessment-perfluorooctane-sulfonic-acid-pfos
https://www.epa.gov/assessing-and-managing-chemicals-under-tsca/risk-management-and-polyfluoroalkyl-substances-pfas


Page 2 of 5 
 

concentrations of PFOA and PFOS in people’s blood have lowered since the voluntary phase out, blood levels 
can be elevated in communities where there is significant environmental contamination and exposure. 3 
 
Why is the EPA concerned about the presence of PFOA and PFOS in sewage sludge?  
Although domestic manufacturing of PFOA and PFOS have been phased out and their uses restricted, multiple 
activities still result in PFOA, PFOS, and their precursors being released to WWTPs.4 Traditional wastewater 
treatment technology does not remove or destroy PFOA or PFOS, and these chemicals typically accumulate in 
the sewage sludge. PFOA and PFOS have strong chemical bonds, which means they do not break down on their 
own in the environment or in our bodies. The chemicals can move from soils to groundwater or nearby lakes or 
streams, and be taken up into fish, plants, and livestock. These factors combine to raise questions about the 
potential risks associated with the presence of PFOA or PFOS in sewage sludge that is land applied as a soil 
conditioner or fertilizer (on agricultural, forested, and other lands), surface disposed, or incinerated. 
 
What are the potential sources of PFOA and PFOS in sewage sludge? 
Current and historical activities include industrial releases (e.g., certain types of firefighting foam, pulp and 
paper plants), commercial releases (e.g., car washes, industrial launderers), and down-the-drain releases from 
homes (e.g., use of consumer products like after-market water resistant sprays, ski wax, floor finishes, and 
laundering of stain or water-resistant textiles with PFOA or PFOS coatings). If products containing PFOA or PFOS 
are disposed of at a lined municipal solid waste landfill, because the most common off-site management 
practice for landfill leachate is to transfer it to a WWTP, then that landfill’s leachate could be a source of PFOA 
and PFOS to a WWTP. Studies have found that PFOA and PFOS in sewage sludge even at WWTPs that only 
receive wastewater from residential and commercial users. At different WWTPs across the country, any of these 
release mechanisms may play a role in PFOA or PFOS entering the plant and contaminating the sewage sludge.  
 
What is a sewage sludge risk assessment?  
Risk assessment is a scientific process that is used to understand health risks to people, livestock, or wildlife 
across the country. The EPA uses sewage sludge risk assessments to help evaluate whether actions, including 
regulation, are needed to protect those who may experience risks from sewage sludge use or disposal. In this 
sewage sludge risk assessment, the EPA estimates potential human exposures and risks in modeled scenarios 
where sewage sludge has been land applied or surface disposed. The draft risk assessment focuses on risks to 
humans because available data indicate that people are much more sensitive to exposures to PFOA or PFOS than 
livestock or wildlife. Finally, this risk assessment does not assess risks to people in the general population, who 
often have a diversity of sources for their foods.  
 
What does this draft sewage sludge risk assessment suggest?  
The draft risk assessment focuses on those living on or near impacted sites (e.g., farm families and their 
neighbors) or those that rely primarily on their products (e.g., food crops, animal products, drinking water); the 
draft risk assessment does not model risks for the general public. Based on the modeling in the draft sewage 
sludge risk assessment, the EPA finds that there may be human health risks exceeding the EPA’s acceptable 
thresholds for some modeled scenarios when land-applying sewage sludge that contains 1 part per billion (ppb) 
of PFOA or PFOS. The EPA also finds that there may be human health risks associated with drinking 

 
3 see the ATSDR’s Resources on PFAS Exposure in Impacted Communities  
4 see the EPA’s Preliminary Effluent Guidelines Program Plan 16 and Multi-Industry Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl 
Substances (PFAS) Study – 2021 Preliminary Report 

63

https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/pfas/index.html
https://www.epa.gov/eg/preliminary-effluent-guidelines-program-plan
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2021-09/multi-industry-pfas-study_preliminary-2021-report_508_2021.09.08.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2021-09/multi-industry-pfas-study_preliminary-2021-report_508_2021.09.08.pdf


Page 3 of 5 
 

contaminated groundwater sourced near a surface disposal site when sewage sludge containing 1 ppb of PFOA 
or sewage sludge containing 4 to 5 ppb of PFOS is disposed in an unlined or clay-lined surface disposal unit. The 
EPA provides a qualitative description of the potential risks to communities living near a sewage sludge 
incinerator (SSI) in the draft risk assessment but does not provide quantitative risk estimates due to significant 
data gaps related to the extent to which incineration in an SSI destroys PFOA and PFOS and the health effects of 
exposure to products of incomplete combustion. 
 
The draft risk calculations are not conservative estimates because (1) they model risk associated with sewage 
sludge containing 1 ppb PFOA or PFOS, which is on the low end of measured U.S. sewage sludge concentrations 
(2) reflect median exposure conditions (e.g., 50th percentile drinking water intake rates) rather than high end 
exposure conditions, (3) do not take into account non-sewage sludge exposures to PFOA and PFOS (e.g., 
consumer products, other dietary sources), (4) do not account for the combined risk of PFOA and PFOS, and (5) 
do not account for additional exposures from the transformation of PFOA and PFOS precursors. As such, risk 
estimates that account from multiple pathways, multiple sources of exposure, and multiple PFAS would be 
greater than presented in this draft assessment. 
 
What does this mean for communities?  
The Agency recognizes that this draft risk assessment may raise many questions, especially for those who have 
had biosolids applied to their farms or properties. The EPA encourages people who are concerned to learn about 
PFAS, including actions that may already be underway and opportunities to reduce exposure. The EPA has 
created answers to a list of important questions related to this announcement to help members of the public 
learn more. 
 
If you are concerned about PFAS in sewage sludge, the EPA recommends you contact your state environmental 
agency or county government to learn about its efforts to address PFOA and PFOS, including in wastewater and 
sewage sludge. You may also contact your local agriculture extension program, your closest USDA Service 
Center, or your local wastewater utility to learn more about the biosolids applied to your property and to find 
out whether they have monitoring data for PFAS or can provide any specific recommendations for your 
community. The EPA recommends that wastewater systems that find PFOA or PFOS in their biosolids that is land 
applied take steps to inform the users of biosolids, undertake additional sampling to assess the level, scope, and 
source of contamination, and examine options for steps to limit exposure. Current science indicates that lower 
levels of PFAS exposure present less risk, so these efforts to identify and reduce PFOA and PFOS in sewage 
sludge help protect public health. 
 
If you are concerned about PFAS in sewage sludge, the EPA recommends you: 

• Consider contacting your state environmental agency or county government to learn about its efforts to 
address PFOA and PFOS, including in wastewater and sewage sludge. 
o State and regional biosolids contacts: https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/epa-regional-and-state-

contacts-biosolids  
o General PFAS resources from your state: https://www.epa.gov/pfas/us-state-resources-about-pfas 

• Consider contacting your local agriculture extension program or your closest USDA Service Center. 
o https://extension.org/find-cooperative-extension-in-your-state/  
o https://www.farmers.gov/working-with-us/service-center-locator 

• Contact your local wastewater utility to learn more about the biosolids applied to your property and to 
find out whether they have monitoring data for PFAS or can provide any specific recommendations to 
request testing of the soil on your property. 

64

https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/frequent-questions-and-answers-draft-sewage-sludge-risk-assessment-pfoa-and-pfos
https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/epa-regional-and-state-contacts-biosolids
https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/epa-regional-and-state-contacts-biosolids
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/us-state-resources-about-pfas
https://extension.org/find-cooperative-extension-in-your-state/
https://www.farmers.gov/working-with-us/service-center-locator


Page 4 of 5 
 

• If you have a home drinking water well, ensure you are protecting and maintaining it: 
https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water  

• Consider testing your home drinking water well for PFOA and PFOS.  
o There is more information about testing private drinking water wells for PFAS in the EPA’s factsheet 

for small and rural communities under the section “Information for Communities and Households 
Served by Privately-Owned Wells”: https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-04/pfas-
npdwr_fact-sheet_monitoring_4.8.24.pdf  

• Learn more about the EPA’s Research on PFAS: https://www.epa.gov/chemical-research/research-and-
polyfluoroalkyl-substances-pfas    

• Review the EPA’s Meaningful and Achievable Steps You Can Take to Reduce Your Risk: 
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/meaningful-and-achievable-steps-you-can-take-reduce-your-risk  

• Learn more about the National Academies of Science and Medicine’s Guidance on PFAS Exposure, 
Testing, and Clinical Follow-up: https://nap.nationalacademies.org/resource/26156/interactive/   

 
What is the EPA doing to reduce exposure to PFOA and PFOS in sewage sludge?  
The potential risks posed by PFOA, PFOS, and other PFAS demand that the EPA address the problem on many 
fronts using all applicable statutory authorities. The EPA continues to fund research and take actions to reduce 
the concentration of PFOA and PFOS discharged to wastewater treatment plants, lower the concentration of 
these chemicals in sewage sludge, and reduce risk from use or disposal of sewage sludge.5 Specifically: 

• The EPA has provided over twenty million dollars in research funding through the Evaluation of 
Pollutants in Biosolids and Research for Understanding PFAS Uptake and Bioaccumulation in Plants and 
Animals in Agricultural, Rural, and Tribal Communities grants.  

• The EPA continues to work toward restricting industrial PFAS discharges to WWTPs using Effluent 
Limitations Guidelines. Current actions include: 

o Revising the Organic Chemicals, Plastics, and Synthetic Fibers Effluent Limitation Guidelines 
(ELGs) to address wastewater PFAS discharge from PFAS manufacturing facilities; 

o Revising the Metal Finishing and Electroplating ELGs to address wastewater discharge of PFAS 
from metal finishing and electroplating operations focusing on facilities using PFAS-based fume 
suppressants and wetting agents; and  

o Revising the Landfills ELGs to address PFAS discharges from landfill leachate.  
• The EPA’s upcoming Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) Influent PFAS Study will also help the 

Agency prioritize industrial point source categories for future study and, as appropriate, ELGs. 
• To better understand occurrence, the Agency has announced the next National Sewage Sludge Survey to 

obtain national concentration data on PFAS in sewage sludge. 
• The EPA continues to track releases through Toxics Release Inventory Reporting.  
• The EPA has updated the Interim Guidance on the Destruction and Disposal of PFAS and Materials 

Containing PFAS, which presents the state-of-the-science information on methods to remediate, dispose 
of, and destroy PFAS contamination.  

• The Agency has published Final Ambient Water Quality Criteria for Aquatic Life for PFOA and PFOS, 
which can be used for WWTP effluent permitting. 

• The EPA also released draft Human Health Criteria for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS which, when finalized, can 
be used for WWTP effluent permitting.  

 
 

5 Learn more about PFAS and review the Agency’s PFAS Strategic Roadmap: https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-
strategic-roadmap-epas-commitments-action-2021-2024  
 

65

https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-04/pfas-npdwr_fact-sheet_monitoring_4.8.24.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-04/pfas-npdwr_fact-sheet_monitoring_4.8.24.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/chemical-research/research-and-polyfluoroalkyl-substances-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/chemical-research/research-and-polyfluoroalkyl-substances-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/meaningful-and-achievable-steps-you-can-take-reduce-your-risk
https://nap.nationalacademies.org/resource/26156/interactive/
https://www.epa.gov/research-grants/national-priorities-evaluation-pollutants-biosolids-grants
https://www.epa.gov/research-grants/national-priorities-evaluation-pollutants-biosolids-grants
https://www.epa.gov/research-grants/research-grants-understanding-pfas-uptake-and-bioaccumulation-plants-and-animals
https://www.epa.gov/research-grants/research-grants-understanding-pfas-uptake-and-bioaccumulation-plants-and-animals
https://www.epa.gov/eg
https://www.epa.gov/eg
https://www.epa.gov/eg/study-pfas-influent-potws
https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/sewage-sludge-surveys
https://www.epa.gov/toxics-release-inventory-tri-program/addition-certain-pfas-tri-national-defense-authorization-act
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/interim-guidance-destruction-and-disposal-pfas-and-materials-containing-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/interim-guidance-destruction-and-disposal-pfas-and-materials-containing-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/wqc/pfas-and-aquatic-life
https://www.epa.gov/wqc/human-health-water-quality-criteria-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-strategic-roadmap-epas-commitments-action-2021-2024
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-strategic-roadmap-epas-commitments-action-2021-2024


Page 5 of 5 
 

While the PFOA and PFOS sewage sludge risk assessment and these agency actions are underway, the EPA 
recommends that states monitor sewage sludge for PFAS contamination, identify likely industrial discharges and 
other sources of PFAS, and implement industrial pretreatment programs where appropriate. Doing so will help 
reduce downstream PFAS contamination and lower the concentration of PFAS in sewage sludge as described in 
Section C of the EPA’s December 2022 memorandum entitled, “Addressing PFAS Discharges in NPDES Permits 
and Through the Pretreatment Program and Monitoring Programs.” 
 
Learn more about the EPA’s recent actions to address PFAS in sewage sludge. 
 
Learn more about the EPA’s Draft Sewage Sludge Risk Assessment for PFOA and PFOS.  
 

66

https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2022-12/NPDES_PFAS_State%20Memo_December_2022.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2022-12/NPDES_PFAS_State%20Memo_December_2022.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/and-polyfluoroalkyl-substances-pfas-sewage-sludge
https://www.epa.gov/biosolids/draft-sewage-sludge-risk-assessment-perfluorooctanoic-acid-pfoa-and-perfluorooctane


2024_12_4 Meeting Notes 
 
Attendees: Dave Senn, Lorien Fono, Ariella Chelsky, Ian Wren, Richard Looker, Kevin Lunde, 
Will Geiken 
 
Action Items 

● Richard to send Dave/Team overview of thoughts on science priorities 
● Will to schedule science project review meeting 
● Dave to send updated Meeting Agenda for Monday 12/9 

○ Please include link to planning subcommittee meeting folders 
● Ian to schedule next planning subcommittee meeting on Jan 8 (9:30-12:00) 

○ Please include a 20min agenda item to schedule future subcommittee meetings 
○ Please include an agenda item to plan a long term contract (5-yr) with USGS for 

Peterson cruises 
 
1. Meeting Agenda Review 

● Meeting Agenda 
● No changes to today’s agenda 

 
2. NMS PS Business 
 
2.1 Update on USGS Peterson 

● The Peterson repairs require that it be dry-docked for a couple months 
● Cracks on the hull are above the waterline but sufficiently hazardous for continued 

operation 
● Historical context: 

○ The Water Mission Area (WMA) intended to shutter the Peterson program after 
Jim Cloern retired in 2018, but pushback led them to transfer management to the 
USGS CA Water Science Center (WSC), while WMA would continue to cover the 
costs for the captain and basic O&M. All operation/science/staff is funded by the 
NMS, USGS, and others 

● Current Funding 
○ WSC has soft-money for Peterson.  
○ NMS contributed $250k for retrofitting the vessel.  
○ Annually the NMS and RMP contribute $550k ($200k and $350k respectively), 

while USGS probably contributes ~$400k-$500k. Their actual contribution is 
unknown. 

● The repair estimate is $250k, and a temporary patch would be $40k. WMA has agreed to 
pay for repairs, but it is likely the last investment they will make in the program 

○ The temporary patch would potentially allow the Peterson to continue sampling in 
the interim. Dave to confirm with Brian 

● Brian (WSC) thinks they can dry dock Nov-Jan, with the earliest possible completion on 
Mar 5. 

67

https://docs.google.com/document/d/18Xpfb8_xFU8hb0j_HEfYRU9g0Kb2OuKgYy8OOiGie3A/edit?tab=t.0#heading=h.n4cxve33sqnx


● Question for the group: Should we advocate for earlier completion to be available for 
spring/summer bloom or push it out until later in the year? 

○ Group consensus that it is best to repair as soon as possible. A nuance is that 
spring conditions were of high concern historically, but hopefully that data can be 
collected by smaller boats 

○ Request that Dave follow up with Brian on the reasons for the long timeline 
● In the past WSC has collected samples from a smaller boat (the Aiken). Is that a 

possibility for the interim? 
○ Aiken can do surface level sampling and some CTD casts 
○ Another vessel, the Turning Tide, could potentially cover sampling as well 
○ Dave to follow up with Brian on what the alternative vessel might be 
○ WSC has confirmed that they will miss Dec. samples 

■ As USGS is still drawing from the NMS budget, the group recommends 
requesting an alternate means of data collection during the interim. 

● Dave suggests getting a long term contract with the USGS put in place. The current 
contract expires in June 2025. The EPA funding presents a unique opportunity to set up 
something long term. 

○ Group to discuss how best to pursue that at the Jan. meeting. Recommendation 
that SFEI maintains its neutral status while partners push for hardline objectives. 

■ Kevin/WB is comfortable with reaching out and requests additional 
information prior to doing so, including current contract and related 
information. 

 
2.2 Funding Status 

● Page 3 of Meeting Planning Doc 
● EPA Funding Discussion 

○ The group requests updates on when the EPA funds will arrive 
■ The most recent update is: Dana sent an email this morning (12/4) saying 

that she expects the funds to come at the end of Dec/beginning of Jan. 
That would make the 3-month award date Oct. 1, 2024 

■ Generally speaking, the deadline keeps getting moved back. Luisa is 
trying to get the EPA to approve in January 

○ Dave shared the 3 most likely scenarios for the funding (1. No EPA funds 2. Only 
the first 2 years of funds. 3. All 5 years of funds). 

■ Scenario 2 seems the safest to plan on, which includes $6M from the EPA 
● WB recommends generating the science project plans without regard for potential 

funding scenarios. Alternatively, it may be best to plan on spending the maximum for the 
first 2 years to avoid future “claw-back.” 

○ Dave recommends keeping Scenario 2 in mind as the conservative scenario so 
that we can keep science plans in scope 

○ Request that Luisa attend a meeting (smaller group or larger) for PS to receive a 
direct update (either at NTW or next PS meeting) 

68

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Uu5FHnScYkR6Uepqs2susW1RL79Z0amlmNdhH_iTBpI/edit?tab=t.0


■ Questions for Luisa: Do we ask for money in the next round right away? 
When does the next round of applications start? Are they competitive or 
non-competitive? 

● The NMS has already gone through a non-competitive process. At 
some point around 2027 we would go through next steps to get 
remaining funds. That process is not completely clear at this time. 

● Dave reviewed the five potential near-future NMS hires. If the NMS does not receive the 
full 5-year fund, all five positions cannot be hired.  

○ WB/BACWA recommendation to hire program manager first and then make 
decisions on other hires with the program manager’s guidance 

○ WB recommendation to not hire a project manager at this time 
○ SFEI’s NMS & RMP programs are working on hiring a joint project manager and 

a joint science communications person 
○ The three roles not hiring yet are the program manager, the environmental 

analyst, and the modeler.  
○ Questions for the group: What type of person would best fit the program manager 

role? Would it be an executive assistant or another executive? 
■ Due to time constraints, this was not discussed 

 
3. Science Planning 

● Reviewing the WB/BACWA meeting on 11/22 
○ Question for the group: Did that meeting shift any thoughts on project types for 

Science Planning? 
■ The general response was that it did not cause dramatic shifts. 

○ Are we trying to recalculate the permit limits based on revised modeling? 
■ BACWA, if we are going to go into construction, we cannot have the limits 

change mid-construction. The timelines for major permit changes need to 
match construction timelines. 

■ WB is planning to have internal conversations about how limits might 
change/what types of science projects are looked at. Generally, the 
projects will be the same. The WB needs to be able to account for new 
information and adjust permits accordingly. There are ways that the 
previous calculations could be improved, and the proposed projects are 
designed to improve those calculations. 

■ WB proposed a time limit of 3-years for new project findings to inform the 
next permit. Whatever vehicle is used to assign regulation (TMDLs, etc.) 
the projects the WB suggested are designed to create the necessary 
refinements in WQBELs that will define that regulation. 

● WB needs to know the science planning thoughts from NMS. 
Including how quickly projects can happen and what the potential 
costs are. 

○ Currently 50-60% of plans are drafted. All will be ready for 
Monday 

● Reviewing Priority Project Drafts (included here) 

69

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Uu5FHnScYkR6Uepqs2susW1RL79Z0amlmNdhH_iTBpI/edit?tab=t.0


○ Dave reviewed the reorganization of the project types (see flow chart). New 
numbering includes projects 1-15 as well as x1, x2, and x3 

○ General Modeling Comments: The WB would prefer to base their decisions on 
model output that is adequately characterizing the bloom so that they would not 
have to make assumptions about the DO field, as was done in the previous 
permit determination. In the event that such model improvements are not 
possible, similar but improved methodology could still be used. 

■ If possible, it would be great to have a model that dynamically computes 
carbon through a DO field. Last time we developed a carbon field that 
was the net result of the 2022 bloom and did post-processing outside the 
model, which assumed all carbon gets consumed and subtracted that 
from a uniform DO field. It would be preferable to assess the carbon 
throughout the bloom and avoid post-processing outside the model. The 
model would take care of the carbon accounting, and not just DO, but 
there could be a direct HAB impact applied through the model. This would 
allow us to redo the calculation for 2022 without a uniform carbon field. 
So, we’d like to see how the model develops and then maybe have that 
accounting done dynamically. 

○ Project 1. Refine DO Field Assumptions: 
■ WB intention is to generate more refined analyses in the future when we 

are modeling new WQBELs. They do not intend to adjust last-years 
model runs. 

■ When we do new management scenarios/develop a new set of WQBELs 
in the future, this would include new model runs with the improved model. 
Assumption that model improvements would help refine permits. 

■ Suggestion not to lead with this project. This would occur after model 
development. 

■ WB sees Potential Approach 2 as the back-up to refining the model 
○ Project 6. Dynamic Modeling of Blooms 

■ Many projects noted that, “if the model is improved, then…” Those are 
summarized under project 6 

■ Dave emphasized that the model is improving, but there are many 
unknowns/new findings that will emerge along the way that will influence 
its output 

● The way to test the model will be to look at it as a set of scenarios 
● August 2022 is an extreme episodic event (ex: ~1/100 years), so 

there is a lot of uncertainty because we only have one event to 
test.  

● We need rigorous testing to ensure confidence in the results 
● The model cannot predict predict pre-bloom conditions and has 

other areas that need improvement 
● WB agrees on the importance of stress testing the model to try 

and be inclusive of other possible bloom scenarios (get at return 
frequency). It is important to stretch beyond the conditions that 

70



lead to the 2022 event and instead characterize conditions that 
would lead to the 2023 and other blooms.  

 
4. Dec 9th NTW Meeting 

● Part of the meeting will be Sci Updates 
● Question for the group: Do we want to discuss project-by-project, or should we dive 

in-depth on the model and what it needs (or another topic)? 
● Suggestion to discuss what we like for the model, and what the questions to bring to the 

MAG/our priorities for modeling. 
○ This would help inform the project sequence and help us determine how 

uncertainty can be characterized 
● Request for a meeting agenda: 

○ Current plan is to have 2 hours for technical updates and 2.5 hours for science 
planning 

○ Suggestion to cut this science planning to approx. 1hr with first 30min to provide 
a roadmap for how the science planning process will go and the remaining time 
to discuss Dave’s analysis of where the model stands now, what we could use it 
for, and what improvements should be made first  

○ Suggestion to include previous recommendations from the MAG and then 
discuss what the model can/cannot do, uncertainties, etc. That could be the 
discussion 

○ Richard will send the group a write up with WB goals for the model to inform 
planning 

71



 

Executive Board Special Meeting Agenda  
SF Bay Regional Water Board /  
BACWA Executive Board Joint Meeting 
February or March 2025 – Date and Venue TBD 

 

1. Roll Call and Introductions 
2. Public Comment 
3. Discussion Items – See below 

 

Topic Goal Time 
A. Agency 

Updates 
• Roundtable from BACWA and Water Board  

B. Nutrients • Status of revising state Compliance Schedule Policy 
• Update on BACWA Group Annual Report 
• Update on BACWA Regional Planning – Scoping Plan and 

scheduling next meeting 
• Science Planning and priorities 

 

C. PFAS • USEPA Draft Human Health Water Quality Criteria 
• USEPA Draft Biosolids Risk Assessment 
• Bay Area Pollution Prevention Group (BAPPG) Spring 

Public Outreach Campaign 
• “Sources to Solutions” project coordination 

 

D. Mercury and 
PCBs  

• USEPA proposed Methods Update Rule to remove PCB 
Aroclor methods 

• Risk Reduction – Fish Consumption survey pilot project 

 

E. Recycled 
Water 

• State Water Board’s Onsite Nonpotable Reuse 
Regulations 

 

F.  Other Items as 
time allows 

• Army Corps of Engineers – SF Bay Sea Level Rise Survey   
• BACWA and Bay Area Biosolids Coalition Update 

 

G.  Upcoming 
Events 

• BACWA Annual Members Meeting, May 2nd, 2025  

 
4. Adjournment 

DRAFT

72



 

PO Box 24055, MS 702 • Oakland, CA 94623 • 925.451.2017 • www.bacwa.org 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District • East Bay Dischargers Authority • City of San Jose • East Bay Municipal Utility District • City & County of San Francisco 

 
 
 
January 13, 2025 
 
Eileen White, Executive Officer 
San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board 
1515 Clay Street, 14th Floor 
Oakland, CA 94612 
 
VIA EMAIL: Eileen.White@Waterboards.ca.gov 
 
Subject: NPDES Permit Requirements for Receiving Water Quality Monitoring, TMDL/SSO 

Support, Mercury and PCBs Watershed Permit Support, and Implementation of Copper 
Action Plans 

 
Dear Eileen White: 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA) and its members that own and 
operate publicly-owned treatment works (POTWs) and that have National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permits to discharge to San Francisco Bay Area waters. The NPDES 
permits issued to these agencies impose some requirements that are most efficiently fulfilled as a group. 
The purpose of this letter is to report on behalf of BACWA members that those requirements are being 
met, including permit provisions related to: (A) Receiving Water Quality Monitoring; (B) Support for the 
RMP for supplemental monitoring of constituents of emerging concern; (C) Mercury and PCBs 
Watershed Permit Support; (D) Cyanide Action Plan; (E) Copper Action Plan; (F) Nutrient Watershed 
Permit Support; and (G) Total Maximum Daily Load Support.  
 
A. Receiving Water Quality Monitoring 
 
Various NPDES permits require that the permittees support the Regional Monitoring Program for Water 
Quality in the San Francisco Estuary (RMP), administered by the San Francisco Estuary Institute (SFEI), 
and established by San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water Board) 
Resolution 92-043, adopted April 15, 1992. BACWA members have and continue to fulfill this 
requirement by participating in and providing funding to the RMP. A letter from SFEI, dated December 
30, 2024, confirming BACWA member agencies’ contributions to the RMP, is attached for reference. 
 
B. Support for Monitoring of Constituents of Emerging Concern 
 
Individual NPDES permits as issued or as amended by Order R2-2021-0028 require POTWs to provide 
supplemental funding to the RMP to support additional studies for constituents of emerging concern. 
POTWs that made supplemental contributions to the RMP per this requirement are listed in the attached 
letter from SFEI dated December 30, 2024.  
 
In addition to the special studies supported by these supplemental funds (listed below), the priorities of 
the RMP have been migrating away from legacy contaminants in favor of CECs. The RMP will continue 
to evaluate the status of legacy contaminants in all matrices, and CECs are being added based on the 
results of an extensive review of the RMP’s Status and Trends (S&T) Program. As of 2024, the following 
CECs have been added to the S&T Program: PFAS (water, sediment, prey fish, sport fish, bird eggs, 
marine mammals), bisphenols (water, sediment), and organophosphate esters (water).  
 

73

http://www.bacwa.org/
mailto:Eileen.White@Waterboards.ca.gov


 
BACWA NPDES Compliance Report  Page 2 of 5 
January 13, 2025    
 
Supplemental fees fully or partially funded the following projects in 2024 (dollar amounts were budgeted 
for 2024):  

• Tire and roadway contaminants in wet season Bay water (Year 3; $50k)  
• Organophosphate esters, Bisphenols, and other plastic additives in Wastewater ($95.4k) 
• PFAS Synthesis and Strategy ($107k) 
• PFAS in Bay Water using the TOP Assay ($67.2k) 
• Nontargeted analysis of SF Bay Fish (Year 1, $23k) 
 
Several other RMP studies conducted in 2024 were related to CECs but were not specifically supported 
by supplemental funding from wastewater agencies: Stormwater CECs Monitoring and Modeling 
($300k), Land Feature Datasets for Modeling CECs ($20k), and Microplastics in Stormwater Monitoring 
Pilot Year 1 ($78.1k). Reports on emerging and legacy contaminants published in 2024 included the 
following:  

• Dougherty, J., et al. Ethoxylated Surfactants in San Francisco Bay Water, Urban Stormwater Runoff, 
and Wastewater: Summary Report for Water Quality Managers. SFEI Contribution No. 1202. San 
Francisco Estuary Institute, Richmond, CA, 2024. https://www.sfei.org/documents/ethoxylated-
surfactants-san-francisco-bay-water-urban-stormwater-runoff-and-municipal 

• Lin, D., et al. “Residential Wastewater as a Major Source of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances to 
Municipal Wastewater.” ACS EST Water, October 12, 2024. 
https://doi.org/10.1021/acsestwater.4c00507 

• Mahony, A., et al. Investigation of quaternary ammonium compounds (QACs) in wastewater effluent, 
influent, biosolids, and environmental matrices in San Francisco Bay. SFEI Contribution No. 1196. 
San Francisco Estuary Institute, Richmond, CA, 2024. https://www.sfei.org/documents/investigation-
quaternary-ammonium-compounds-qacs-wastewater-effluent-influent-biosolids 

• San Francisco Estuary Institute (SFEI). The Pulse of the Bay. San Francisco Estuary Institute: 
Richmond, California, 2024. SFEI Contribution No. 1219. https://www.sfei.org/documents/pulse-
bay-contaminants-emerging-concern 

 
C. Mercury and PCBs Watershed Permit Support 
 
The Mercury and PCBs Watershed Permit (NPDES Permit CA0038849) was most recently reissued as 
Order R2-2022-0038 with an effective date of February 1, 2023. The Mercury and PCBs Watershed 
Permit requires source control and risk reduction activities by permittees.   

In 2024, BACWA’s Bay Area Pollution Prevention Group (BAPPG) continued to reach out to dental 
assistant and dental hygienist students to educate them about proper amalgam management and disposal. 
This campaign reached approximately 150 students and instructors through in-person visits to the 
following institutions:   

• San José City College (two visits) 
• Foothill College, Los Altos 
• Santa Rosa Junior College 
• College of Marin, Novato    
• City College of San Francisco 

The instructors have come to rely on these annual visits and have incorporated BAPPG’s program into 
their instructional calendar. Further, this is a relevant audience for other messages, such as wipes and 
pharmaceutical disposal.  

74

https://www.sfei.org/documents/ethoxylated-surfactants-san-francisco-bay-water-urban-stormwater-runoff-and-municipal
https://www.sfei.org/documents/ethoxylated-surfactants-san-francisco-bay-water-urban-stormwater-runoff-and-municipal
https://doi.org/10.1021/acsestwater.4c00507
https://doi.org/10.1021/acsestwater.4c00507
https://www.sfei.org/documents/investigation-quaternary-ammonium-compounds-qacs-wastewater-effluent-influent-biosolids
https://www.sfei.org/documents/investigation-quaternary-ammonium-compounds-qacs-wastewater-effluent-influent-biosolids
https://www.sfei.org/documents/pulse-bay-contaminants-emerging-concern
https://www.sfei.org/documents/pulse-bay-contaminants-emerging-concern
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_decisions/adopted_orders/2022/R2-2022-0038.pdf


 
BACWA NPDES Compliance Report  Page 3 of 5 
January 13, 2025    
 
The BAPPG-hosted website Baywise.org was updated in 2024 and contains pollution prevention 
guidance for dental offices at https://baywise.org/business-resources/pollution-prevention-guidance-for-
dental-offices.    

The Mercury and PCBs Watershed Permit requires that permittees implement or participate in programs 
to reduce mercury and PCBs-related risks to humans from the consumption of San Francisco Bay and 
Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta fish. In 2024, BACWA conducted planning activities for risk 
reduction work to be conducted during the remainder of the permit term (2025-2028). BACWA is 
currently exploring opportunities to fund data collection activities related to the development of 
subsistence fishing water quality objectives for San Francisco Bay. A draft fish consumption survey 
questionnaire was completed in 2024 and is available at https://www.sfei.org/projects/consumption-
survey-questionnaire-san-francisco-bay-subsistence-fishers. In 2025, BACWA will coordinate with the 
Water Board and SFEI to provide funding for pilot testing of this survey questionnaire by community-
based organizations.  
 
RMP mercury and PCBs sampling in 2024 included ongoing monitoring in three watersheds around the 
region to further develop calibration data for the Watershed Dynamic Model. Six storms were monitored 
in this effort. Additionally, the RMP funded PCB sampling both upstream and downstream of the former 
General Electric Plant in two watershed tributaries to the San Leandro Bay. The two sub-watersheds have 
been identified as highly polluted in previous RMP sampling efforts. The RMP’s Status and Trends 
Monitoring Program monitors mercury, PCBs, and other contaminants in sport fish on a five-year cycle.  
Sport fish collection was successfully completed in 2024, and the samples will be processed and analyzed 
in spring 2025. Data are provided in the following reports: 

• Gilbreath, A.; McKee, L.; Heberger, M; and Moran, K. Sources, Pathways, and Loadings Strategy: 
2024 Update. Regional Monitoring Program for Water Quality in San Francisco Bay, Contribution 
No. 1189. San Francisco Estuary Institute, Richmond, California, 2024.  
https://www.sfei.org/documents/rmp-sources-pathways-and-loadings-strategy-2024-update 

• Cho, Y.M., et al. Study of Historic Loading and Spatial Distribution of Polychlorinated Biphenyls 
(PCBs) using Passive Sampling Devices (PSDs) in the Steinberger Slough and Redwood Creek 
Complex in San Francisco Bay, California, USA. SFEI Contribution No. 1223. San Francisco Estuary 
Institute: Richmond, CA, 2024. https://www.sfei.org/documents/study-historic-loading-and-spatial-
distribution-polychlorinated-biphenyls-pcbs-using 

 
D. Cyanide Action Plan 
 
As part of the site-specific objective (SSO) for cyanide, NPDES dischargers are required to calculate the 
3-event rolling average of total cyanide concentrations in each segment of the Bay, based on RMP data. 
In 2024, RMP scientists tabulated results from the cyanide sampling completed during the 2023 water 
cruise. The results are available in the report listed below below: 
 
• Trinh, M. 2023 Update to Cyanide Rolling Average. San Francisco Estuary Institute: Richmond, 

California, 2025. https://www.sfei.org/documents/2023-update-cyanide-rolling-average 
 

The 2023 sample results indicate that ambient cyanide concentrations continue to be below the trigger 
level of 1.0 µg/L in all five segments of the Bay. The next round of sampling is scheduled for summer 
2025.  
 
 
 
  

75

https://baywise.org/
https://baywise.org/business-resources/pollution-prevention-guidance-for-dental-offices/
https://baywise.org/business-resources/pollution-prevention-guidance-for-dental-offices/
https://www.sfei.org/projects/consumption-survey-questionnaire-san-francisco-bay-subsistence-fishers
https://www.sfei.org/projects/consumption-survey-questionnaire-san-francisco-bay-subsistence-fishers
https://www.sfei.org/documents/rmp-sources-pathways-and-loadings-strategy-2024-update
https://www.sfei.org/documents/study-historic-loading-and-spatial-distribution-polychlorinated-biphenyls-pcbs-using
https://www.sfei.org/documents/study-historic-loading-and-spatial-distribution-polychlorinated-biphenyls-pcbs-using
https://www.sfei.org/documents/2023-update-cyanide-rolling-average


 
BACWA NPDES Compliance Report  Page 4 of 5 
January 13, 2025    
 
E. Copper Action Plan 
 
The copper action plan contained in many Bay Area POTW permits requires permittees to implement a 
plan to reduce copper discharges, conduct studies to reduce copper pollutant impact uncertainties, and 
implement additional measures should the three-year rolling mean in various parts of the Bay exceed site-
specific concentration triggers. In 2024, RMP scientists tabulated results from the copper sampling 
completed during the 2023 water cruise. The results are available in the report listed below: 

• Trinh, M. 2023 Update to Copper Rolling Average. San Francisco Estuary Institute: Richmond, 
California, 2025. https://www.sfei.org/documents/2023-update-copper-rolling-average 
 

Results indicate that ambient copper concentrations are below the respective trigger levels for all five 
segments of the Bay. The next round of sampling is scheduled for summer 2025.  
 
The BAPPG-hosted website Baywise.org contains resources for plumbers that focus on the key messages 
pertaining to copper control: use of ASTM B813 flux, and other best management practices to reduce 
pipe corrosion. Outreach materials are available at  https://baywise.org/business-resources/pollution-
prevention-guidance-for-plumbers/ 
 
 F. Nutrient Watershed Permit Compliance 

The Regional Water Board reissued the Nutrient Watershed Permit (NPDES Permit CA0038873) in July 
2024 with an effective date of October 1, 2024. On this date, the 2024 Nutrient Watershed Permit (Order 
R2-2024-0013) replaced the 2019 Watershed Permit (Order R2-2019-0017). Through a nutrient surcharge 
levied on permittees, BACWA is funding compliance with the following provisions of the 2019 and 2024 
Nutrient Watershed Permits on behalf of its members: 

• Group Annual Reporting (2019 and 2024 Nutrient Watershed Permits) – On February 1, 2024, 
BACWA submitted the 2023 Group Annual Report on behalf of permittees. The 2023 Group Annual 
Report covered the period October 2022 - September 2023 and is available online at 
https://bacwa.org/document/group-annual-report-2024-02-01/. The next Group Annual Report is 
being prepared per updated requirements in the reissued 2024 Nutrient Watershed Permit, which 
requires progress reports towards meeting the permit’s final effluent limitations for total inorganic 
nitrogen. The next Group Annual Report will be submitted to the Regional Water Board by the due 
date of April 1, 2025.   
 

• Nature-Based Solutions for Nutrient Removal (2019 Nutrient Watershed Permit only) – Final 
reports for Phase 1 and Phase 2 of this special study were finalized in June 2023, as required by the 
2019 Permit. In 2024, Phase 3 concept designs and cost estimates were completed by SFEI and HDR 
for Delta Diablo, Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District, and the City of San José. This work utilized 
remaining funds from the two previous phases and was submitted to the Regional Water Board on 
September 30, 2024. Facility acceptance letters were submitted to the Water Board and are available 
upon request. A report featuring case studies of constructed treatment wetlands used by five BACWA 
member agencies was also provided to the Water Board. All phases of the work, including case 
studies and the Phase 3 concept designs and cost estimates completed in 2024, are available online at 
https://bacwa.org/document-category/2nd-watershed-permit-studies/.  
 

• Monitoring, Modeling, and Subembayment Studies (2019 and 2024 Nutrient Watershed Permits) – 
In 2024, BACWA continued to provide financial support for monitoring, modeling and 
subembayment studies conducted per the San Francisco Bay Nutrient Management Strategy, which is 
managed by SFEI. BACWA is providing a total of $2,200,000 to SFEI in Fiscal Year 2025, as 

76

https://www.sfei.org/documents/2023-update-copper-rolling-average
https://baywise.org/
https://baywise.org/business-resources/pollution-prevention-guidance-for-plumbers/
https://baywise.org/business-resources/pollution-prevention-guidance-for-plumbers/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_decisions/adopted_orders/2024/R2-2024-0013.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_decisions/adopted_orders/2024/R2-2024-0013.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_decisions/adopted_orders/2019/R2-2019-0017.pdf
https://bacwa.org/document/group-annual-report-2024-02-01/
https://bacwa.org/document-category/2nd-watershed-permit-studies/


 
BACWA NPDES Compliance Report  Page 5 of 5 
January 13, 2025    
 

required by the 2019 and 2024 Nutrient Watershed Permits. BACWA also submits an annual science 
plan on behalf of dischargers, and the science plan for Fiscal Year 2024 was submitted to the 
Regional Water Board in advance of the due date of February 1, 2024. Per the reissued 2024 Nutrient 
Watershed Permit, the next update of the science plan will be submitted to the Regional Water Board 
by the due date of June 1, 2025. 
 

• Regional Planning to Reduce Total Inorganic Nitrogen Loads (2024 Nutrient Watershed Permit 
only) – The reissued 2024 Nutrient Watershed Permit requires completion of a report describing 
regionwide planning efforts to meet the permit’s final effluent limitations. BACWA intends to 
complete this task on behalf of applicable member agencies (i.e., those listed in Table 4 of R2-2024-
0013), beginning with completion of a scoping plan due to the Regional Water Board by July 1, 2025. 
BACWA has retained consulting firm HDR, Inc., to assist with preparation of the scoping plan. 

G. Total Maximum Daily Load Support 
 
Some POTW permits previously included a requirement that permittees report to the Regional Water 
Board any actions taken in support of Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) for 303(d) listed pollutants. 
Support for these efforts has been provided largely through support of the RMP.  

In 2014, the RMP convened a Selenium Strategy Team and developed a Selenium Strategy in the Multi-
Year Plan. The multi-year plan involves monitoring for selenium in water, clams, and sturgeon to support 
the North Bay selenium TMDL. Sampling for selenium was paused in 2024 for a review of the data 
collected through 2023. In addition, RMP funds were budgeted to find analytical partners able to analyze 
small tissue sample masses associated with non-lethal sampling techniques used for sampling sturgeon 
muscle tissue. Sampling is expected to resume in 2026. 

Please contact me if you have any questions about the information contained in this letter. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 
Lorien Fono, Ph.D., P.E. 
Executive Director 
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies 
 
Encl: SFEI Letter regarding RMP Participation, December 30, 2024 
 
cc:    Bill Johnson, Chief, Wastewater Control and Enforcement Division, Regional Water Board 
 Xavier Fernandez, Chief, Planning and TMDL Division, Regional Water Board 

BACWA Executive Board 
Meg Herston, BACWA Permits Committee Chair 
 

77



 
December 30, 2024 

Lorien Fono 
Executive Director 
Bay Area Clean Water Agencies  
PO Box 24055, MS 702 
Oakland, CA 94623 
 
Dear Dr. Fono, 
 
The Regional Monitoring Program for Water Quality in San Francisco Bay (RMP) is the only 
comprehensive environmental monitoring program to measure pollutants and trends in the Bay. The 
RMP, which began in 1993, is a successful partnership of scientists, government, municipalities, and 
industry to understand and improve the health of the Bay. 

 
The goal of the RMP is to collect data and communicate information about water quality in the San 
Francisco Estuary in support of management decisions. The accomplishments of the RMP are 
summarized in the RMP Update and the Pulse. The Pulse was published in October 2024. Current 
and past Pulses can be downloaded here; RMP Updates can be found here.  
 
In 2024, 35 wastewater treatment facilities collectively contributed the full amount of the core RMP 
program costs assigned to publicly owned treatment works ($1,903,741; see Table 1 for a complete 
list of agencies). The process used to determine the core fees for each participant group are outlined 
in the Program Charter: http://www.sfei.org/documents/charter-regional-monitoring-program-water-
quality-san-francisco-bay. 
 
In December 2021, the Water Board adopted Order R2-2021-0028, which requires publicly owned 
treatment works to provide supplemental funding to the RMP to support additional studies for 
constituents of emerging concern (CECs). In 2024, 35 wastewater treatment facilities made 
supplemental contributions to the Program under Order R2-2021-0028 and similar requirements 
found in reissued individual NPDES permits ($339,994 see Table 1).  
 
Your support is essential to the RMP. Through these financial contributions, the RMP is able to 
conduct regional monitoring to assess the cumulative impact of multiple sources of pollutants to the 
Bay, including the growing number of emerging contaminants that are a concern. We thank you and 
your members for the support and look forward to serving you in 2025. 

  
Sincerely, 

 
Amy Kleckner 
RMP Manager  
 

78

https://www.sfei.org/programs/rmp/communications/pulse-bay
https://www.sfei.org/programs/rmp/communications/rmp-update
http://www.sfei.org/documents/charter-regional-monitoring-program-water-quality-san-francisco-bay
http://www.sfei.org/documents/charter-regional-monitoring-program-water-quality-san-francisco-bay


    

  

Table 1 

 

Wastewater Treatment Facilities Contributing to the RMP in 2024 in FY24 

 

POTW Dischargers  Core RMP  

Fees 

Supplemental Fees 

for CECs Studies(1) 

American Canyon, City of  YES YES 
Benicia, City of  YES YES 
Burlingame, City of  YES YES 
Calistoga, City of  YES YES 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District  YES YES 
Central Marin Sanitation Agency  YES YES 
Delta Diablo  YES YES 
East Bay Dischargers Authority  YES YES 
East Bay Municipal Utilities District  YES YES 
Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District  YES YES 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  YES YES 
Marin County (Tiburon), Sanitary District No. 5 of  YES YES 
Millbrae, City of  YES YES 
Mt. View Sanitary District  YES YES 
Napa Sanitation District YES YES 
Novato Sanitary District  YES YES 
Palo Alto, City of  YES YES 
Petaluma, City of  YES YES 
Pinole/Hercules, City of  YES YES 
Rodeo Sanitary District  YES YES 
San Francisco, City and County of, San Francisco International 
Airport  

YES YES 

San Francisco (Southeast Plant), City and County of  YES YES 
San José-Santa Clara Regional Wastewater Facility  YES YES 
San Mateo, City of  YES YES 
Sausalito - Marin City Sanitary District  YES YES 
Sewerage Agency of Southern Marin  YES YES 
Silicon Valley Clean Water  YES YES 
Sonoma Valley County Sanitary District  YES YES 
South San Francisco and San Bruno, Cities of  YES YES 
St. Helena, City of  YES YES 
Sunnyvale, City of  YES YES 
Treasure Island Development Authority  YES YES 
Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District  YES YES 
West County Agency  YES YES 
Yountville, Town of  YES YES 

(1) NPDES Permit CA0037885 (Port Costa Wastewater Treatment Plant) and NPDES CA0037427 (Paradise Cove 
Treatment Plant) also require supplemental funding of CECs studies, but the requested contribution in 2024 was 
$0 due to these agencies’ small size.   

79



FY 26 Budget Adoption Schedule 

Finance Committee Meeting ( Tuesday January 27th) 

Draft FY 26 Budget Discussion at Board Meeting (February 21 Board Meeting) 

Review of any updates to Draft Budget (March 21 Board meeting) 

FY 26 Budget Adoption (April 18 Board Meeting) 

Additional meetings with Finance Committee as needed 

80



 

2025 BACWA Board Meetings 

 

January 17 - SFPUC 

February 21 – EBMUD Orinda 

March 21 – Central San 

April 18 – EBMUD Oakland 

May 2nd – Annual Meeting, Brower Center, Berkeley  

June 20 - SFPUC 

July 18  

August 15 

September 19 

October 9 & 10– Pardee Technical Seminar 

 The only alternative dates available in fall 2025 are September 15 & 16th (Monday & Tuesday). 

November 21 * 

December 19 * 

 

*Combine into an early December meeting (December 5, 2025) 

81



  

TIME DESCRIPTION SPEAKER

8:30am - 9:00am Coffee in the lobby

9:00 am - 9:15 am Welcome/Introduction Jackie Zipkin, BACWA Chair/ EBDA

Year in Review Lorien Fono, BACWA

9:15 am - 10:30 am Regulator Priorities Moderator: 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District

US Environmental Protection Agency

State Water Resources Control Board staff

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Board staff

Q&A

10:30 am - 11:00 am Break - Coffee and snacks in the foyer

11:00 am - 12:00 pm Pollution Prevention and Source Control Panel Moderator: 

Agency update?

DTSC?

SFEI on PFAS?

Facilitated Discussion

12:00 pm - 1:00 pm Lunch - On the terrace

1:00 pm - 1:10 pm BACWA Leadership Recognition Jackie Zipkin, BACWA Chair/EBDA

1:10 pm -2:30m Nutrient updates Moderator: 

Overview Lorien Fono, BACWA

Regional Planning Mike Falk

Regulatory Outlook Richard Looker or Bill Johnson

Science Plan Communications Dave Senn

Facilitated Discussion

2:30 pm - 3:20 pm Climate Change and Emergency Response Panel Moderator: 

3:20 pm - 3:30 pm Annual Meeting Wrap-Up Jackie Zipkin, BACWA Chair/EBDA

3:30 PM Adjourn - Social hour

BAY AREA CLEAN WATER AGENCIES
ANNUAL MEETING PROGRAM

May 2, 2025
David Brower Center

Berkeley, CA

82



Pretreatment Committee 
Report to BACWA Board  

Committee meeting on 11/20/2024 
Executive Board Meeting Date: 1/17/2024 
Committee Chairs: Casey Fitzgerald (San Jose), 
Michael Dunning (Union Sanitary District)  

 

Page 1 

Committee Request for Board Action:  The committee will request funding for training in FY25 or FY26. 
56 attendees from 20 agencies participated remotely.  
 

Committee Leadership – Volunteers Welcome!  
If you’re able to volunteer to help lead the committee, contact the current chairs or BACWA staff.      
PFAS Updates - BACWA staff provided regulatory, legislative, and science updates related to PFAS:  
• USEPA is planning to complete a POTW Influent PFAS Study as part of Effluent Guidelines Program 

Plan 15. All agencies with permitted dry weather flow > 10 MGD will be required to fill out the survey. A 
draft survey is now available for a preview. The survey will require information about Significant 
Industrial Users (SIUs) and non-SIUs that are suspected sources of PFAS. USEPA will require a subset 
of agencies to conduct sampling. USEPA is also working on effluent limitations guidelines for PFAS 
manufacturers and expects rules for metal finishers and landfills to follow (see USEPA Strategic 
Roadmap Progress Report, November 2024).  

• California’s Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) continues to identify certain consumer 
products containing PFAS, such as carpets, rugs, and artificial turf, as priority products. Per AB 347, 
DTSC now has new tools for enforcement of existing product bans for textiles, juvenile products, and 
food packaging. A product ban for menstrual products also recently passed (AB 2515). 

• USEPA may soon release draft human health criteria for fish consumption. Fish consumption criteria 
are likely to be the driver for PFAS effluent limitations for San Francisco Bay wastewater dischargers.  

• The final report for the BACWA regional PFAS study is now posted online and has also been published 
in a scientific journal (link). BACWA plans to continue studying PFAS sources to wastewater as part of 
the larger grant-funded PFAS Sources to Solutions project. A recent UC Irvine study found that urine, 
showers, and laundry were the main contributions to residential loads. 

Attendees discussed that direct engagement with metal finishers and landfills would be useful to 
understand the impact of expected USEPA rules on these industrial categories.  

Electronic Reporting 
USEPA’s NPDES  electronic reporting rule will eventually require that annual pretreatment reports be 
submitted electronically in tabular format (i.e., not a PDF file). Pilot testing is underway now. The State 
Water Board expects to roll out the reporting in California no sooner than 2026 (for 2025 reports). 
Program Benchmarking 
The group discussed the need to share information about one another’s pretreatment programs, and 
discussed potential categories of information such as number of staff, number and type of industrial 
users, and budget. Delta Diablo staff previously compiled limited information in summer 2024; the 
committee will use this as a starting point. BACWA staff will solicit responses from committee members. 
BACWA staff also shared a link to 2023 Pretreatment Program Reports as a resource. 
Training Needs 
The group discussed potential training ideas. Suggestions included data handling; groundwater permitting 
(dewatering and/or remediation); general program implementation including mandatory vs. discretionary 
permits and permitting non-industrial users; traffic control during sampling; customizing your program to 
fit your agency’s needs; and having report-outs from individual agencies on their program highlights.  
Updates on Constituents of Emerging Concern (CECs) 
• DTSC has issued a new rule for laundry detergents with nonylphenol ethoxylates, which could be 

found in specialized industries (e.g., hotels, hospitals).  
• This year’s Regional Monitoring Program Pulse of the Bay and Annual Meeting provide a resource on 

CECs for general audiences 
  

83

https://www.epa.gov/eg/study-pfas-influent-potws
https://www.epa.gov/eg/current-effluent-guidelines-program-plan
https://www.epa.gov/eg/current-effluent-guidelines-program-plan
https://downloads.regulations.gov/EPA-HQ-OW-2023-0580-0029/content.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-11/epas-pfas-strategic-roadmap-2024_508.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-11/epas-pfas-strategic-roadmap-2024_508.pdf
https://dtsc.ca.gov/scp/priority-products/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB347
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2515
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/SFEI-BACWA-PFAS-Study-2024-Final-Report-w-Appendices.pdf
https://pubs.acs.org/doi/10.1021/acsestwater.4c00507
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/SFEI-Ezra-Miller-PFAS-Sources-to-Solutions-Overview-2024-08-07.pdf
https://water.uci.edu/research/research/
https://bacwa.box.com/s/ipw60ypribhn6mfwboui0tcaibkzq8oz
https://dtsc.ca.gov/scp/nonylphenol-ethoxylates-npes-in-laundry-detergents/
https://www.sfei.org/programs/pulse-bay
https://www.sfei.org/projects/rmp-annual-meeting


Pretreatment Committee 
Report to BACWA Board  

Committee meeting on 11/20/2024 
Executive Board Meeting Date: 1/17/2024 
Committee Chairs: Casey Fitzgerald (San Jose), 
Michael Dunning (Union Sanitary District)  

 

Page 2 

BACWA Updates 
• BAPPG will be discussing FOG outreach to food trucks at the next meeting on Wednesday 12/4 
• New resources include the Baywise website, a Baywise map of agency service area boundaries, and 

an org chart of Bay Area water quality agencies  
• The reissued Nutrient Watershed Permit went into effect on October 1. Interim, performance-based 

limits apply beginning in the 2025 dry season, and final limits apply beginning in the 2035 dry season. 
Going forward, nitrogen loading should be considered in pretreatment program local limits analyses 
and rate studies.  

Member Discussion 
• Attendees shared that it was useful to conduct an internal program audit to be prepared for a formal 

compliance audit. Consulting firms are available to assist with this work, if desired.  
• Central San shared that they have put in their application with CROMERR. Once the application is 

approved, their staff can share tips with the committee.   
Announcements 
Registration is now open for CWEA’s P3S Conference Feb 3-5, San Jose. The Monday session will feature a 
panel on pretreatment compliance audits, with speakers from the BACWA pretreatment committee.  

 

84

https://baywise.org/
https://baywise.org/map/
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/Bay-Area-Water-Agency-Org-Chart-2024-09-12.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_decisions/adopted_orders/2024/R2-2024-0013.pdf
https://www.cwea.org/conferences/p3s-conference/


 

BAPPG Committee  
Report to BACWA Board 

Meeting Date:  December 4, 2024 
Executive Board Meeting Date:  January 17, 2025 
BAPPG Chairs:    Robert Wilson (City of Santa Rosa), 
Autumn Ross (SFPUC) 

Committee Request for Board Action:  None 
42 attendees participated virtually. Participants represented 25 member agencies, the Regional Water 
Board, and two guest speakers.   

Updates on Committee Activity and Announcements                                  
• Regional Water Board Announcements:  Staff shared a link to slides from the Nov. 2024 Board 

meeting in which NapaSan was awarded the Dr. Teng-Chung Wu Pollution Prevention Award.  
• BACWA:  BACWA is preparing a communications plan and will share a draft soon. BACWA’s 

Executive Board will hear an update on the DTSC Safer Consumer Products program at its Dec. 
6th meeting (link to slides). 

• Steering Committee: The recently completed fall outreach campaign focused on Fats, Oils, and 
Grease (FOG). Official statistics will be shared soon. The spring campaign will focus on PFAS.  

• Pesticides Committee: The committee is recruiting new members from wastewater agencies, 
and will provide training for new volunteers. The pesticides consultant team will present at the 
next BAPPG meeting on January 29th.   

• CWEA will host its next Annual P3S Conference in San Jose on February 3-5, 2025. Register here. 
Green Business Programs 
Susan Psara (Contra Costa County) and Brian Luu (SF Environment Department) provided 
information about the California Green Business Network, a 501(c)(3) organization that helps 
facilitate local programs. Slides are available here. The purpose of green business programs is to 
recognize and promote businesses that meet high environmental sustainability standards, and to 
facilitate relationships between businesses and government. Contra Costa County and San 
Francisco have dedicated staff to implement their programs. Elsewhere in the Bay Area, there are 
contract staff from the firm Environmental Innovations that support the programs. Find local 
contacts at https://greenbusinessca.org/contact/. Wastewater agencies should coordinate with 
their local green business program coordinator to provide information about any locally relevant 
wastewater policies. For example, in San Francisco there are incentives available through the Green 
Business program that are relevant to wastewater, such as incentives for grease trap upgrades. The 
statewide Green Business Network provides checklists specific to each business sector that are 
periodically updated, and the group discussed ways to make sure that those checklists are shared 
more widely and updated with the involvement of wastewater agency representatives.  
FOG Disposal for Food Trucks 
The group discussed the rules for proper disposal of FOG from food trucks and suggested edits to an 
outdated flyer. BACWA staff will prepare an updated draft for the group to review. The group 
discussed the following general information about food trucks and grease disposal: 
• There are two different waste streams from food trucks that could contain FOG: used cooking oil 

and greywater. Per state code, greywater must go to a commissary or commercial kitchen, where 
there would typically be a grease trap. Food trucks should not discharge to stormwater system.  

• Large quantities of oil (e.g., from a deep fryer) must get hauled by a certified hauler (such as 
Darling). A few Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) facilities around the Bay Area will collect 
small amounts of used cooking oil from food trucks. However, not all HHW programs will accept 
used cooking oil, so this is not the universal message for food trucks in the Bay Area, only in 
certain jurisdictions.   

Next BAPPG General Meeting: January 29, 10am – 12pm, Virtual  
The agenda will include an update on pesticides from BAPPG’s pesticides regulatory support 
consultant, Stephanie Hughes.   

85

https://cal-span.org/meeting/rwqcb-sf_20241113/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/dr_teng_chung_wu_award.html
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/12/DTSC-J.-Jackson-Presentation-on-Safer-Consumer-Products-2024-12-05.pdf
https://www.cwea.org/conferences/p3s-conference/
mailto:Susan.psara@cchealth.org
mailto:brian.luu@sfgov.org
https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/12/Contra-Costa-and-SF-Green-Business-Programs-2024-12-04.pdf
https://greenbusinessca.org/contact/
https://acrobat.adobe.com/id/urn:aaid:sc:VA6C2:3b3467c5-e6f4-41de-a6d9-245f277418b9?viewer%21megaVerb=group-discover
https://acrobat.adobe.com/id/urn:aaid:sc:VA6C2:3b3467c5-e6f4-41de-a6d9-245f277418b9?viewer%21megaVerb=group-discover


Holiday Handout
for

BACWA Lab and Permits Committees
December 10, 2024

2. Statewide Toxicity Policy Updates

a. Region 2 Implementation – Are you curious about other dischargers’ chronic toxicity monitoring 
requirements and effluent limitations? Reference this spreadsheet for Bay Area (Region 2) dischargers, 
last updated December 2024 https://bacwa.box.com/s/pkyiia2rdk0dv772ovot8w0q785mpwuf

b. Statewide Implementation – On November 19th, State Water Board staff presented to the State Water 
Board members on implementation of the toxicity provisions. 
Slides: https://bacwa.box.com/s/m16fh85ko4wf5pwpke3lyk93jxlu2x8u
Video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZyR-siKs0bw&t=5820s

Key points: 
- Ceriodaphnia method is challenging (culture crashes, brood health etc.)
- Initiating 3 tests within a month is challenging

c.  TST training - McCampbell will provide training on interpreting results at the February 11th Permits 
Committee meeting

12/10/2024

1

3

86



3. ELAP Updates

Is your lab moving? 
ELAP staff attended the November 18th CWEA Lab Committee and verbally provided guidance that if your 
lab is relocating, you should contact ELAP staff to discuss individualized requirements for your agency to 
maintain accreditation during / after the move.  

Contact info for ELAP: ELAP Main - elapca@waterboards.ca.gov

12/10/2024

4. Methods Update Rule (MUR)

. 
Source: https://www.epa.gov/cwa-methods/methods-update-rules

MUR 22 was released on 
December 6th!

• Removes PCB 
Aroclors Methods 
(608.3 and 625) 

• Adds new 
PCB Congeners 
Method 1628

ChemVal to provide an update on microbiological methods in January 2025 – stay tuned! 

12/10/2024

4

5

87



5. PCB Congener Reporting
Implementation of this guidance document from 
October is up to each discharger. Contract 
laboratories may provide a lab report with all the 
available data, leaving it to each discharger to 
finalize formatting and data entry into CIWQS.  

Sample cover letter for submittal: “Results for PCBs 
congeners are reported according to the San 
Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control 
Board-approved guidance document POTW PCBs 
Sampling, Analysis & Reporting Protocols Using EPA 
Method 1668C (Bay Area Clean Water Agencies, 
October 2024). The laboratory report is included as 
an attachment to this submittal.” 

If you are having issues, please contact Mary 
(mcousins@bacwa.org) and Blake 
(bbrown@centralsan.org). 

12/10/2024

6. Triennial Review

Adoption was scheduled for December 11th but was deferred to a future date. The delay will allow 
the Regional Water Board to respond to two letters received from a law firm on behalf of the 
Ecological Rights Foundation regarding these and related issues:

- Candidate project to incorporate Clean Water Act section 304(a) criteria into the Basin Plan 
did not rank high enough to receive staff resources. 

See the Triennial Review Staff Report, pg. 16.  
The State Water Board survey also includes a question about Clean Water Act 304(a) criteria         

(see page 8) 

- Basin Plan beneficial use designations for recreational and sport fishing  

6

7

88



7. Nutrient Watershed Permit

8

Work in Progress

• Preparation of the Group Annual Report for 2024-2025 is underway. HDR will 
contact individual agencies to confirm data compilation. Edits will be due Jan 10th.

• Support for Implementation of Special Provisions:
HDR will continue to support BACWA for the 2024 Nutrient Watershed Permit with:

• Group Annual Reporting due each April 1st.  
• Compliance Schedule Milestone Reporting due each April 1st
• Scoping Plan for Regional Planning Effort due July 1, 2025
• Regional Dashboard? (Optional task)

• Statewide Compliance Schedule Amendment  – Regional Water Board is working 
internally on this task and there is no update to share. Draft materials related to a 
hypothetical schedule for project implementation is in the BACWA Board Packet. 
These materials are to demonstrate why more than 10 years is needed for 
compliance.

• Science Planning for 2025-2029 is underway. BACWA is meeting frequently with 
the SFEI science team and Regional Water Board to discuss the science work plan 
and management questions. BACWA is advocating for an approach that recognizes 
long planning horizons to facilitate capital planning.

8. State Water Board Survey
on Statewide Policies

9

The State Water Board is conducting a survey to prioritize its work 
on amending water quality plans and policies over the next 3 years.

Clean Water Act section 304(a) criteria are also included in the 
survey.

304(a) criteria potentially applicable to SF Bay are much lower than 
existing CTR for criteria for many organic compounds such as 
bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate, butylbenzyl phthalate, and 
pentachlorophenol. 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/plans_policies/2024_review.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/plans_policies/docs/2024/survey-
notice-fact-sheet-review-plans-policies-2024.pdf

The survey consists of an open-ended response for each policy, 
including the compliance schedule policy.  Please respond!
Survey is open now through December 23, 2024

8

9

89



9. CECs White Paper
Finally complete!

https://bacwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/POTW-
Participation-in-CECs-Studies-White-Paper-2024-
Update.pdf

White Paper updates:
• Updated statistics about Bay 

Area treatment plants 
(population, flow, pretreatment, 
recycled water)

• Treatment technology, including 
nitrogen removal (NEW), 
filtration, and disinfection

• New section summarizing 
recently completed studies 
(2019-2024)

10. PFAS
USEPA has released a new progress update on their PFAS Strategic Roadmap.

https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-11/epas-pfas-strategic-
roadmap-2024_508.pdf

Key Updates:

• Coming Soon – Draft human health criteria for fish consumption
In parallel, California OEHHA is also working on fish consumption advisory levels (link). 
Once finalized, federal or state fish consumption would likely affect San Francisco Bay 
wastewater discharges in the coming years, potentially via a 303(d) listing. 

• Coming Soon – Draft risk assessment for PFOA and PFOS in Biosolids
This is just a risk assessment, not regulations. If and when regulations are finalized, they are likely to affect 
Bay Area biosolids end uses in the coming years.  

• Nationwide Study of PFAS in influent and sewage sludge is coming!
• Extremely likely your agency will need to fill out the survey
• Possibly your agency will need to sample influent, effluent, domestic sewage, and up to 10 IUs

10

11

90



1 
 

Executive Director’s Report to the Board 

December 2024 
 

  

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING AND SUPPORT 

• Worked with BACWA staff to plan and manage 12/6 Executive Board meeting 

• Conducted the Executive Board meeting agenda review with the BACWA Chair  

• Hosted 12/6 Executive Board meeting and developed meeting notes 

• Continued to track all action items to completion 

 

COMMITTEES: 

• none 

 

REGULATORY: 

• Held preplanning meeting for BAAQMD permitting meeting (12/2) 

• Attended meeting with BAAQMD management on permitting backlog (12/9) 

 

NUTRIENTS:   

Completed a variety of tasks and activities associated with BACWA’s interests on nutrients and 

collaborating with the Water Board including: 

• Attended NMS Planning Subcommittee meeting (12/4) 

• Met with SFPUC to discuss collective advocacy on nutrient funding 

• Met with Water Board and SFEI EO on NMS program management 

• Met with NMS Science Manager on programmatic issues 

• Attended NMS NTW meeting (12/9) 

• Discussed next steps with SCCWRP OAH IPR SC members 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

• Reviewed Civic Edge materials 

 

FINANCE: 

• Reviewed the monthly BACWA financial reports 

• Reviewed and approved invoices 

• Worked with completed Audit and Financial Statement 

 

COLLABORATIONS: 

• Attended BAOWN reboot kickoff (12/2) 

 

ASC (AQUATIC SCIENCE CENTER) 

• Reviewed materials sent via email by ASC ED 
 

BABC (BAY AREA BIOSOLIDS COALITION) 

• Met with BABC leadership to respond to questions about potential transition to BACWA (12/5) 
 

 

91



2 
 

BACC (BAY AREA CHEMICAL CONSORTIUM) 

• none 

 

BACWWE (BAY AREA COALITION FOR WATER/WASTEWATER EDUCATION) 

• none 
 

ADMINISTRATION:   

• Planned for and conducted the monthly BACWA staff meeting to prepare for the Board Meeting and to 
coordinate and prioritize activities. 

• Signed off on invoices, reviewed correspondence, prepared for upcoming Board meetings, responded to 
inquiries on BACWA efforts, oversaw and participated in updating of web page and provided general 

direction to BACWA staff.   

• Worked with RPM in the preparation of the monthly BACWA Bulletin. 

• Developed and responded to numerous emails and phone calls as part of the conduct of BACWA 

business on a day-to-day basis.  
 

MISCELLANEOUS MEETINGS/CALLS:   

• Worked with BACWA Chair and Committee Chairs on items that arose during the month 

• Other miscellaneous calls and inquiries regarding BACWA activities 

• Responded to Board members’ requests for information 
 

92



 
 

Board Calendar 
Feb 2025 – April 2025 Meetings 

 

 

DATE AGENDA ITEMS 

Feb 21, 2025 
EBMUD Orinda 

Approvals & Authorizations: 
•  
•  
Policy / Strategic Discussion: 
• Pesticides Presentation 
Operational: 
• FY26 Draft Budget 
• 

March 21, 2025 
Central San 

Approvals & Authorizations: 
•  
•  
Policy / Strategic Discussion: 
• Watershed permit submittals to water board 
• SCCWRP Costal Monitoring Project presentation 
Operational: 
• FY26 Second Draft Budget 
• 

April 18, 2025 
EBMUD Downtown 

Approvals & Authorizations: 
•  
•  
Policy / Strategic Discussion: 
•  
Operational: 
• FY26 Budget Adoption 
• 

93



BACWA ACTION ITEMS

Number Subject Task Responsibiity Deadline Status

Action Items from Dec 6  2024 BACWA Executive Board Meeting resp. deadline status

2025.12.13 Preview of 2024 GAR data
BACWA ED and RPM to set up a series of meetings to coordinate on compliance schedule milestone information 
needed for the 2024 GAR. RPM 12/31/2024 complete

2025.12.14 Request for BACWA participation in WRF opportunity 5288 BACWA ED will follow up with Mike Falk and bring an update to the January meeting. ED 12/31/2025 complete

2025.12.15 Memo to support extended compliance schedules
BACWA to provide template answer for agencies to use to respond to the State Water Board survey on state 
plans and policies. RPM 12/16/2024 complete

2025.12.16 Updated memo justifying Non-competitive EPA grant for nutrient management BACWA ED will provide update in January. ED 1/15/2025 complete
2025.12.17 Update on BABC integration into BACWA BACWA ED will prepare the  BABC support when the FY26 BACWA budget is developed. ED 1/15/2025 complete
2025.12.18 Meeting dates for CY 2025 BACWA AED will send calendar invites. AED 12/31/2024 complete

Action Items Remaining from Previous BACWA Executive Board Meetings

2022.3.42 Plain-language review of nutrient science program
BACWA ED to work with SFEI to augment plain-language review to include graphics, simplified text, and a 
summary of what we have learned so far. ED on going 

2025.08.08 Summary of Watershed Permit activities BACWA ED to work with member agencies on roles, responsibilities & timeline. ED on going

FY25: 17 of 18 Action items are complete
FY24: 43 of 43 Action Items are complete
FY23: 58 of 58 Action Items are complete
FY22: 51 of 52 Action items are completed
FY21: 51 of 51 Action items completed
FY20:  70  of 70   Action Items completed
FY19: 110  of 110  action Items completed
FY18: 66 of 66  Action Items completed
FY17: 90 of 90 Action Items completed

94



 
  
BACWA BULLETIN: Completed and circulated December Bulletin. 

BAY AREA BIOSOLIDS COALITION: Assisted with preparations for December meeting; 
participated in meeting and took notes; prepared draft meeting summary. 

BIOSOLIDS: Finalized and submitted 2024 biosolids memo to Solano County Environmental 
Health Division staff.   

NUTRIENTS: Participated in nutrient technical workgroup meeting held at San Francisco Estuary 
Institute (SFEI); prepared template member response and submitted BACWA response to State 
Water Board survey of plans and policies; coordinated with HDR and contract management group 
on compilation of compliance schedule milestone information for 2024 Group Annual Report.  

PFAS: Reviewed draft EPA human health water quality criteria for PFAS, then circulated summary 
to BACWA Permits committee; discussed PFAS messaging with Sagent and DTSC staff.  

REGIONAL MONITORING PROGRAM: Coordinated with SFEI staff regarding 2025 NPDES 
compliance letter summarizing RMP activities; held discussion with RMP staff regarding concepts 
for future studies of constituents of emerging concern (CECs). 

COMMITTEE SUPPORT: 
AIR – Participated in December committee meeting and CASA Air Toxics workgroup meeting; 

prepared contact information for AIR committee for BAAQMD permit workload projections; 
shared industrial wastewater information with CASA staff.  

BAPPG – Participated in December committee and steering committee meetings and prepared 
draft meeting notes; updated FOG food truck flyer to reflect December meeting discussion; 
reviewed draft pesticides strategy document for veterinary outreach.  

Collection Systems – Participated in CASA Collection System Workgroup.   
Laboratory and Permits Committees – Coordinated with committee leaders to prepare 

regulatory updates for joint December meeting at DSRSD; participated in joint meeting and 
tour; reviewed draft individual NPDES permits for member agencies; scheduled 2025 meetings 
for both committees.  

Pretreatment – Prepared and circulated notes from November committee meeting.  
Recycled Water – Met with member agency and WateReuse staff to discuss emerging 

regulations for onsite nonpotable reuse with WateReuse.  
Executive Board – Provided regulatory updates for Executive Board meeting.   
 

ADMINISTRATIVE:  BACWA website, email list subscriptions, and attendance certificates. 

BACWA MEETINGS ATTENDED:   
BAPPG Committee (12/4) 
Executive Board (12/6) 
Lab and Permits Committee (12/10) 
AIR Committee (12/11) 

EXTERNAL EVENTS ATTENDED:  
Nutrient Science Planning Workshop (12/9)  
CASA Regulatory Workgroup (12/12)   
Bay Area Biosolids Coalition (12/17) 
CASA Collection Systems Workgroup (12/18) 

 

    Regulatory Program Manager’s  
Report to the Executive Board 

December 2024 

  
            
  

    

95


	+Executive Board Meeting January 17 2025 Agenda
	Agenda to post

	Executive Board Meeting January 17 2025 Packet
	1 December 6 Board meeting Minutes
	2 Nov 2024 Treasurers Report
	1 November 2024 Financial Reports Cover Letter
	2 Nov 2024 Monthly Financial Summary Report
	3 BACWA FY25 Budget Approved 4-2024 with Actuals thru Nov 2024
	 Budget to Actual

	4 BACWA Fund and Invest Bal Rpt November 2024
	BACWA Monthly Summary

	5 BACWA Revenue Detail Report November 2024
	Revenue Summary-BACWA

	6 BACWA Summary and Expense Report November 2024
	Expense Summary


	3 BAR 2nd installment annual Nutrient WS Payment FY25
	3b 1092252_SFEI second NMS Payment
	4 BACWA Communications Plan DRAFT Jan 2025
	5a BACWA Algal Bloom _ Nutrients Social Media Posts - Google Docs
	5b BACWA Sponsorship Opportunities - Google Docs
	6.i.a 12-17-24-Forever-chemicals-found-to-taint-rural-California-drinking-water
	6.i.b 12-17-24 SF Chronicle Clarification
	6.i.c NYT Article - E.P.A. Promotes Fertilizer Carrying PFAS
	6.ii PFAS Landing Page for Baywise - Google Docs
	6.iii.a PFAS Regulatory Update 2024-01-17
	6.iii. PFAS Regulatory Update�for�BACWA Executive Board
	USEPA Actions Related to PFAS �November 2024 – January 2025�Highlight of Actions Relevant to the Municipal Wastewater Sector
	USEPA Actions Related to PFAS �
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	6.iii.b Fact Sheet - Draft Human Health WQC for PFAS
	Draft National Recommended Human Health Ambient Water Quality Criteria for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS
	Background
	What are national recommended human health water quality criteria?
	What are the draft National Recommended Ambient Water Quality Criteria for the Protection of Human Health for PFOA, PFOS, and PFBS?
	Consideration of PFAS mixtures for HHC
	Where can I find more information?


	6.iii.c Fact Sheet - Draft Sewage Sludge Risk Assessment for PFOA and PFOS
	9 2024_12_4 PS Meeting Notes (unedited)
	12 Jt RB2 Mtg Agenda 2025-XX-XX (Feb or March) DRAFT
	13 BACWA NPDES Permit Letter CY24 with SFEI attach 2025-01-13
	15 FY 26 Budget Adoption Schedule
	17 BACWA BOARD MEETINGS CY 2025
	18 BACWA Annual Meeting Program 2025 draft
	19a Pretreatment Committee Report 2024-11-20
	19b BAPPG Board Report 2024-12-04
	19c Lab and Permits Committee Handout 2024-12-10
	21 ED Report Dec 2024
	22 Board Calendar Action Items
	BOD Calendar Feb 2025 - April 2025
	Board Calendar

	Action Items Tracking from Dec 6 Meeting
	Sheet1


	23 RPM Report 2024-12



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [4000 4000]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [4000 4000]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




